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As a Hong Kong listed company with increasing proportion of its
core businesses in the China market, the Group consolidated its
strengths, refined its strategies constantly, proceeded with caution
amid opportunities and challenges, and made progress in multiple
areas in the past year.

REVIEW

The Group's self-owned PONY brand is currently developing
steadily across all regions and can be seen at different brand
exhibitions around the world. The gradually enhanced brand
awareness had enabled us to continue exploring new distributors
round the world last year.

Benefiting from our operation team’s experience for swimming
brands, our joint venture Arena in Shanghai delivered good sales
performance last year, making a good start in the first year of
its official operation. The Group will sum up its experience and
continue to commit more resources to brand operation. In addition,
the Group has been actively working to enrich its outlet’s brand
portfolio and several Italian brands that we distribute have already
made their presences in the Group’s outlet malls.

The e-commerce company that was set up early last year is

currently focusing on operating the Group’s brands such as Arena,
and is playing a crucial supporting role in the Group’s brand
development business.
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As for travel retail business, Shenyang Park Outlets had recorded
a stable increase in sales in 2017 after persistent and unremitting
efforts were made to strengthen management. At the same
time, with the Shenyang Park Outlet reaching full occupancy,
the Group commenced leasehold improvement for the outlet in
the first quarter of last year to further increase leasable areas to
boost revenue. Anyang CITS Park Outlets officially opened on 23
September 2017 and its brand tenant mix has been strengthened
gradually. The Group succeeded in winning the bid for a piece of
land in Jimei District of Xiamen in mid-February last year and has
commenced the construction of a “Park Outlets” flagship. A new
community mall model was formally introduced since the end of
2016 and both shopping malls in Chongging and Tianjin run by the
Group have currently made good progress in their development.

Since the commencement of the Group’s duty-free business in
Kinmen, Taiwan in 2014, the number of visitors took a sharp fall
due to developments in cross-strait political relations, bringing
operational pressure onto the project. The management team
actively tried out different strategies and fine-tuned management
last year so as to minimize the impact of this project on the entire
travel retail segment.

With regards to financial services, the Group adopted a relatively
prudent strategy last year given the market instability, as a result
the revenue from its lending business decreased. However, we
had, at the same time, strategically adjusted the allocation of
resources in response to market trends, as well as opened up more
asset management business with lower risks.

Moreover, the investment properties in the Mainland China and
Hong Kong continued to generate stable return to the Group
through rental income and appreciation.

It was delighted and encouraging to see that the Group managed
2017 with accurate assessment of the climate, made good use
of its own advantages, adopt a proactive strategy and accomplish
positive and optimistic development. The Group will continue
to timely fine-tune and upgrade itself, aiming at improving the
effectiveness and efficiency of its business in the coming year.
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OUTLOOK

For brands, PONY will continue to expand its licence business to
other potential regions and countries, and plans to collaborate with
other international renowned brands to continuously raise brand
awareness and value.

At the same time, the Group will strive to develop Arena’s business
in China and actively negotiate with Arena’s parent company
DESCENTE in Japan and its largest shareholder ITOCHU for more
sports and outdoor brands, and will explore different cooperation
models for brand development. The addition of more brands will,
not only increase the brand business but also benefit the outlet
malls and e-commerce businesses.

For e-commerce sector, the direction will also be to support the
Group’s own brands and travel retail businesses, we hope further
to integrate online and offline sales networks for maximizing the
synergistic effect on all business segments.

As for travel retail, the Group will continue to upgrade the overall
image of Park Outlets; increase its sales by utilizing the Shenyang
Park Outlets’ recently added commercial space; actively improve
the operation of the Anyang CITS Park Outlets; share with other
outlet malls management resources and achieve synergistic effect.
Simultaneously, the Group will step up its Xiamen Outlet mall
project development schedule, aiming for the opening of the same
in May 2019. Regarding community malls, the Group will continue
to operate proactively to increase business turnover.

The Group will continue to refine its strategy for duty-free business
based on future operating conditions.
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As for the financial services sector, the Group will steadily
strengthen its asset management business through actively
negotiating with international and local partners to develop
new asset management/fund related cooperation opportunity.
Furthermore, the Group would adopt a more flexible asset
investment strategy, and allocate the proceeds to develop branding
and finance-related businesses, in order to enhance the return to
shareholders in the long run.

In conclusion, the Group will focus on strengthening and
developing its existing brand segment and actively explore, with
multinational companies such as ITOCHU, more brand partnership
possibilities in 2018 in order to take full advantage of the branding
effect and economies of scale and to boost the development of the
travel retail and e-commerce businesses. Financial services will, as
always, provide strong and effective support and assurance to the
Group’s tangible business development. We believe that the fine-
tuned and enhanced operating structure and business model will
have a positive impact on the following areas of the Group: such as
revenue generation, efficiency enhancement and reaction to risk.

APPRECIATION

| would take this opportunity to extend my gratitude to my
fellow directors, members of our staff and stakeholders for their
continuous support and contributions to the Group. | hope the
management and all our colleagues will continue to pay concerted
efforts, support each other and contribute to the business and
performance of the Group in 2018.
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Cost of sales increased from HKD92.0 million to HKD119.8
million mainly due to increase in sales of retailing and sourcing
segment. The gross margin was 65.7% for the year ended 31
December 2017 as compared to 74.7% for the previous year
largely attributable to the decrease in the turnover of financial
services business. Administrative expenses rose from HKD135.1
million to HKD195.4 million mostly as a result of an increase in
amortisation of prepaid lease payments, exchange loss, legal and
professional fee for acquisition and operating costs relating to the
new community mall businesses in Chongging and Tianjin. Finance
costs increased from HKD18.4 million to HKD42.0 million as a
result of increased bank loans relating to newly acquired land and
investment properties. Fair value gain of investment properties
increased from HKD20.4 million to HKD197.7 million as a result
of the appreciation of investment properties of the Group. Share of
results of joint ventures moved from HKD1.0 million to HKD19.4
million mainly due to improved operating results with full-year
sharing in 2017.

Total assets of the Group rose from HKD3,395.2 million to
HKD4,234.4 million as a result of the newly acquired land in
Xiamen, the property in Chongging and the fair valuation gain of
properties of the Group. The total liabilities of the Group moved
from HKD1,227.9 million to HKD1,637.1 million due to increase
in bank loans relating to newly acquired land in Xiamen and the
property in Chongging.

MARKET INFORMATION

During the year, sales to the People’s Republic of China, Hong
Kong, Taiwan and other Asian countries comprised 98.8% (2016:
96.5%) of the total sales with the remaining 1.2% (2016: 3.5%)
shared between United States of America and other countries.
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LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had bank balances and
cash of HKD137,326,000 (2016: HKD328,468,000). The Group
was offered banking facilities amounting to HKD1,232,132,000
(2016: HKD719,491,000). As at 31 December 2017, the Group
obtained bank borrowings in the amount of HKD1,156,927,000
(2016: HKD719,491,000). The Group has variable interest rate
bank loans which carry interest ranging from 2.7% to 9.2% (2016:
2.0% 1o 3.0%) per annum. The weighted average effective interest
rate of the Group’s bank loans is 4.1% (2016: 2.7%). Debt to
total assets ratio stood at 27.3% (2016: 21.2%), based on total
bank borrowings over total assets. The shareholders’ equity was
enhanced by exchange difference arising from translation of foreign
operations amounting to HKD160,187,000 mainly attributable to
the appreciation of Renminbi for the year. The banking facilities are
secured by corporate guarantees from the Company and certain of
its subsidiaries, charge over certain deposits, certain prepaid lease

payments, certain leasehold land and buildings in Hong Kong and
investment properties of the Group.
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HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2017, the total number of employees
of the Group was 347. Employee costs (excluding directors
emoluments) amounted to approximately HKD70,510,000 (2016:
HKD63,177,000).

In addition to competitive remuneration packages, double pay and
employee share options are offered to eligible staff of the Group
based on their performance and individual merits.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

During the year, the Group granted 21,000,000 share options to
certain eligible individuals under the share option scheme, subject
to acceptance by them. The share option shall entitle them to
subscribe for a total of 21,000,000 new shares of HKDO.10 each of
the share capital of the Company, at an exercise price of HKDO0.82
per share option.
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Details of the movements of the share options granted under the
Scheme during the year ended 31 December 2017 are as follows:
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Number of share options

BREYE
Exercise  Outstanding Outstanding
price as at Granted Exercised Lapsed as at
per share 1 January during during during 31 December
Participants Date of grant Exercise period (HKD) 2017 the year the year the year 2017
20175 12017
BRTER 1A18 12A318
2HEAL R¥EH e (Ex) HATHE  REARE REATE REARYK ie K AT
Directors (Note 1) 18/9/2017 18/9/2017 - 17/9/2018 0.82 - 6,000,000 - - 6,000,000
B3 (1)
Employees 18/9/2017 18/3/2018 - 17/9/2018 0.82 - 15,000,000 - - 15,000,000
E8
- 21,000,000 - - 21,000,000
Weighted average exercise price (HKD) N/A 0.82 N/A N/A 0.82
ETHTRE (BT TER TER TER

Note 1: Each of Mr. Chan Kar Lee Gary and Mr. Hong Kim Cheong has been granted

3,000,000 shares options.

The Group recognised an expense of approximately HKD1,102,000
(2016: HKD1,481,000) for the year ended 31 December 2017 in
relation to the fair value of share options, at HKDO.068 per share
option granted by the Company.

Particulars of the Company’s share option scheme adopted on
10 June 2011 (the “Scheme”) are set out in Note 32 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 2 February 2018, the Group announced that one of its
subsidiaries, /&5 B3 T HhE F EE AR A & (Shenyang Outlet
Mall Property Development Company Limited*) (“Lessee”) entered
into a lease agreement with XZEEHITEHERZERR A A
(Tianjin Binhai Kaiyuan Property Development Company Limited*)
(“Lessor”), an independent third party, for a lease term of twenty
years commencing from 1 January 2018 to 31 December 2037,
with a 6 month rent-free period starting from 1 January to 30 June
2018 for a commercial property located at the Tianjn Development
Zone, Tianjin, the PRC. The aggregate rental payment to be made
to the Lessor for the twenty years term of the lease agreement
amounted to RMB346,694,000. The Lessee was further required
to pay an additional amount of RMB17,050,000 being the cost of
fixtures, leasehold improvement and newly-installed facilities of the
property. The Lessor was entitled to receive an additional rent of
2% on any excess amount above the commercial building yearly
turnover of RMB300,000,000. Further details are set out in the
announcement of the Company on 2 February 2018.

* For identification purpose 1£ 2 5l
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Cheng Tun Nei, aged 54, Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer (appointed on 15 December 2014 and elected as the
Chairman on 23 December 2014, he was re-elected on 9 June
2017)

Mr. Cheng was further appointed Chief Executive Officer on 30
September 2015.

He is an experienced investor in securities and also a seasoned
businessman engaging in securities and financing, consultancy,
hotel investment, real estate investment and development, import
and export of cigarettes, perfume and cosmetic products business
for many years. He is also a director of Goldsilk Capital Limited
(“Goldsilk”). Goldsilk is a substantial shareholder of the Company
under the Securities and Futures Ordinance.

Mr. Chan Kar Lee Gary, aged 62 (appointed on 2 January 2014
and was re-elected on 9 June 2017)

Mr. Chan was further appointed Chief Operating Officer on 1
November 2014 overseeing all business units for the Group.

He possesses over 30 years of professional experience in
marketing, sales, distribution and management in fast moving
consumer goods with multi-national corporations such as LVMH,
British American Tobacco and Imperial Tobacco Group.

Mr. Chan holds an EMBA degree awarded jointly by the HKUST
Business School and the Kellogg School of Management of
Northwestern University. He has also attended management
courses at Stanford Law School, Harvard Business School, The
Wharton School.
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Mr. Hong Kim Cheong, aged 54 (appointed as non-executive
director on 18 September 2015 and re-designated as executive
director effective from 1 April 2017)

Mr. Hong holds a Bachelor of Arts degree in Economics and
Geography from The University of Wilfred Laurier Ontario Canada.
He possesses over 28 years of retailing experience gathered from
fast moving consumer products to tobacco products. From 2015 to
2016, Mr. Hong served as a non-executive director of ItalMenu, a
joint venture between COOP ltalia (one of the largest supermarket
chain in ltaly) and a group of private investors for the Asia market.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Shum Pui Kay, aged 69 (appointed on 27 November 2013
and was re-elected on 10 June 2016)

He possesses over 30 years of experience in the retailing and
distribution of luxurious goods. He was instrumental in the
establishment and expansion of the renowned French leather good
brand Longchamp in the Asia Pacific region and has served as the
Chairman of the Asia Pacific region of the brand Longchamp since
1978.

Mr. Wah Wang Kei Jackie, aged 51 (appointed on 27 November
2013 and was re-elected on 10 June 2016)

He graduated from The University of Hong Kong in 1990 and
was qualified as a solicitor in 1992. Up until 1997, Mr. Wah
was a partner of a Hong Kong law firm. He is currently an
executive director of G-Resources Group Limited (HKSE: 1051).
Furthermore, he has also been appointed as an executive director
of CST Group Limited (formerly known as NetMind Financial
Holdings Limited) (HKSE: 985), the shares of which are listed on
the main board of the Stock Exchange.
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Mr. Chow Yu Chun Alexander, aged 71 (appointed on 15
December 2014 and was re-elected on 9 June 2017)

Mr. Chow is a Certified Public Accountant of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He possesses over 38
years of experience in commercial, financial and investment
management in Hong Kong and Mainland China. He is currently
also an independent non-executive director of Top Form
International Limited (HKSE: 333), Playmates Toys Limited (HKSE:
869) and China Strategic Holdings Limited (HKSE: 235), all three
companies are listed on the Stock Exchange. Furthermore, he is an
independent non-executive director of Aquis Entertainment Limited
(Australian Stock Code: ASX: AQS), a company listed on Australian
Securities Exchange.
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Senior Management
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Liu Kam Lung, aged 54, has been working with the Group
since October 2014.

He is the chief executive officer who oversees the compliance and
business operation of the financial services unit acquired by the
Group in 2014. He possesses over 27 years of experience in the
financial industry.

Mr. Liu is a fellow of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and an associate of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. At the same time, he is an associate
of the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and admitted
as an associate of the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators of the United Kingdom. He is also a full member of
the Society of Registered Financial Planners and an associate of
the Taxation Institute of Hong Kong.

Mr. Liu was awarded a Diploma of Business Administration from
Hong Kong Shue Yan College (now known as Hong Kong Shue Yan
University).

Ms. Chow So Ying Anna, aged 54, has been working with the
Group since June 2004.

She is the named company secretary of the Group.

Ms. Chow is a solicitor admitted in the Supreme Court of the Hong
Kong Special Administrative Region and possesses over 19 years
experience in legal and regulatory compliance. Her legal practice
used to focus on the capital markets covering IPO, bank financing,
securities and regulatory compliance, joint venture documentation
and private equity investments.

Ms. Chow graduated from the University of Hong Kong with a
Bachelor of arts degree.
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Mr. Lee Cheung Ming, aged 46, joined the Group in September
2014.

He is currently the Head of Real Estate division of the Group.

Mr. Lee accumulated over 17 years of experience in hotel and real
estate development cum investment in Mainland China. He used
to serve as the director of Megalogic Technology Holdings Limited
(HKSE: 8242), a company listed on the Growth Enterprise Market
of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Lee has completed his EMBA studies at Xiamen University. He
also holds a graduate certificate in Business Administration from
Beijing Economy Management College.

He is the brother-in-law of Mr. Cheng Tun Nei, the Chairman of the
Company.

Mr. Wong Keong Yiew, aged 48, joined the Group in June 2015
and currently serves as Head of Pony operation.

He has over 17 years of experience in general management,
sales & marketing and key account management across different
product categories including the fast moving consumer goods and
perfume cosmetics industries.

Mr. Wong graduated with a Bachelor of Engineering degree from
the National University of Singapore. He is an ASEAN Scholar and
a Singapore Aerospace Scholar.

Ms. Li Hua, aged 52, joined the Group in 2009.

Ms. Li has been focusing on brand marketing and leading the
brand operation from 1st March 2016 onwards. She is currently
responsible for Arena China business.

She has worked with Henkel, Reckitt Benckiser and Wacoal during
her 24 years in sales and marketing in FMCG and sports/fashion
industries.

Ms. Li graduated from Jilin Normal University with a bachelor
degree in English Literature.

Senior Management S B EE A S
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Mr. Mok Henry, aged 56, joined the Group in April 2004.

Mr. Mok was appointed Vice President in November 2012, and is
currently overseeing the Group’s outlet mall operations in China.

He is a retail industry veteran with over 24 years of experience in
the general consumer, as well as tourism, retailing business. His
past working experience included DFS Hong Kong Ltd., a LVMH
company and Victoria Mall, a CKH Shopping Mall, Reebok China
and JFT Holdings Ltd.

He holds a Bachelor of Science degree in Architecture from North
East London Polytechnic (currently University of East London) in
the United Kingdom.

Mr. Ng Yat Man Daniel, aged 60, joined the Group in December,
2011.

Mr. Ng was appointed the Head of leasing of outlet mall division on
1 March 2015. He is responsible for high-end brand recruitment
for the Group’s outlet malls in PRC.

He is a seasoned retailer with over 33 years of experience
accumulated from working with Foxtown, Golden Eagle Shopping
Centre and Sogo (HK).

Mr. Ng attended management courses at Foxtown Outlets, Lugano,
Switzerland.

Ms. Fung Kim Wan Ewim, aged 55 joined the Group on 1 July
2014.

Ms. Fung currently oversees the financial services business of the
Group.

With over 31 years of experience in business administration,
operational and customer relationship management, Ms. Fung has
been one of the key management member of a leading tobacco
and liquor company in Hong Kong, her main responsibilities
include supervising and managing the distribution and duty-free
business.

She graduated from the City College of Commerce in 1984 in the
discipline of business studies.
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The Directors have pleasure in presenting the annual report and
the audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2017.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

Symphony Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is an exempted
company with limited liability incorporated in Bermuda. Its shares
are listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The
address of its registered office is Clarendon House, 2 Church
Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda and its principal place of
business is 10th Floor, Island Place Tower, 510 King's Road, North
Point, Hong Kong.

The principal activities of the Group, comprising the Company and
its subsidiaries, are retailing and provision of sourcing services for
branded apparel, swimwear and accessories; development and
management of “PONY” brand; property investment and holding;
management and operation of outlet malls; provision of financial
services (including securities brokerage, margin financing, money
lending, underwriting and placing of listed securities and financial
consultancy); and operation of duty-free shops.

The principal activities of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are
set out in Note 44 to the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the business of the Group including the challenges
faced and ways to tackle them together with a discussion of
the Group’s future development are provided in the Chairman’s
Statement. An analysis of the Group’s performance during the year
is included in the Operation Review. A description of the financial
risks including but not limited to currency risk, interest rate risk,
credit risk, liquidity risk, equity price risk are found in Note 36(b) to
the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND FINAL DIVIDEND

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017 are
set out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on
pages 54 to 55 of the annual report.
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No interim dividend was declared or paid during the year. For
the year ended 31 December 2017, the Board recommends
the payment of a final dividend of HKDO.005 per Share to the
Shareholders (2016: HKDO0.0038 per Share), amounting to
approximately HKD14,782,000 (2016: HKD11,232,000) in
aggregate.

The proposed final dividend is expected to be paid on Wednesday,
11 July 2018 to Shareholders whose names appear on the Register
of Members of the Company as at the close of business on
Wednesday, 20 June 2018. The payment of dividend is subject to
the approval of Shareholders at the Annual General Meeting to be
held on Friday, 8 June 2018.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

The Group’s leasehold land and buildings were revalued at
31 December 2017. The revaluation resulted in a surplus of
approximately HKD61,819,000 which was credited directly to the
properties revaluation reserve.

Details of movements during the year in property, plant and
equipment of the Group are set out in Note 14 to the consolidated
financial statements.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The Group’s investment properties at 31 December 2017 were
fair valued by an independent firm of professional property valuers
base on comparable sales available in the market. The net increase
in fair value of approximately HKD197,663,000 was credited
directly to profit or loss.

Details of movements in the investment properties of the Group

during the year are set out in Note 15 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of share capital of the Company are set out in Note 31 to
the consolidated financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

For the year ended 31 December 2017, neither the Company nor
any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company'’s listed securities.

BONUS WARRANT

During the year, the qualifying shareholders exercised a total
number of approximately 58,000 units of warrants at the
exercise price HKD1.00 per warrant. As at 31 December 2017,
approximately 539,675,000 warrants remained outstanding.
Details are set out in Note 33 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company during
the year are set out in Note 34 of the consolidated financial
statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

The reserves of the Company available for distribution to
shareholders as at 31 December 2017 were as follows:
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Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the
balances in a company’s contributed surplus and share premium
accounts are available for distribution. However, the company
cannot declare or pay a dividend, or make a distribution out of
contributed surplus, if there are reasonable grounds for believing
that:

(a) the Company is, or would after the payment be, unable to
pay its liabilities as they become due; or

(b) the realisable value of the assets of the Company would
thereby be less than the aggregate of its liabilities and its
issued share capital and share premium accounts.

The Company’s share premium account may be applied to pay
up unissued Shares to be issued to the Shareholders as fully paid
bonus shares.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report were:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Mr. Cheng Tun Nei (Chairman & Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Chan Kar Lee Gary

Mr. Hong Kim Cheong

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:
Mr. Shum Pui Kay

Mr. Wah Wang Kei Jackie

Mr. Chow Yu Chun Alexander

In accordance with the existing Bye-laws of the Company, Mr.
Hong Kim Cheong (“Mr. Hong”) and Mr. Shum Pui Kay (“Mr.
Shum”) will retire as Directors by rotation and being eligible, Mr.
Shum offers himself for re-election at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting.

Mr. Hong has informed the Board that he would not offer himself
for re-election and he will retire as Director upon the conclusion of
the Annual General Meeting.

None of the directors who is proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with the
Group which is not terminable by the Group within one year without
payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2017, the interests and short positions of
the Directors and the chief executives and their associates of the
Company in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company and its associated corporations as recorded in the
register maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFQ”), or as otherwise notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the
“Code”), were as follows:

LONG POSITIONS

Ordinary shares of HKDO.10 each in the Company:
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Cheng Tun Nei (“Mr. Cheng”)  EIEJE ([E1%4]) 1 32,460,000 - 1,068,830,000 1,101,290,000 37.26%

Chan Kar Lee Gary BRsFl 6,000,000 - - 6,000,000 0.20%

Shum Pui Kay (“Mr. Shum”) HEE (Ex4E]) 2 10,000,000 - - 10,000,000 0.34%
Notes: B3 -

1. Mr. Cheng owns the entire issued share capital of Goldsilk Capital Limited 1. 8 %% & #5 B Goldsilk Capital Limited ([Goldsilk |) 2 &B

(“Goldsilk”). As at 31 December 2017, Goldsilk was directly interested in
1,068,830,000 Shares and 160,366,000 Warrants. Mr. Cheng was also
directly interested in 32,460,000 Shares. He was thus deemed to be interested
in 1,101,290,000 Shares and 160,366,000 Warrants.

2. As at 31 December 2017, Mr. Shum Pui Kay beneficially owns 10,000,000
Shares and 2,350,000 Warrants.

B EITHR AR 20174124318 - GoldsilkE B
1,068,830,000% % 17 % 160,366,00017 2 i% 1# & - 45 5
A [ B B 3 %k /532,460,0008% A% 17+ A 1Lt - 318 B4
%51,101,290,0000% I% 5 & 160,366,00017 32 A% 1 7 o

2. M2017F 12 A31 8 » JL A £ E %545 4510,000,0008% f% 15
122,350,00015 R A% 48 7%
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Save as disclosed above and in the section “Share Option
Scheme”, none of the directors, chief executives nor their
associates had any interest or short position in any shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations as at 31 December 2017.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE OR REDEEM
SHARES

At no time during the year was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the directors
of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate. In addition, the Company has not redeemed any of its
shares during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as the margin financing arrangement as disclosed under the
heading of “Continuing Connected Transactions” from page 39 to
42 of the annual report, no Director had a material interest, either
directly or indirectly, in any contract of significance to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party subsisting during or
at the end of the financial year under review.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Details of the directors’ remuneration are set out in Note 11 to the
consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESSES

None of the Directors or their respective close associates has any
competing interests which need to be disclosed pursuant to Rule
8.10 of the Listing Rules.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

A permitted indemnity provision (as defined in section 469 of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance) for the benefit of the directors

of the Company is currently in force throughout the year.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

The register of substantial shareholders maintained by the
Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO shows that, as at
31 December 2017, the following shareholders had notified the

FERR

Company of their relevant interests and short positions in the wm

issued share capital of the Company:

(1)

LONG POSITIONS

Ordinary shares of HKDO.10 each of the Company

(1) R=
N B AR0.1078 TTH A A7
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Direct Deemed Total of the
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EEFATF
#iB E#T
R M A EEED AR aEZ  RAEHIL
Mr. Cheng 1 Beneficial owner and Interest of 32,460,000 1,068,830,000 1,101,290,000 37.26%
Pt controlled corporation
RaARZEEE
Ms. Li Wa Hei (“Madam Li") 1 Spouse - 1,101,290,000  1,101,290,000 37.26%
FERLT ([FLL)) fic (8
Goldsilk 1 Beneficial owner 1,068,830,000 - 1,068,830,000 36.16%
Z&mA
Or Ching Fai (“Mr. Or") 2 Beneficial owner and spouse 350,000,000 120,000,000 470,000,000 15.90%
TEm & ([FEE]) X ARER
Wong Lai Ning (“Madam Wong") 2 Beneficial owner and spouse - 470,000,000 470,000,000 15.90%

BRELL ([E4t])

RamARERE
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Notes: B 5

1. Mr. Cheng owns the entire issued share capital of Goldsilk. As at 31 1. 2 %% A 35 B GoldSilk e 50 2 3 17 I A8 - 742017
December 2017, Goldsilk was directly interested in 1,068,830,000 F12H31H * GoldSilkE # # A1,068,830,0000%
Shares and 160,366,000 Warrants. Mr. Cheng was also directly A% 19 £ 160,366,00017 SR AR # & - B % £ R E
interested in 32,460,000 Shares. He was thus deemed to be interested ¥ ¥k 532,460,0000% f% 15+ A It - b 3 R B
in 1,101,290,000 Shares and 160,366,000 Warrants. Madam Li is 1,101,290,000% & 17 1 160,366,00017 73 i
the wife of Mr. Cheng and she was also deemed to be interested in BE-ZTLTABEENETF THRARSE
1,101,290,000 Shares and 160,366,000 Warrants. 1,101,290,0008% fi% 17 5160,366,00017 32 % #&

D

2. As at 31 December 2017, Mr. Or was directly interested in 2. HE2017F12A831B - ME4EEEAR
350,000,000 Shares and 70,000,000 Warrants. Mr. Or also held 350,000,000 A% 15 K 70,000,00015 52 A% 4 75
120,000,000 Shares and 24,000,000 Warrants jointly with his spouse, H B 8 = Z 4 £ [F#%5 A 120,000,0000% % 15
Madam Wong. Therefore, Mr. Or and Madam Wong were deemed to be 224,000,000 72 B A 78 o # k- A9 2 A R
interested in 470,000,000 Shares and 94,000,000 Warrants. 7+ AR B & A A $£470,000,0008% B 19 K

94,000,00017 R #E FF ©
(2) SHORT POSITIONS (2 BEE

The Company has not been notified of any other relevant MR2017F12A318 ARG EEBANE

interests or short positions in the issued share capital of the AT E A AR R B B B 1TRR AN B9 AR B 4 2= 0%

Company as at 31 December 2017. Be

—_ =t
APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT NON- ZEBIAFERTES

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the independent non- BIE ETRAEI IR E  ARFEIESAE
executive directors, an annual confirmation of his independence NABIIEHTESNTERRE  UBETHS
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers S ARARIMEMEBYIENITESH AR L

all of the independent non-executive directors independent. AL
CHARITABLE DONATIONS BEER

During the year, the Group made charitable and other donations RAFE AEBEERNES REMBRERLY
totalling approximately HKD89,400 (2016: HKD1,000). 89,4007 7T (20164 : 1,000/ 7T ) °
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Group’s employee emolument policy is reviewed by the Board
taking into account the qualifications, experience of the Group’s
employees and the market conditions.

The emoluments of the directors of the Company are reviewed and
recommended by the Remuneration Committee and approved by
the Board, as authorised by shareholders at the annual general
meeting, taking into account the operating results of the Company,
individual performance and the market conditions.

The Remuneration Committee advises the Board on the
emoluments of the directors and senior management. The
Company has adopted share option schemes as incentive to
directors and eligible employees, details of the schemes are set out
in Note 32 to the consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-laws, or
the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the Company to offer new
shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout
the year ended 31 December 2017.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company’s corporate governance principles and practices are
set out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 31 to 44 of
this Annual Report.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, sales to the Group's five largest customers
accounted for 26% of the total sales for the year and sales to
the largest customer included therein amounted to 12%. The
Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for 97% of the Group’s
total purchases and amount which 87% is attribute to the largest
supplier for the year.

The Group's largest supplier that accounts for 87% of the
total purchases is Shanghai Descente. Shanghai Descente has
appointed the Group’s indirect non wholly-owned subsidiary Arena
Shanghai to be its exclusive distributor for PRC from 2017 to 2021.
Shanghai Descente is contractually bound to supply swimwear
products to Arena Shanghai during the term of the distribution
agreement. Further details relating to the joint venture are found in
the Company’s announcements dated 27 February 2017 and 22
March 2017.

To the best knowledge of the Directors, none of the Directors or any
of their close associates or any shareholders who holds more than
5% of the Shares has any interests in the customers and suppliers
disclosed above.

AUDITOR

The financial statements have been audited by BDO Limited who
will retire, and being eligible, offer themselves for reappointment.
A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company to re-appoint BDO Limited as auditor of
the Company.

On behalf of the Board

CHAIRMAN
Cheng Tun Nei

Hong Kong, 16 March 2018
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The Company firmly believes in the value and importance
of achieving high standard of corporate governance through
transparency, as well as effective risk and internal control system.
With the merger and acquisition of new business segments,
the governance system is constantly reviewed and meticulously
re-assessed, by the Board to ensure that shareholders’ and
stakeholders’ interests are safeguarded. The Company has adopted
and complied with the CG Code throughout the year ended 31
December 2017, except for the deviation from code provisions
A.2.1 and A.4.1 of CG Code.

The Board continues to monitor and review the Company’s
corporate governance practices and makes necessary changes
at appropriate times. Under the code provision A.2.1, the roles of
the Chairman and chief executive officer should be separate and
should not be performed by the same individual. Mr. Cheng Tun
Nei currently serves as both the Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer of the Company. The Board is of the view that vesting the
roles of both the chairman and chief executive on Mr. Cheng Tun
Nei will provide the Group with strong and consistent leadership in
the development and execution of long term business strategy.

Under code provision A.4.1, non-executive Directors should be
appointed for a specific term and are subject to re-election. All
non-executive Directors of the Company are not appointed for
specific term but are subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election at annual general meeting in accordance with Bye-law 87
of the Bye-laws of the Company.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board assumes leadership and control by providing overall
strategic direction. As at 31 December 2017, the Board consisted
of 6 Directors (including the Chairman of the Board), amongst
which three are executive Directors and the remaining three are
independent non-executive Directors.

The Company continuously seeks to improve the effectiveness of
its Board and recognizes and embraces the benefits of diversity
in the boardroom. Diversity is achieved through different skill and
expertise, regional and industry experience, age, background, race
and other qualities. The Company will develop diversity based on
its own business model and specific needs from time to time.

Corporate Governance Report
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The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive director (“INEDs”), an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company considers all INEDs independent.

The Board has delegated the authority and responsibility for
implementing business strategy and managing day-to-day
administration and operations of the Group’s business to the Chief
Operating Officer and the senior management. While granting
management with substantial autonomy to run and develop the
business, the Board is proactive in reviewing the results of the
delegated functions and work tasks.

To enable them to be kept abreast of the latest changes in
the business, legal and regulatory environment in which the
Group conducts its business, the Company provides continuous
professional training to Directors through invitation to attend
corporate governance seminars for example, organised by
Independent Commission Against Corruption and also circulating
Hong Kong Stock Exchange updates to Directors.

ARRCDEEBIFATESRELTRANE
BIMGRRERHF BB HOF R L
BHEEEFHRBIAL

EFEEEHAKENEERIE AT BRER
REBERNEBERAEFREEEASEBEEA
BRE-NEEREBRRIE BEEERT
EXMBIR EFSXTHTHPUREIEERT
TRERS R R TTAR T

AR FE BT B0 AR ABRM A
NEAREREHEERRFNEH REEE
RAEEEEEGEROEY ERRRERS
BB L -

Name Type of
CPD programme*
= BRI
HREEE
Executive Directors BITES
Cheng Tun Nei 5 E v
Chan Kar Lee Gary PR 5= 71 v
Hong Kim Cheong ik v
Independent Non-executive Directors BIAFERITES
Shum Pui Kay IR E 4
Wah Wang Kei Jackie BN 4
Chow Yu Chun Alexander BAFE v

*

including: briefings from business units, regular information
updates, reading materials relating to regulatory updates,
business visits, attending seminars
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All Directors have full, timely and direct access to the services and
advice from the company secretary of the Company.

During the year, the Board conducted 4 meetings, attendance of
the Directors at the board meetings and general meetings is set out

2REFRHI2E K REERNARFHQF
MWE S B) f i -

RALCBFE EFEHEFIREH EFNE
FEMBRAFRENERLFELBUTR:

as follows:—
Number of meetings attended/eligible to attend
HE  SEBHBEERZRE

Annual Special

General General
Name Board Meeting Meeting
S EEE RREFXE RERIXE
Executive Directors BITESE
Cheng Tun Nei #ER 4/4 171 0/1
Chan Kar Lee Gary Bk 5= A1 4/4 11 1/1
Hong Kim Cheong DAl 4/4 11 11
Independent Non-executive Directors B FEHITEE
Shum Pui Kay o s A 4/4 11 11
Wah Wang Kei Jackie BN 4/4 171 11
Chow Yu Chun Alexander AFE 4/4 11 1/1
COMPANY SECRETARY ATHRE

Ms. Chow So Ying Anna, the company secretary of the Company, is
a full time employee of the Group. She reports to the Chairman of
the Company. She has duly complied with the relevant professional
training requirement under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules. Her
biographical details are set out on page 18 of the annual report.

RARBZATIMERRBRLZ T AAEE 2 2BIE
BoAXTRARREERESBEEER A
AIMED Z RET EMRAIEI 200G T 2B E
EEIRTE - ARINEZ FHBEFERN AT E R
HE188 -

FEREFRAS 2017F E RS 33
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee of the Company (“Remuneration
Committee”) was set up for the purpose of advising the Board on
and reviewing the remuneration policy and other remuneration
related matters for all Directors and senior management.

MEMBERS OF REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Wah Wang Kei Jackie (Chairman)
Mr. Shum Pui Kay
Mr. Chow Yu Chun Alexander

Remuneration package is performance-based and the
recommended remuneration package includes salaries,
discretionary bonus and share options. During the year under
review, the Remuneration Committee reviewed and considered the
remuneration packages of the Directors, taking into account the
experience, qualifications, business performance, market practices
and competitive market conditions. Non-executive Directors are
compensated with the aim to fairly represent their efforts and time
dedicated to the Board.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Company (“Audit Committee”)
was established with specific written terms of reference. The
Audit Committee oversees the audit process and provides an
independent review of the effectiveness of the financial reporting
process and the internal control procedures.

/3 A/mphony Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017
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MEMBERS OF AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Chow Yu Chun Alexander (Chairman)
Mr. Shum Pui Kay
Mr. Wah Wang Kei Jackie

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Audit Committee
reviewed with the external auditor and senior management the
annual results of the Group as well as the accounting principles
and practices being adopted as well as auditing and financial
reporting matters.

Our Chief Financial Officer, senior management and the external
auditor attended the meetings to respond to any queries raised by
members of the Audit Committee.

An independent internal audit service provider also reviewed the
risk management and internal control systems of the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2017 and no material findings had
been identified.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The nomination committee of the Company (“Nomination
Committee”) is made up of three Directors, out of which 2
are INEDs. During the year, it reviews the structure, size and
composition of the board taking into account the nature of
the Group’s business and strategic direction. It also made
recommendations on proposed changes to the Board and assessed
the independence of INEDs. It further made recommendation to
the Board for the appointment or re-appointment of Directors.

MEMBERS OF NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Cheng Tun Nei (Chairman)
Mr. Shum Pui Kay
Mr. Wah Wang Kei Jackie

EZEEENE

BFEEE (ZE)
M| ERE
ERESE

BE2017F12A31A L5 E - BERZEQCER
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BOARD/COMMITTEES MEETINGS AND
MINUTES

During the year under review, management provided information to
the Directors and Board members in a timely manner to keep them
abreast of the latest developments of the Company. The attendance
of individual members of the Board and other Board Committees
meetings during the financial year ended 31 December 2017 is set
out in the table below:

RARBEE ERECERAEZRZEEN
BRHEER FEFHEEEARRNEHER-
BE017F12A3IALMBEFE SEFERE
MEEGKREMER L FLENTX:

Audit Remuneration Nomination
Directors Committee Committee Committee
S EREEE FNEET REEEE
Executive Director BITESE
Cheng Tun Nei EEE N/AZT 38 A N/A“ 3 A 171
Independent Non-executive Directors BILFEHITESE
Shum Pui Kay SoEE A 2/2 2/2 11
Wah Wang Kei Jackie BN 2/2 2/2 1/1
Chow Yu Chun Alexander BF#& 2/2 2/2 N/A 38 A

Minutes of the Board meetings and Board Committees meetings
have been recorded. Draft and final versions of minutes of the
Board and other Board Committees were circulated to all Directors
or Committees members for comments within a reasonable time
after the meeting.

NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

Under the Bye-laws, one-third of the Directors (including INEDs)
must retire, from office by rotation and every Director shall be
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.
The retiring Director shall be eligible for re-election at each annual
general meeting. Mr. Hong Kim Cheong (“Mr. Hong”) and Mr.
Shum Pui Kay (“Mr. Shum”) will retire at the forthcoming annual
general meeting and being eligible, Mr. Shum offers himself for
re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting. Mr. Hong
would not offer himself for re-election and he will retire as Director
upon the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting.

Details of the biographies of Mr. Shum are set out in the circular to
be sent to the Shareholders.

3 6 Symphony Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE, INTERNAL
CONTROL, GROUP RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board has overall responsibility of the Group’s system of
internal control, corporate governance practices and assessment
and management of risks. Procedures are designed to identify and
manage risks that might adversely impact the Group’s business
operations. Through the establishment of policies and internal
guidelines such as the approval of detailed operational and
financial reports, budgets and plans provided by the management
of the business operations; inhouse code for the approval and
control of expenditures; periodic review of actual results against
budget or forecast; annual review by the Audit Committee of the
ongoing work of the Group'’s internal audit and risk management
functions, the effectiveness of the internal control systems is
ensured. An independent service provider was appointed in March
2016 to assist the Board to monitor the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control system of the Group. The service
provider performed annual risk management and internal control
review of the procedures, systems and controls of the Company in
accordance with “Internal Control Integrated Framework”. A Risk
Management and Internal Control Review Report was submitted to
the Audit Committee and the Board on a half-yearly basis so that
remedial actions can be taken by formalizing management policies
to manage risk in a systematic manner.

Compliance procedures are in place to ensure adherence to
applicable laws, rules and regulations in particular, those with
significant impact on the Group. As far as the Company is aware
of, the Group has complied, in material respect, with the relevant
rules and regulations promulgated by the relevant regulatory bodies
to which the Group operates its business in and holds the relevant
required licences for conducting certain licensed activities.

EXEL ABEE KEEREE

EFEEREFAEENANBEEHE EE
BER ARTHEEERKR EFSHEBHE
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BZETHEENER BB THREFRBUER
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— 2B RIEHEE D N2016F3FEERT - A
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BN - ZRIEHEREFRARANREF -
R REERIE NSRS ERE | #TF
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

A summary of remuneration paid to the external auditor of the
Company, BDO Limited, for audit services and non-audit services
for the financial year ended 31 December 2017 is as follows:

ZRETN &

BZE2017F12A31 B I BFE - T AR A
B AR EEREREBAER AR
FriR 8 Bz IR M IEE R BH € 4R & 40
T

2017
HKD’000
FHET

Nature of services R E
Audit services Eit iR 1,950
Non-audit services FEFETARTE 318

SECURITIES TRANSACTION

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) as set
out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. Having made specific
enquiry of all Directors, each of them confirmed his compliance
with the required standard set out in the Model Code for the
financial year ended 31 December 2017. Relevant employees
who are likely to be in possession of unpublished price-sensitive
information of the Group are also subject to compliance with
guidelines on no less exacting terms than the Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR
FINANCIAL REPORTING

With the assistance of the finance department, the Directors
acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017
and confirm that the financial statements contained herein give a
true and fair view of the results and state of affairs of the Group for
the period under review. The Directors consider that the financial
statements have been prepared in conformity with the statutory
requirements and the applicable accounting standards.

3 8 Symphony Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017
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Further discussion and analysis of the Group's performance can
be found in the Operation Review section of this annual report
from page 8 to 14. Further explanation as to how the Company
generates or preserves value over the longer term and the strategy
for delivering the Company’s objectives is found in the Chairman’s
Statement from page 3 to 7.

To maintain and promote better and effective control within the
Group, the Directors have reviewed the soundness, adequacy
and application of accounting, financial and other controls of the
Company.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group entered into
the following disclosed connected transactions with its connected
persons:

(i)  under a margin financing agreement collectively signed
by Mr. Cheng Tun Nei a director of the Company, Goldsilk
Capital Limited (a company wholly-owned by Mr. Cheng)
and the subsidiary of the Company on 31 December 2015,
the aggregate margin financing loan facility was set at
HKD10,000,000 for term of three years; and

(i) under a margin financing agreement signed by Ms. Fung
Kim Wan Ewim, a director of the subsidiary of the Company
and the subsidiary of the Company on 31 December 2015,
the aggregate margin financing loan facility was set at
HKD10,000,000 for term of three years.

The transactions adhere to the Margin Financing Policy of
China Rise Securities Assets Management Company Limited,
which is defined as per guidance from the Securities & Futures
Commission. All transactions (including but not limited to exposure
limit, margin loan outstanding) are subject to review and monitoring
on a daily basis by credit, Compliance & Responsible Officer,
whereby margin calls if any shall be followed up with remedial
action accordingly.

BREAKERBRNE - TN REDITERAR
EECEEFI4ENERRBE—H-MARAR
RIS REELREBENERRERAR
BT B R REMRULE R E3AEE7TAENT
EE e

RERAEENES MEERTFAUNEE &
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FHERIER 5
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() WBEARAEEGEELE BEERE
%4 7 A FlGoldsilk Capital Limited &2 42X 7]
2B RARIN2015F12 8318 £ FEFT 2
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(iii)

40

On 27 February 2017, Arena Shanghai Industrial Co. Limited
(“Arena Shanghai”), Shanghai Descente Commercial Co.
Ltd (“Shanghai Descente”), Descente Ltd. (“Descente”) and
the Company entered into an agreement for a joint venture
(“JV agreement”), which includes the distribution agreement
(“Distribution Agreement”) pursuant to which Shanghai
Descente appointed Arena Shanghai as its exclusive
distributor for the sale and distribution of swimwear and other
sportswear, shoes and related accessories (“Products”) in the
People’s Republic of China (“PRC").

After execution of the JV Agreement and the Distribution
Agreement, Shanghai Descente was issued 30% of the
equity interest of Arena Shanghai and thus became a
connected person of the Company at the subsidiary
level under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Thus, the
transactions entered into between Arena Shanghai with
Shanghai Descente pursuant to the Distribution Agreement
became continuing connected transactions of the Company
under the Listing Rules.

The term of the Distribution Agreement commenced on 27
February 2017 and would end on 31 December 2021 (both
days inclusive) (“Term”). During the Term, Arena Shanghai is
required to make minimum purchases in each contract year.

On 31st December 2017 an agreement supplemental to
the Distribution Agreement was entered into, revising the
annual caps under the Distribution Agreement. The revised
annual caps of each of the contract year during the Term
would become: RMB130,053,000 (2017), RMB136,312,500
(2018), RMB146,221,500 (2019), RMB180,919,500
(2020), RMB200,104,500 (2021).

Symphony Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017
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The revised annual caps were determined by reference
to the demand for swimwear products in PRC market, in
both wholesale and retail business taking into account
multiple distribution channels online and offline, which was
higher than originally expected at the time of executing the
Distribution Agreement. It was further expected that the
demand for Japanese-branded swimwear products is likely to
increase due to Tokyo Olympics in 2020.

The price payable by Arena Shanghai for products under the
Distribution Agreement is determined on a “cost-plus” basis
on which Arena Shanghai's purchase price is equal to the
landed cost of the goods purchased (including any port fees,
taxes, custom duties that may apply) multiplied by a factor
of 1.41. As the Company have previously been appointed
China distributors for various international brands over the
past years, the Company possesses relevant industry and
business experience and has determined that procedures
for reviewing and approving price lists or guidelines are not
necessary.

In determining whether pricing basis is on terms no less
favourable than the terms from independent third parties, the
Company has taken into account and conducted comparison
based upon (a) previous licensing and distribution
agreements with other sports brands; (b) sourcing cost of the
raw material and the production scale of the Products; (c)
quality of the Products as some of them were imported from
Japan direct; and (d) pricing basis of existing licensees of the
Company'’s owned sports brands.

The transactions are reviewed and monitored by internal

designated team.

The independent non-executive directors of the Company believed

that the above continuing connected transactions have been

entered into: —

(a)

in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Company;
on normal commercial terms; and
according to the agreement governing them on terms that

are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the Company’s
shareholders as a whole.
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BDO Limited, the Company’s auditor, was engaged to report
on the Group's disclosed continuing connected transactions in
accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements
3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or
Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with reference
to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. BDO
Limited has issued its unqualified letter containing its findings and
conclusions in respect of the continuing connected transactions
disclosed above by the Group in accordance with 14A.56 of the
Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by
the Company to the Stock Exchange.

SHAREHOLDERS’ COMMUNICATION

The Board recognises the importance of maintaining an effective
two-way communication with its stakeholders. Designated
members of the management meet with institutional investors
on an on-going basis providing them with the latest and
comprehensive information about the corporate developments of
the Group. In addition, stakeholders can click into the Company’s
website (www.symphonyholdings.com) to obtain updated
information in a timely manner.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Shareholders may convene a special general meeting in the
following manner:

Shareholders holding not less than 10% of the paid up capital of
the Company carrying the voting rights at general meetings of the
Company shall at all times have the right, by written request to
the Board or the company’s secretary, to require a special general
meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of any
business specified in such written request.
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PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained sufficient public float throughout the
year ended 31 December 2017.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

The Group realises the importance of environmental protection in
pursuing long-term sustainability. In particular, the Group promotes
energy saving and recycling of materials at our headquarters
such as switching off idle lightings, air-conditioning and electrical
appliances. The Group also encourages the use of recycle
papers and doubled sided printing. The Group is committed to
improving environmental sustainability and will closely monitor the
performance. In accordance with Rule 13.91 of and Appendix
27 to the Listing Rules, the Company’s Environmental, Social and
Governance Report will be available on its website within three
months from the publication of this annual report.

KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES

Human resources are considered valuable asset of the Group.
Development and retention of human talent are considered vital.

The Group is committed to providing staff with a pleasant, safe and
healthy working environment. Competitive remuneration package
and share option incentive are provided to eligible employees.

KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH CUSTOMERS

We are committed to offer a broad and diverse range of life-
style, value-for-money, good quality products with our brand to
our customers. We stay connected with our customers through
maintaining VIP database, ongoing communications, telephone,
emails, marketing materials and social media. Training are also
provided to sales personnel to provide quality and value-added
customer services.

In addition, the Group will continue to widen the customer base by
utilizing and maximizing current network.
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KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH SUPPLIERS/
DISTRIBUTORS

We have developed long-standing relationships with our vendors
and take great care to ensure that they share our commitment
to quality and ethics. We carefully select and assess our vendors
through track record, experience, reputation, ability to provide
quality products.

We distribute certain products to end customers through third-
party distributors. We work with our distributors like business
partners and ensure that they also share our view for upholding
brand value and customer services, specifically focusing on
attracting and retaining customers in order to drive sales growth.
We also monitor the financial position and repayment history of
these distributors and their sales performance.
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IBDO

www.bdo.com.hk

FEE ¢ +852 2218 8288
{5H : +852 2815 2239

www.bdo.com.hk

TO THE MEMBERS OF SYMPHONY HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Symphony Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) set out on pages 54 to 221, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2017, and the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group
as at 31 December 2017, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the “Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements” section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's “Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants” (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Tel : +852 2218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters.

FAIR VALUE OF INVESTMENT PROPERTIES,
LEASEHOLD LAND AND BUILDINGS, AND BUILDINGS
CLASSIFIED AS LEVEL 3 RECURRING FAIR VALUE
MEASUREMENT

Refer to Notes 14 and 15 to the consolidated financial statements
and the accounting policies on pages 84 and 87 respectively.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s investment properties,
leasehold land and buildings, and buildings classified as property,
plant and equipment with carrying amounts of approximately
HKD1,365,656,000, HKD284,400,000 and HKD339,806,000
respectively (2016: HKD919,268,000, HKD nil and
HKD304,253,000 respectively) were measured at their fair values.
These fair value measurements were classified as level 3 recurring
fair value measurement for which the inputs used for determining
the fair value were not largely based on observable market data.

Independent external valuations were obtained from independent
firm of professional property valuers to support the fair value
estimations.

Valuations of investment properties were determined by two
separate methodologies, including direct comparison approach
for Shenyang, Beijing, Shanghai, Chongging and Hong Kong
properties and capitalisation of rental receivables approach for
Hong Kong properties, which required significant judgement
by taking into account of the properties characteristics, such
as location, size, time, floor, age and quality of comparable
transactions for Shenyang, Beijing, Shanghai, Chongging and
Hong Kong properties, and expected rental growth rate, term
yield, reversionary yield and market rent for Hong Kong properties
respectively.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

FAIR VALUE OF INVESTMENT PROPERTIES,
LEASEHOLD LAND AND BUILDINGS, AND BUILDINGS
CLASSIFIED AS LEVEL 3 RECURRING FAIR VALUE
MEASUREMENT (CONTINUED)

Valuations of leasehold land and buildings and buildings classified
as property, plant and equipment were estimated by using direct
comparison approach for Shanghai and Hong Kong properties, by
taking into account of the properties characteristics, such as time,
floor, age, quality, size and view of comparable transactions, and
depreciated replacement cost approach for Shenyang properties
based on the properties highest and best use, which does not
differ from their actual use, in the absence of comparable sales
evidence.

We identified the fair value estimations of these investment
properties, leasehold land and buildings and buildings classified
as property, plant and equipment as a key audit matter because of
the significant judgement and high level of estimation uncertainty
involved in the valuations of these assets and the significant fair
value amounts involved.

Our response:

- Evaluated the independent external valuers’ competence,
capabilities and objectivity;

- Assessed the appropriateness of the methodologies used
and reasonableness of the key assumptions used in the
valuations; and

- Checked, on a sample basis, the accuracy and relevance of
the input data used in the valuations.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)
IMPAIRMENT OF LOANS AND TRADE RECEIVABLES

Refer to Notes 22 and 24 to the consolidated financial statements
and the accounting policies on page 100.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s trade and other receivables
and provision for impairment thereon amounted to approximately
HKD146,694,000 and HKD31,638,000 (2016: HKD142,508,000
and HKD27,741,000) respectively. In addition, loans receivable
and provision for impairment thereon amounted to approximately
HKD237,132,000 and HKD16,000,000 (2016: HKD333,810,000
and HKD8,000,000) respectively.

The identification of impairment indicators and the determination
of the amount of impairment loss of the Group's loans and trade
receivables require the application of significant judgement by
management, in particular, the estimation of timing and amount of
estimated future cash flows.

We identified the impairment of loans and trade receivables as a
key audit matter because of the significant judgement involved
and high level of estimation uncertainty and the significance of the
carrying amounts of loans and trade receivables to the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.

Our response:

- Tested the design and implementation of key controls over
the impairment assessment, including those in respect of
identifying impairment indicators;

- Challenged assumptions relating to the timing and
recognition of impairment losses and corroborating them to
underlying data such as settlement schedules agreed with
the Group’s customers; and

- Assessed the sufficiency of value of collateral held by the
Group as security for its loans receivable.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)
IMPAIRMENT OF GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Refer to Notes 20 and 17 to the consolidated financial statements
and the accounting policies on pages 82 and 90 respectively.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had goodwill and
intangible assets with indefinite useful lives of approximately
HKD33,796,000 and HKD146,417,000 (2016: HKD35,590,000
and HKD146,417,000), respectively. As further described in Notes
4(e) and 4(j)(ii) to the consolidated financial statements, these
assets are subject to annual impairment testing.

Management concluded that there was no impairment in respect
of the goodwill and intangible assets. This conclusion was
based on the determination of recoverable amounts of the cash
generating units or the assets. The determination of recoverable
amounts required significant judgement and assumptions made
by management with respect to the underlying future cash flows
dependent on factors such as future revenue growth and gross
margins, and the applicable discount rate.

We identified the impairment of goodwill and intangible assets as
a key audit matter because of the significant judgement involved
in the determination of recoverable amounts and the significance
of carrying amounts of these assets to the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.

Our response:

Checked the arithmetic accuracy of the impairment testing;

- Assessed the reasonableness of discount rates and growth
rates applied to the impairment testing;

- Challenged the reasonableness of other key assumptions
made by management when preparing the cash flow
projections, based on our knowledge of the business and
industry; and

- Checked input data to supporting evidence such as approved
budgets and considering the reasonableness of these
budgets.
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OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company’s
annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group’s

financial reporting process. The Audit Committee assists the
directors in discharging their responsibility in this regard.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is made
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE BB GaMBRR2ZEE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL (48)
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal
control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

/5 2//mphony Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017

THRERET AN ARES ARGHEE
MBEETIEF - (BB MUY BEREREE
HEOBRMEERER

AEEEMRAEFERRNGEE M REL
SR MR EN S -

HEERAKECL ST ERNIREHE
&R - IRIBFTERMERE  BERD
FHEESBEXBAEENEATETE
femA e EsYE ERENSELERD
ELXBARRRE - MRAZHEMRRFEEX
THEEMN AV EEZBMBRERIRR
FEREIRGEAMBHRPOBBEKE-
BREABORETT IR EEER]
AZBENNE R - A BE N AR EEN R
HEMRE B EFAESHERTRE ° AT K
KEHKBRAALEN SKETERE

g

AERAMERRNEREIHRL R A
MAR BREEE UANGEeMBHRRES
TERBRRSMER-

Y BERBEANERIEBETHNMBEEH
EEGT R - BEMETRE  AEHRAM
BHREABRER -AZBMHEE EKEFH
ST - BE B MBTT - AR BB AT E
RAZZHEE-



Independent Auditor’s Report ¥& 37 % 2 B 3k &

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants

TANG Tak Wah

Practising Certificate Number: P06262

Hong Kong, 16 March 2018
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z=20174 128318 It F &

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

2017 2016
NOTES HKD’000 HKD'000
Hizz FH#ET FET
Revenue B 7 348,919 363,856
Cost of sales SHERA (119,822) (91,998)
Gross profit E7 229,097 271,858
Other income and gains H A A R s 10(a) 16,852 11,382
Distribution and selling expenses DIHRHERT (87,056) (100,840)
Administrative expenses THAX (195,393) (135,141)
Finance costs EE VIR 8 (41,965) (18,429)
Other expenses Hi 10(b) (21,905) (19,974)
Increase in fair value of investment properties REYENTBELELN 197,663 20,370
Share of results of joint ventures EEEEXE 19,407 964
Profit before income tax expenses B P15 3 52 H A 7 116,700 30,190
Income tax expenses FriS®i s 9 (58,951) (16,145)
Profit for the year F [ i A 10(c) 57,749 14,045
Other comprehensive income, net of tax Hith2EBA > BRBL1E
ltems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss: TeEMIEEEEMNIER
Surplus arising on revaluation of properties MES-HAESE B 61,819 29,222
Deferred tax liabilities arising on revaluation of MESHAEE L
properties ELEHIBEEE (12,316) =
49,503 29,222
ltems that may be reclassified subsequently HigBesmoEs
to profit or loss: ?»a SHIER :
Share of other comprehensive income of REECESG
joint ventures Hi 2@k A 5,010 (2,349)
Exchange differences arising on translation of TEINETS FTE £/
foreign operations EXTEER 160,187 (94,041)
165,197 (96,390)
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax ~ EE E2E A - B 14 214,700 (67,168)
Total comprehensive income for the year FEPEBALER 272,449 (53,123)
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income 4= & 2 H U EHE &
For the year ended 31 December 2017 (£ 20174 12A31H It F &

2017 2016
NOTES HKD'000 HKD'000
st THERT FHET
Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to: PGSR F, (B518) :
Owners of the Company ERREBA 41,018 27,746
Non-controlling interests ESEE o 16,731 (13,701)
57,749 14,045
Total comprehensive income attributable to: eI 2T 482 :
Owners of the Company RARHEAE A 247,835 (21,377)
Non-controlling interests RS 24,614 (31,746)
272,449 (63,123)
Earnings per share: SEEH 13
Basic (HK cents) 2R (B 1.41 1.03
Diluted (HK cents) EE OBl 1.41 1.03
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

AR e ISR SR

As at 31 December 2017 2017412 831H

2017 2016
NOTES HKD’000 HKD'000
Vi3 F#T FHET
Non-current assets ¥rREEE
Property, plant and equipment M B K 14 659,912 596,754
Investment properties REMZE 15 1,365,656 1,155,268
Prepaid lease payments BNHEERIEA 16 542,292 234,213
Intangible assets B EE 17 146,417 146,417
Interests in joint ventures BECEIER 18 167,058 156,254
Interest in an associate e 19 = =
Loan to an associate EXRTHELE 19 5,996 5,587
Goodwill EES 20 33,796 35,590
Deferred tax assets RIETRIB A= 29 10,349 18,084
Club debenture SHES 1,876 1,876
Restricted bank deposits SR HISRITER 26(a) 23,597 3,337
Statutory deposits for financial services business ERRTEEEHEEFRK 200 200
2,957,149 2,353,580
Current assets RENEE
Inventories FE 21 61,122 20,874
Trade and other receivables B 5 R EMEUKEER 20 146,694 142,508
Amounts due from joint ventures [EE E R EFIR 18 - 53,069
Amount due from an associate JE W Bh = b 2 FR0E 19 27,912 =
Advances to customers in margin financing RIETFTRESRERFPZ
R 23 110,858 119,656
Loans receivable e 4 & X 24 237,132 333,810
Loan to non-controlling interests ERTIEERER - 1,668
Prepaid lease payments B ERE 16 14,171 6,617
Trading securities BEEH 25 9,118 10,714
Restricted bank deposit SR HISRITER 26(a) 1,632 1,533
Bank balances and cash — held on RITEBERE K
behalf of customers BE#EHH 26(b) 24,008 22,679
Bank balances and cash RITEBRERE 26(c) 137,326 328,468
769,973 1,041,596
Assets of disposal group classified as held for sale DERBELESHENEE 27 507,319 =
1,277,292 1,041,596
Current liabilities RENERE
Trade and other payables B REMEMER 28 174,361 258,336
Amounts due to joint ventures e & &t EFIA 18 4,825 -
Bank borrowings RITER 30 732,063 173,082
Tax payable FET IR 14,844 8,729
926,093 440,647
Liabilities of disposal group classified as held for sale D #AAFELEMARIEE 27 132,302 =
1,058,395 440,647
Net current assets BB EFE 218,897 600,949
Total assets less current liabilities BERBERABER 3,176,046 2.954,529
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position %= & Bl #& AR 7 3=
As at 31 December 2017 7201712 A31H

2017 2016
NOTES HKD’000 HKD'000
it TF#T FHET

Non-current liabilities kRBEMR
Bank borrowings RITER 30 424,864 546,409
Loan from non-controlling interests REFEEREZER 45 600 153,254
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIEE E 29 153,219 87,556
578,683 787,219
Net Assets BEFE 2,597,363 2,167,310

Equity i

Share capital N 31 295,581 270,575
Reserves ] 34 2,248,286 1,907,242
Equity attributable to owners of the Company RRBEE AELED 2,543,867 2177817
Non-controlling interests TR 45 53,496 (10,507)
Total Equity MBS 2,597,363 2,167,310

The consolidated financial statements on pages 54 to 221 were BN ESABE EF221 ENERAE MIEHRERTIBAAR
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 16 RIEEER2018F3 A 168 iz IR #E T2 - I

March 2018 and are signed on its behalf by: A NIEEREKES
Cheng Tun Nei Chan Kar Lee, Gary
EER =
Director Director
EF EF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
e EmPER

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z=20174 128318 It F &

Attributable to owners of the Company

FATHANEL
Properties Share Non-
Share Contributed Share revaluation options Translation  Statutory  Retained controlling
capital surplus  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests Total
WEER FEIRE izl
BEx BARS RHGEE & e ERGE EERE BERd @t i st
HKD'000  HKD'000O ~ HKD'000O ~ HKD'000  HKD'0O0 ~ HKD'000O ~ HKD'000  HKD'000  HKD'000  HKD'000  HKD'000
TET THT TAT TAT TAT TAT TAT FEL FEL FET FET
(Note 31) ~ (Note 34)  (Note34)  (Note34)  (Note34)  (Note34)  (Note34)  (Note 34) (Note 45)
(HzE31)  (FisE34)  (MaE34)  (WisEad)  (B9EE34)  (WHaEs4)  (MEE34)  (MizEs4) (B7E45)
At 1 January 2016 1201651718 269,775 523213 936,965 143,617 1,849 (42,363) 2406 483673 2319135 150,579 2,469,714
Profit for the year EEET - - = - - - - 21746 27746 (13701) 14045
Surplus arising on revaluation #1EER-MEE 2 BS
of properties - - - 26,620 - - - - 26,620 2,602 29,222
Share of other comprehensive &2 MEAEE A
income of joint ventures 2EHBA - - - - - (2,349) - - (2,349) - (2,349)
Exchange differences arising /85N EHFRE£H)
on translation of foreign ERNEZR
operations - - - - - (73,394) - - (73,394)  (20,647)  (94,041)
Other comprehensive income £ 2 AR A
for the year - - - 26,620 - (75,743) = = (49,123) (18,045  (67,168)
Total comprehensive income € 2 ER A %8
for the year - - - 26,620 - (75,743) - 27,746 (21377)  (31,746)  (53,123)
Transfer to statutory reserve  EEAT R - - - - - - 73 (73) - - -
Capital contribution from FEREREREA
non-controlling interests - - - - - - - - - 1,668 1,668
Share-based payments WD %A - - - - 1,481 - - - 1481 = 1,481
Exercise of share options {TfERE AR iE
(Note 32) (BzE32) 800 - 5,110 - (1,445) - - - 4,465 - 4,465
Lapse of share options BREXN - - - - (1,885) = = 1,885 - - -
Acquisition of non-controlling W BE FEHE R A 25
interests - - - 216 - 478 - (72607)  (71913) (131,008)  (202,921)
Dividend paid (Note 12) BIRE (fiFE12) = = = = = = - (63974) (63 974) = (63,974)
At 31 December 2016 R2016F12A31H 270575 523213 942,075 170,453 - (117,628) 2479 386,650 2177817 (10,507) 2,167,310
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity & & fEi= 8 Bk
For the year ended 31 December 2017 (£ 20174 12A31H It F &

Attributable to owners of the Company

FATHANEL
Properties Share Non-
Share Contributed Share revaluation options Translation  Statutory  Retained controlling
capital surplus  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests Total
WEERE  BRE iR
kA& EHESG ROGRE Tkt i ERGE AEHE 2FRH @5t [ 35 @it
HKD'000  HKD'000O ~ HKD'000O ~ HKD'000  HKD'000 ~ HKD'000O ~ HKD'000  HKD'000 ~ HKD'000  HKD'000  HKD'000
TET ThT THET TAT TAT TAT TAT FEL FEL FET FET
(Note 31) ~ (Note34)  (Note34)  (Note34)  (Note34)  (Note34)  (Note34)  (Note 34) (Note 45)
(HzE31)  (FisE34)  (WHaE34)  (FisEad)  (BEE34)  (PHaE34)  (MEE34)  (MizEs4) GEZD)
At 1 January 2017 1201741718 270575 523213 942,075 170,453 - (117,628) 2479 386,650 2177817 (10,507) 2,167,310
Profit for the year ERRF - = = = - - - 41018 41018 16731 57,749
Surplus arising on revaluation #IEER-AEE 2 BS
of properties - - - 61,819 - - - - 61,819 - 61,819
Deferred tax liabilities arising  #I¥EHMEEZ
on revaluation of properties  EEFHIBEE - - - (12316) - - - - (12316) - (12318)
Share of other comprehensive &2 MEAEE A
income of joint ventures EELON - - - - - 5,010 - - 5,010 - 5,010
Exchange differences arising /85N EHFRE£H)
on translation of foreign EREZR
operations - - - - - 152,304 - - 152,304 7,883 160,187
Other comprehensive income  FE £ 2 AR A
for the year - - - 49,503 - 157314 - - 206817 7883 214,700
Total comprehensive income € 2 E R A #%8
for the year - - - 49,503 - 157314 - 41018 247835 24614 272449
Capital contribution from FERESERTA
non-controlling interests - - - - - - - - - 8,523 8,523
Share-based payments PARRR 2 A+ - - - - 1,102 - - - 1,102 - 1,102
Exercise of warrants (Note 33) 17{# Rk 12
(Fi5t33) 6 - 52 - - - - - 58 - 58
Acquisition of non-controlling W BE FEHE R A 25
interests 25,000 - 114,633 - - (11,346) - - 128,287 30,866 159,153
Dividend paid (Note 12) BIRE (fiFE12) = = = = = = - (11,232)  (11,232) = (11,232)
At 31 December 2017 R2017F12A31H 295,581 523213 1,056,760 219,956 1,102 28,340 2479 416436 2,543,867 5349% 2,597,363
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

relflemEaR

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z=20174 128318 It F &

2017 2016
NOTES HKD’000 HKD'000
i FH#ET FHET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES HEED
Profit before income tax expenses B PSS A 2 2 7 116,700 30,190
Adjustments for: R
Interest income F B WA (3,550) (3,814)
Finance costs BE B AR 41,965 18,429
Share of results of joint ventures EEELEXR (19,407) (964)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment M BEREETE 33,192 34,779
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments T & RIRH 13,002 6,958
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment HEME  BE M EEBE 945 10
Write off of property, plant and equipment W R RS R - 8
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries =) EENGT s (1,204) (38)
Fair value loss on trading securities BEEESF AT EEER 3,640 1,630
Increase in fair value of investment properties BEWMFEATEBLMN (197,663) (20,370)
Bad debts written off B 1 s8R Bk = 3,362
Reversal of provision for redundancy costs EHEREGERD (2,000) -
Reversal of allowance for inventories, net GFEHEERER 58 (13,608) (3,308)
Provision of allowance for bad and doubtful debts RIBREE 11,897 11,874
Share-based payments PARR 9 2 1+ 1,102 1481
Operating cash flows before movements BEEC BTN
in working capital REBR SR (14,989) 80,227
(Increase)/decrease in inventories FE (#),/H (26,640) 41,296
Increase in trade and other receivables B 5 R E At e Ut BE SR8 0 (9,360) (31,918)
Decrease in advances to customers in RETREEBERFZ
margin financing BFUR D 8,798 6,394
Decrease in loans receivable JEU E TR A 88,678 287,386
(Increase)/decrease in bank balances and RITHHRIRE (M),
cash — held on behalf of customers BL-REFHE (1,329) 1,815
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables B 5 L H R BR R
#m/ Cd) 25,484 (9,518)
Increase in amounts due to joint ventures & & b3 SRR N 4,765 -
Increase in amount due from an associate JFE M Bt 5 1 3 SRIEIE 0 (27,912) -
(Increase)/decrease in trading securities EEHF (Em),/md (2,044) 4,076
Cash generated from operations RELEEBRRE 45,451 379,758
Overseas tax paid BN B (3,368) (11,413)
Hong Kong profits tax paid BEAEBFEH (53) (2,720)
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES RELLEHIRE T 42,030 365,625
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows I SR & RE R
For the year ended 31 December 2017 (£ 20174 12A31H It F &

2017 2016
NOTES HKD’000 HKD'000
i FH#ET FHBT
INVESTING ACTIVITIES BREEH
Acquisition of subsidiaries, net of cash acquired G- =NG
(MBRFEzHE) 47 (84,467) -
Acquisition of joint ventures, net of cash acquired WEAEE
(HBRFTS2E &) - (157,639)
Advance to an associate BT -HELEER - (5,587)
Repayment from/(advance to) joint ventures EBEB/EXT)EE
¥R 49,176 (53,069)
Payment for acquisition of non-controlling interests AT SR R A (15,300) (202,921)
Repayment of loan to non-controlling interests B T IR ER 1,668 =
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEWE BEREE (9,225) (11,212)
Purchase of investment properties BEREWME (13,316) -
Addition to prepaid lease payments B EFRIEE N (310,332) -
(Increase)/decrease in restricted bank deposits TR EIRITER (),
VL (20,000) 8,657
Interest received SRS 3,550 3,682
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE  BE K&K
plant and equipment 204 29
Disposal of subsidiaries, net of cash disposed of HEHBAR
(MBEHEZRE) 46 2,993 38
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES AREERBR & FHE (395,049) (418,122)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES RIEEE 48
Proceeds from issue of new shares under RIERE R ERT 2
share option scheme BITH D 2 W = 4,466
Proceeds from issue of new shares RIEITE RIRAEE AT
upon exercise of warrants Dz s 42 =
New bank borrowings obtained EEHMRITER 455,706 =
Repayment of bank borrowings RITEFER (245,412) (18,000
Capital injection from non-controlling interests REFERERFE 8,523 =
Advance from non-controlling interests REFEER RS 2 B 600 -
Dividend paid BARE (11,232) (53,974)
Interest paid BARFIE (40,599) (18,429)
NET CASH FROM/(USED IN) FINANCING ACTIVITIES R B/ (AR it & /5%
e FH 167,628 (85,937)
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS IR& MIBeEEWR D 558 (185,391) (138,434)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FNRELREEEY
AT BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 328,468 470,025
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES HNETE R BEHIRE K
ON CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ReEBYvE (5,751) (3,123)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF THE FREG MR EEY -
YEAR, REPRESENTED BY BANK BALANCES AND BRIT 4 IR &
CASH 137,326 328,468
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
LR e B IS SR R MY

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z=20174 128318 It F &

GENERAL 1. —iR&EH

Symphony Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is an SRR EBRAR ([AAAE]) IR BERE
exempted company with limited liability incorporated in EMK L2 EREEREMTLAR - HEH
Bermuda. Its shares are listed on the Stock Exchange of REBBERZMAR QA £ K
Hong Kong Limited. The address of its registered office ## == % A Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
is Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda® = 22 ¥ 25 5
Bermuda and its principal place of business is 10th Floor, BB AREBE51057 5B NE10E -
Island Place Tower, 510 King's Road, North Point, Hong

Kong.

The principal activities of the Group, comprising the AEB (BREARAMENBAR) T2
Company and its subsidiaries, are retailing and provision %5 7 oo h AR 5% ~ i Uk AR 35 R FR 14 ) = 5 B
of sourcing services for branded apparel, swimwear and HERE RS EEREE [PONY | Mg
accessories; development and management of “PONY” MERBERFEYE BEREERER
brand; property investment and holding; management and B RESmRS (BREHFLL  RED
operation of outlet malls; provision of financial services BE - HE  BEREE ETES RIS
(including securities brokerage, margin financing, money ) REERTMIE -

lending, underwriting and placing of listed securities and

financial consultancy); and operation of duty-free shops.

The principal activities of the Company’s principal AR EEMBRARMNEZEBHNEGE
subsidiaries are set out in Note 44 to the consolidated B 75 ¥R 2% BT 544 o

financial statements.

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. RNBEUMBHREER ([F#

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(A) ADOPTION OF NEW/REVISED HKFRSS -
EFFECTIVE 1 JANUARY 2017
The Group has adopted the following amendments and
interpretations of standards, which are relevant to the
Group's financial statements for the first time adoption.

AR ZEA])

(A) IREMENRTEIETEEMBRE
E2A-1A2017F1A 184X
7N E B B RN T 51 BN B B 7S
HEREBH LB RRE-

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative ARG ER REXHE
ETHRHBETA
Amendments to HKAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax ] HAZEEERER
Assets for Unrealised Losses F2RMETA  EEHBEAE
Annual Improvements to Amendments to HKFRS 12, BEMGRERDN BAERBREED
HKFRSs 2014-2016 Disclosure of Interests in 0146220165  FL2RAEBIIA
Cycle Other Entities BRvEERE REEMZENER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %z & 81 ¥ 3R R i 5
For the year ended 31 December 2017 (£ 20174 12A31H It F &

2. RPEEMBRERL ([FE
MEHREEA]) (&)

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

(A) ADOPTION OF NEW/REVISED HKFRSS - (A) IREVHRETEIETEBUMER

EFFECTIVE 1 JANUARY 2017 (CONTINUED)

Amendments to HKAS 7 — Disclosure Initiative

The amendments introduce an additional disclosure
that will enable users of financial statements to
evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing
activities.

The adoption of the amendments has led to the
additional disclosure presented in the notes to the cash
flow statement, Note 48 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Amendments to HKAS 12 — Recognition of Deferred
Tax Assets for Unrealised Losses

The amendments relate to the recognition of
deferred tax assets and clarify some of the necessary
considerations, including how to account for deferred
tax assets related to debt instruments measured at fair
value.

The adoption of the amendments has no impact on
these financial statements as the clarified treatment
is consistent with the manner in which the Group has
previously recognised deferred tax assets.

&EXH|-R20175E1 1B &R

(%)
EEEERFE7HOIIETTE — 1% F
M

ZFIERT Sl AR IKER - HE I 15 3R
%Zﬁ%%T%EﬂﬁE@%EiZ

& %

RNz S ETBHN R RERN T
ARG B R R M sE48h 27| K fb i

2 °

H

BFETIRRE12701ETE — X
B EIEE R BEE
ZEEEERECHBEEEEBAR
BEETVEZEE BEEEQT
BEENEEIAAENELTHE
BEZIAALR -
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

(A) ADOPTION OF NEW/REVISED HKFRSS -

EFFECTIVE 1 JANUARY 2017 (CONTINUED)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle
— Amendments to HKFRS 12, Disclosure of Interests
in Other Entities

The amendments issued under the annual
improvements process make small, non-urgent
changes to standards where they are currently
unclear. They include amendments to HKFRS 12,
Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities, to clarify that
the disclosure requirements of HKFRS 12, other than
the requirements to disclose summarised financial
information, also apply to an entity's interests in other
entities classified as held for sale or discontinued
operations in accordance with HKFRS 5, Non-Current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations.

The adoption of the amendments to HKFRS 12 has
no impact on these financial statements as the latter
treatment is consistent with the manner in which the
Group has previously dealt with disclosures relating
to its interests in other entities classified as held for
sale or discontinued operations in accordance with
HKFRS 5.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %z & B %5 38 3% My 5%
For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z=20174 128318 It F &

RNEEMBREREL ([FE
MRS EA]) (&)

(A) RENHET EIETTEEMBR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %z & B ¥ 3R R i 5%
For the year ended 31 December 2017 #{Z2017F12A31H It F &

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

(B) NEW/REVISED HKFRSS THAT HAVE BEEN

ISSUED BUT ARE NOT YET EFFECTIVE

The following new/revised HKFRSs, potentially relevant
to the Group’s financial statements, have been issued,
but are not yet effective and have not been early
adopted by the Group. The Group’s current intention
is to apply these changes on the date they become
effective.

Annual Improvements to ~ Amendments to HKFRS 1, First-time

HKFRSs 2014-2016 adoption of Hong Kong Financial
Cycle Reporting Standards’

Annual Improvements to ~ Amendments to HKAS 28,
HKFRSs 2014-2016 Investments in Associates and
Cycle Joint Ventures?

Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classification and Measurement of
Share-Based Payment Transactions!
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments?
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers!
Amendments to HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

(Clarifications to HKFRS 15)!

Amendments to HKAS 40  Transfer of Investment Property’

2.

RNEEMBREREL ([FE
MEHREEA]) (&)

(B) EREMR{E K& BIFET EIE
A ERMBREEL
VAT AT B LR % [ B 75 R 2k B R RO T
A/ RIERT B BMBIRELERE T
AR - 1B 1R R AR B AR SR B 1 R IR A
Ry AEBEBABNAERE BER

A A hEy
ZEEE) -

BREMBREER
20145 220165
B FEAE

BREMBREER
20145 220165
B FEAE

BREMBREER
Eve: [ HEN

BRMBREER
FI%

BRMBREER
F15%

BREMBREER
FISHA BT A

BEGHER
FAOFHERT A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %z & B %5 38 3% My 5%
For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z=20174 128318 It F &

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

(B) NEW/REVISED HKFRSS THAT HAVE BEEN
ISSUED BUT ARE NOT YET EFFECTIVE
(CONTINUED)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration’

HKFRS 16 Leases’

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments?

HKFRS 17 Insurance contracts’

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between

and HKAS 28 an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture?

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2018

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2019

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2021

4 The amendments were originally intended to be effective for

periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016. The effective
date has now been deferred/removed. Early application of the
amendments of the amendments continue to be permitted.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %z & B ¥ 3R R i 5%
For the year ended 31 December 2017 #{Z2017F12A31H It F &

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. RpEBUBREED ([FE
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) B EEER]) (8)

(CONTINUED)

(B) NEW/REVISED HKFRSS THAT HAVE BEEN (B) EME#{E KR EMBIHFT L&

ISSUED BUT ARE NOT YET EFFECTIVE
(CONTINUED)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle
— Amendments to HKFRS 1, First-time Adoption of
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards

The amendments issued under the annual
improvements process make small, non-urgent
changes to standards where they are currently unclear.
They include amendments to HKFRS 1, First-time
Adoption of Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards,
removing transition provision exemptions relating to
accounting periods that had already passed and were
therefore no longer applicable.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2014-2016
Cycle — Amendments to HKAS 28, Investments in
Associates and Joint Ventures

The amendments issued under the annual
improvements process make small, non-urgent
changes to standards where they are currently unclear.
They include amendments to HKAS 28, Investments in
Associates and Joint Ventures, clarifying that a Venture
Capital organisation’s permissible election to measure
its associates or joint ventures at fair value is made
separately for each associate or joint venture.

Amendments to HKFRS 2 — Classification and
Measurement of Share-Based Payment Transactions
The amendments provide requirements on the
accounting for the effects of vesting and non-vesting
conditions on the measurement of cash-settled share-
based payments; share-based payment transactions
with a net settlement feature for withholding tax
obligations; and a modification to the terms and
conditions of a share-based payment that changes the
classification of the transaction from cash-settled to
equity-settled.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %z & B %5 3% 3% My 5%
For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z£20174 128318 It F &

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. BRPNEEVRREEL([FE
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") Bt ZER]) (48)
(CONTINUED)

(B) NEW/REVISED HKFRSS THAT HAVE BEEN (B) EME#{E M KREMBIFT L&

ISSUED BUT ARE NOT YET EFFECTIVE
(CONTINUED)

HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets.
Debt instruments that are held within a business model
whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows (the business model test) and
that have contractual terms that give rise to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding (the contractual
cash flow characteristics test) are generally measured
at amortised cost. Debt instruments that meet the
contractual cash flow characteristics test are measured
at Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income
(“FVTOCI") if the objective of the entity’s business
model is both to hold and collect the contractual cash
flows and to sell the financial assets. Entities may make
an irrevocable election at initial recognition to measure
equity instruments that are not held for trading
at FVTOCI. All other debt and equity instruments
are measured at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss
(“FVTPL").

HKFRS 9 includes a new expected loss impairment
model for all financial assets not measured at FVTPL
replacing the incurred loss model in HKAS 39 and
new general hedge accounting requirements to allow
entities to better reflect their risk management activities
in financial statements
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %z & 81 ¥ 3R R i 5
For the year ended 31 December 2017 (£ 20174 12A31H It F &

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. FNEEUBRREEL ([FE
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) B EEER]) (8)
(CONTINUED)

(B) NEW/REVISED HKFRSS THAT HAVE BEEN (B) EHEM{ERIKREZMTT E1E

ISSUED BUT ARE NOT YET EFFECTIVE
(CONTINUED)
HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments (Continued)

HKFRS 9 carries forward the recognition, classification
and measurement requirements for financial
liabilities from HKAS 39, except for financial liabilities
designated at FVTPL, where the amount of change
in fair value attributable to change in credit risk of
the liability is recognised in other comprehensive
income unless that would create or enlarge an
accounting mismatch. In addition, HKFRS 9 retains the
requirements in HKAS 39 for derecognition of financial
assets and financial liabilities.

The directors have reviewed the Group’s financial
assets as at 31 December 2017 and anticipate that
the application of HKFRS 9 in the future may result in
early recognition of credit losses based on expected
loss model in relation to the Group’s financial assets
measured at amortised cost and is not likely to have
other material impact on the results and financial
position of the Group based on an analysis of the
Group’s existing business model for the holding of
financial assets measured at amortised cost.

I EEMBREEL (8)

BEEYBREERFISN - 2HIR
(%)
BEMBREEAFIRERETLES
FHERIEIREREMBEZER
DENAERTE  EIEER/EAFE
BIAESZERMBERIN ZAE
FERREHREZATEEED
TENEMPERERER  RIFLLE
SEHAIEBAS A AER - 1t
SN BEMERELNFEIRRERE
SETERIEIGREMR I ER S RE
ERTBABEIHRE-

EECEHNAEEN2017F12A31
BRMERMEE YHFARERESE
B 15 ¥R & 2 RI SR 95% Al BE B BUR B TR
HIE IR R AN R B I SR AT &
ZERMEERFPEREERE BE
REAEBRFFREFERANTENS
BEEMNBRBARBEA 220 TK
A B A SR B RO AR M AR A A
HEATE-

MEREFRAS 2017F EHE 69
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. RPpELBUBREED ([FE
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) B EEER]) (8)

(CONTINUED)

(B) NEW/REVISED HKFRSS THAT HAVE BEEN (B) EME#{E M KREMBIFT L&

ISSUED BUT ARE NOT YET EFFECTIVE
(CONTINUED)
HKFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with customers

The new standard establishes a single revenue
recognition framework. The core principle of the
framework is that an entity should recognise revenue
to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to
customers in an amount that reflects the consideration
to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange
for those goods and services. HKFRS 15 supersedes
existing revenue recognition guidance including HKAS
18 Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction Contracts and
related interpretations.

HKFRS 15 requires the application of a 5 steps
approach to revenue recognition:

Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in
the contract

Step 3: Determine the transaction price

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to each
performance obligation
Step b: Recognise revenue when each

performance obligation is satisfied

HKFRS 15 includes specific guidance on particular
revenue related topics that may change the current
approach taken under HKFRS. The standard also
significantly enhances the qualitative and quantitative
disclosures related to revenue.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %z & 81 ¥ 3R R i 5
For the year ended 31 December 2017 #{Z£2017F12A31H It F &

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. RQpELBUBREED ([FE
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) B EER]) (8)
(CONTINUED)

(B) NEW/REVISED HKFRSS THAT HAVE BEEN (B) EME#{E KR EMBIFHT L&

ISSUED BUT ARE NOT YET EFFECTIVE
(CONTINUED)

HKFRS 15 - Revenue from Contracts with customers
(Continued)

The directors anticipate that the application of HKFRS
15 in the future will not have a material impact on
the amounts reported to the consolidated financial
statements of the Group in the future based on
the existing business model of the Group as at 31
December 2017.

Amendments HKFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts
with Customers (Clarifications to HKFRS 15)

The amendments to HKFRS 15 included clarifications
on identification of performance obligations; application
of principal versus agent; licenses of intellectual
property; and transition requirements.

Amendments to HKAS 40, Investment Property —
Transfers of Investment Property

The amendments clarify that to transfer to or from
investment properties there must be a change in use
and provides guidance on making this determination.
The clarification states that a change of use will
occur when a property meets, or ceases to meet,
the definition of investment property and there is
supporting evidence that a change has occurred.

The amendments also re-characterise the list of
evidence in the standard as a non-exhaustive list,
thereby allowing for other forms of evidence to support
a transfer.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %z & B %5 3% 3% My 5%
For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z£20174 128318 It F &

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. FANEEUBRREEL ([FE
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) B EEER]) (8)
(CONTINUED)

(B) NEW/REVISED HKFRSS THAT HAVE BEEN (B) ErEM{ERIKREZMTT E1E

ISSUED BUT ARE NOT YET EFFECTIVE
(CONTINUED)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22 - Foreign Currency Transactions
and Advance Consideration

The Interpretation provides guidance on determining
the date of the transaction for determining an exchange
rate to use for transactions that involve advance
consideration paid or received in a foreign currency
and the recognition of a non-monetary asset or non-
monetary liability. The Interpretations specifies that the
date of the transaction for the purpose of determining
the exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the
related asset, expense or income (or part thereof) is the
date on which the entity initially recognises the non-
monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising from
the payment or receipt of advance consideration.

Amendments to HKFRS 9 — Prepayment Features
with Negative Compensation

The amendments clarify that prepayable financial
assets with negative compensation can be measured
at amortised cost or at fair value through other
comprehensive income if specified conditions are met
— instead of at fair value through profit or loss.

/7 Z/mphony Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017

I EEMBREEL (8)

FE (EARHBEREZEESE) -
BEF22H I G REMCE
ZEREE AR RIAINE Sk
WENFE B 2 X 5 2 T 3R [ HERR F
EREERFERRABEERZ Y
RMtEs - REREREL BEVS
HRMEEE FAxXIBA(HER
BO)FERZEX X ZEMRE
BO AN IUBBENREEE
ZHEREESFFERAFBZA

BB & EREISBIIETTE —
RELHEZE 15

ZEBRRE WA AEERE &
fEZ AT BN &R E E AZ # HAAR
HIEAFEEIAEAMEE RS
E-MIFRQAFEEINAERAE-



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %z & 81 ¥ 3R R i 5
For the year ended 31 December 2017 (£ 20174 12A31H It F &

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. FNEEUBRREEL ([FE
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) B EEER]) (8)
(CONTINUED)

(B) NEW/REVISED HKFRSS THAT HAVE BEEN (B) EHEM{ERIKREZMTT E1E

ISSUED BUT ARE NOT YET EFFECTIVE
(CONTINUED)

HKFRS 16 — Leases

HKFRS 16, which upon the effective date will
supersede HKAS 17 “Leases “and related
interpretations, introduces a single lessee accounting
model and requires a lessee to recognise assets
and liabilities for all leases with a term of more 12
months, unless the underlying asset is of low value.
Specifically, under HKFRS 16, a lessee is required to
recognise a right-of-use asset representing its right to
use the underlying leased asset and a lease liability
representing its obligation to make lease payments.
Accordingly, a lessee should recognise depreciation of
the right-of use asset and interest on the lease liability,
and also classifies cash repayments of the lease liability
into a principal portion and an interest portion and
presents them in the statement of cash flows. Also,
the right-of-use asset and the lease liability are initially
measured on a present value basis. The measurement
includes non-cancellable lease payments and also
includes payments to be made in optional periods if
the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise an option to
extend the lease, or to exercise an option to terminate
the lease. This accounting treatment is significantly
different from the lessee accounting for leases that are
classified as operating leases under the predecessor
standard, HKAS 17.

In respect of the lessor accounting, HKFRS 16
substantially carries forward the lessor accounting
requirements in HKAS 17. Accordingly, a lessor
continues to classify its leases as operating leases or
finance leases, and to account for those two types of
leases differently.
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. BRPNEEVRREEL([FE
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") Bt ZER]) (48)
(CONTINUED)

(B) NEW/REVISED HKFRSS THAT HAVE BEEN (B) EME#{E M KREMBIFT L&

ISSUED BUT ARE NOT YET EFFECTIVE
(CONTINUED)
HKFRS 16 - Leases (Continued)

As at 31 December 2017, the Group was a lessor
and lessee under a number of leasing arrangements.
In respect of those arrangements in which the Group
was a lessee, a preliminary assessment indicates that
the arrangements will continue to meet the definition
of leases under HKFRS 16, and hence the Group will
recognise a right-of-use asset and a corresponding
liability in respect of all these leases unless they qualify
for low value or short-term leases upon the application
of HKFRS 16. In addition, the application of new
requirements may result in changes in measurement,
presentation and disclosure as indicated above.

HK(IFRIC) Int23 — Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments

The Interpretation supports the requirements of HKAS
12, Income Taxes, by providing guidance over how
to reflect the effects of uncertainty in accounting
for income taxes. Under the Interpretation, the
entity shall determine whether to consider each
uncertain tax treatment separately or together based
on which approach better predicts the resolution of
the uncertainty. The entity shall also assume the tax
authority will examine amounts that it has a right
to examine and have full knowledge of all related
information when making those examinations. If the
entity determines it is probable that the tax authority
will accept an uncertain tax treatment, then the entity
should measure current and deferred tax in line with
its tax filings. If the entity determines it is not probable,
then the uncertainty in the determination of tax is
reflected using either the “most likely amount” or the
“expected value” approach, whichever better predicts
the resolution of the uncertainty.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %z & 81 ¥ 3R R i 5
For the year ended 31 December 2017 (£ 20174 12A31H It F &

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION

(A)

(B)

©

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable HKFRSs,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations (hereinafter collectively referred to as
the “HKFRSs”) and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited.

BASIS OF MEASUREMENT

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost basis except for
certain properties and financial instruments, which are
measured at fair values as explained in the accounting
policies set out below.

FUNCTIONAL AND PRESENTATION
CURRENCY

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HKD”), which is the same as the
functional currency of the Company.

3. REEE

(A)

(B)

©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %z & B %5 3% 3% My 5%
For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z£20174 128318 It F &

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

/6

(A) BUSINESS COMBINATION AND BASIS OF

CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements comprise
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”). Inter-company transactions
and balances between group companies together with
unrealised profits are eliminated in full in preparing the
consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses
are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of impairment on the asset transferred, in
which case the loss is recognised in profit or loss.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income from the dates
of acquisition or up to the dates of disposal, as
appropriate. Where necessary, adjustments are made
to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies into line with those used by other
members of the Group.

Acquisition of subsidiaries or businesses is accounted
for using the acquisition method. The cost of an
acquisition is measured at the aggregate of the
acquisition-date fair value of assets transferred,
liabilities incurred and equity interests issued by the
Group, as the acquirer. The identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed are principally measured at
acquisition-date fair value. The Group’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree is re-measured
at acquisition-date fair value and the resulting gains
or losses are recognised in profit or loss. The Group
may elect, on a transaction-by-transaction basis, to
measure the non-controlling interests that represent
present ownership interests in the subsidiary either
at fair value or at the proportionate share of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other non-
controlling interests are measured at fair value unless
another measurement basis is required by HKFRSs.
Acquisition-related costs incurred are expensed unless
they are incurred in issuing equity instruments in which
case the costs are deducted from equity.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(A) BUSINESS COMBINATION AND BASIS OF

CONSOLIDATION (CONTINUED)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by
the acquirer is recognised at acquisition-date fair
value. Subsequent adjustments to consideration are
recognised against goodwill only to the extent that
they arise from new information obtained within the
measurement period (a maximum of 12 months
from the acquisition date) about the fair value at the
acquisition date. All other subsequent adjustments to
contingent consideration classified as an asset or a
liability are recognised in profit or loss.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the
profit or loss on disposal is calculated as the difference
between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration received and the fair value of any
retained interest and (i) the previous carrying amount
of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the
subsidiary and any non-controlling interest. Amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income
in relation to the subsidiary are accounted for in the
same manner as would be required if the relevant
assets or liabilities were disposed of.

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-
controlling interests that represent present ownership
interests in the subsidiary is the amount of those
interests at initial recognition plus such non-controlling
interest’s share of subsequent changes in equity. Total
comprehensive income is attributed to such non-
controlling interests even if this results in those non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(B) SUBSIDIARIES

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company
is able to exercise control. The Company controls
an investee if all three of the following elements are
present: power over the investee, exposure, or rights,
to variable returns from the investee, and the ability to
use its power to affect those variable returns. Control is
reassessed whenever facts and circumstances indicate
that there may be a change in any of these elements of
control.

De-facto control exists in situations where the Company
has the practical ability to direct the relevant activities
of the investee without holding the majority of the
voting rights. In determining whether de-facto control
exists the Company considers all relevant facts and
circumstances, including:

° The size of the Company’s voting rights relative to
both the size and dispersion of other parties who
hold voting rights;

° Substantive potential voting rights held by the
Company and other parties who hold voting
rights;

° Other contractual arrangements; and

o Historic patterns in voting attendance.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
impairment loss, if any. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend
received and receivable.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %z & 81 ¥ 3R R i 5
For the year ended 31 December 2017 (£ 20174 12A31H It F &

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(C) ASSOCIATES

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor
a joint arrangement. Significant influence is the power
to participate in the financial and operating policy
decisions of the investee but not control or joint control
over those policies.

Associates are accounted for using the equity method
whereby they are initially recognised at cost and
thereafter, their carrying amount are adjusted for the
Group’s share of the post-acquisition change in the
associates’ net assets except that losses in excess of
the Group's interest in the associate are not recognised
unless there is an obligation to make good those
losses.

Profits and losses arising on transactions between the
Group and its associates are recognised only to the
extent of unrelated investors’ interests in the associate.
The investor's share in the associate’'s profits and
losses resulting from these transactions is eliminated
against the carrying value of the associate. Where
unrealised losses provide evidence of impairment of
the asset transferred they are recognised immediately
in profit or loss.

Any premium paid for an associate above the fair value
of the Group’s share of the identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities acquired is capitalised and
included in the carrying amount of the associate.
Where there is objective evidence that the investment
in an associate has been impaired, the carrying
amount of the investment is tested for impairment in
the same way as other non-financial assets.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in associates are carried at cost less
impairment losses, if any. The results of associates
are accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividends received and receivable during the year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 45 &
For the year ended 31 December 2017 & £20174 128318 It F &

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(D) JOINT ARRANGEMENTS

The Group is a party to a joint arrangement where
there is a contractual arrangement that confers joint
control over the relevant activities of the arrangement
to the Group and at least one other party. Joint control
is assessed under the same principles as control over
subsidiaries.

The Group classifies its interests in joint arrangements
as either:

° Joint ventures: where the Group has rights to
only the net assets of the joint arrangement; or

° Joint operations: where the Group has both the
rights to assets and obligations for the liabilities of
the joint arrangement.

In assessing the classification of interests in joint
arrangements, the Group considers:

° The structure of the joint arrangement;

° The legal form of joint arrangements structured
through a separate vehicle;

° The contractual terms of the joint arrangement
agreement; and

o Any other facts and circumstances (including
any other contractual arrangements).

The Group accounts for its interests in joint ventures
in the same manner as investments in associates
(i.e. using the equity method — see Note 4(c)) to the
consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %z & 81 ¥ 3R R i 5
For the year ended 31 December 2017 (£ 20174 12A31H It F &

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(D) JOINT ARRANGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(E)

Any premium paid for an investment in a joint venture
above the fair value of the Group’s share of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
acquired is capitalised and included in the carrying
amount of the investment in joint venture. Where there
is objective evidence that the investment in a joint
venture has been impaired the carrying amount of the
investment is tested for impairment in the same way as
other non-financial assets.

The Group accounts for its interests in joint operations
by recognising its share of assets, liabilities, revenues
and expenses in accordance with its contractually
conferred rights and obligations.

The Company’s interests in joint ventures are stated
at cost less impairment losses, if any. Results of joint
ventures are accounted for by the Company on the
basis of dividends received and receivable.

GOODWILL

Where the fair value of identifiable assets and
liabilities exceed the aggregation of the fair value of
consideration paid, the amount of any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree and the acquisition date fair
value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in
the acquiree, the excess is recognised in profit or loss
on the acquisition date, after re-assessment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %z & B 75 3% 3% My 5%
For the year ended 31 December 2017 & £20174 128318 It F &

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

4. FEEFTBR (&)

(E) GOODWILL (CONTINUED) (E) P& (48)

Goodwill is measured at cost less impairment losses.
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill arising
from an acquisition is allocated to each of the relevant
cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from
the synergies of the acquisition. A cash-generating
unit is the smallest identifiable group of assets that
generates cash inflows that are largely independent
of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of
assets. A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has
been allocated is tested for impairment annually, by
comparing its carrying amount with its recoverable
amount (see Note 4(s) to the consolidated financial
statements) and whenever there is an indication that
the unit may be impaired.

For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a financial
year, the cash-generating unit to which goodwill has
been allocated is tested for impairment before the end
of that financial year. When the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit is less than the carrying
amount of the unit, the impairment loss is allocated to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated
to the unit first, and then to the other assets of the unit
pro-rata on the basis of the carrying amount to each
asset in the unit. However, the loss allocated to each
asset will not reduce the individual asset's carrying
amount to below its fair value less cost of disposal
(if measurable) or its value in use (if determinable),
whichever is the higher. Any impairment loss for
goodwill is recognised in profit or loss and is not
reversed in subsequent periods.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %z & 81 ¥ 3R R i 5
For the year ended 31 December 2017 (£ 20174 12A31H It F &

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(F) REVENUE RECOGNITION

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable and is net of
estimated customer returns, discounts and sales
related taxes.

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised on transfers
of risks and rewards of ownership, which is at the time
of delivery and the title is passed to customer.

Service income is recognised when services are
provided.

Commission income is recognised when the services
on which the commissions are earned are provided in
accordance with the agreed terms.

Royalty income is recognised on an accrual basis
in accordance with the substance of the relevant
agreements, which is in general on a straight-line basis
over the life of the agreements.

Rental income under operating leases is recognised
on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease, except for contingent rental income which is
recognised when it arises.

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a
time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding
and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is
the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future
cash receipts through the expected life of the financial
asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Brokerage commission is recognised on a trade date
basis when the relevant transactions are executed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %z & B 75 38 3% My 5%
For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z£20174 128318 It F &

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(F)

(@)

REVENUE RECOGNITION (CONTINUED)
Underwriting fee and placing fee are recognised
as income in accordance with the terms of the
underwriting and placing agreements or deal
mandate when the relevant significant acts have been
completed.

Dividend income is recognised when the right to
receive the dividend is established.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Owner-occupied leasehold land and buildings are
stated at revaluation less accumulated depreciation.
Revaluations are performed with sufficient regularity
to ensure that the carrying amount does not differ
materially from that which would be determined using
fair values at the end of the reporting period. Increases
in value arising on revaluation are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
under the heading of properties revaluation reserve.
Decreases in value arising on revaluation are first offset
against increases on earlier valuations in respect of
the same property and thereafter recognised in profit
or loss. Any subsequent increases are recognised in
profit or loss up to the amount previously charged and
thereafter to the properties revaluation reserve.

Upon disposal, the relevant portion of the revaluation
reserve realised in respect of previous valuations is
released from the properties revaluation reserve to
retained profits.

Other property, plant and equipment are stated at
cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses.

The cost of property, plant and equipment includes its
purchase price and the costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #{Z£2017F12A31H It F &

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(G) PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(CONTINUED)

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are
recognised as an expense in profit or loss during the
financial period in which they are incurred.

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated so as to
write off their cost or valuation net of expected residual
value over their estimated useful lives on a straight-line
basis. The useful lives, residual value and depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at
the end of each reporting period.

The below items of property, plant and equipment,
other than construction in progress, are depreciated
over their estimated useful lives and after taking into
account their estimated residual values, using the
straight-line method, as follows:

Leasehold land in Hong Kong Shorter of useful lives and
the remaining lease term

Buildings Shorter of useful lives and
the remaining lease term

Leasehold improvements Shorter of useful lives and the

remaining lease term

Plant and machinery 9% - 45%
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 9% - 20%
Motor vehicles 16% - 20%
Vessel 10%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %z & B 75 3% 3% My 5%
For the year ended 31 December 2017 & £20174 128318 It F &

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

4. FEEFTBR (&)

(G) PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (G) Y% MERRE(E)

(CONTINUED)

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes
an investment property because its use has changed
as evidenced by an end of owner-occupation, any
difference between the carrying amount and the fair
value of that item at the date of transfer is recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
properties revaluation reserve. On the subsequent
sale or retirement of the asset, the relevant revaluation
reserve will be transferred directly to retained profits.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising
on the disposal or retirement of an item of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the net sales proceed and the carrying
amount of the asset, and is recognised in profit or loss
on disposal.

An item of property, plant and equipment is written
down immediately to its recoverable amount if its
carrying amount is higher than the asset's estimated
recoverable amount.

Construction in progress is stated at cost less
impairment losses. Cost comprises direct costs of
construction as well as borrowing costs capitalised
during the periods of construction and installation.
Capitalisation of these costs ceases and the
construction in progress is transferred to the
appropriate class of property, plant and equipment
when substantially all the activities necessary
to prepare the assets for their intended use are
completed. No depreciation is provided for in respect
of construction in progress until it is completed and
ready for its intended use.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %z & 81 ¥ 3R R i 5
For the year ended 31 December 2017 (£ 20174 12A31H It F &

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(H)

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Investment properties are properties held either to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation or for both, but
not held for sale in the ordinary course of business,
use in the production or supply of goods or services
or for administrative purposes. Investment properties
are measured at cost on initial recognition and
subsequently at fair value with any change therein
recognised in profit or loss.

When the Group holds property interests under an
operating lease to earn rental income, the Group
classifies and accounts for these property interests as
investment properties.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost,
including any directly attributable expenditure.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties
are measured at their fair values using the fair
value model, unless they are still in the course of
construction or development at reporting date and their
fair value cannot be reliably determined at that time.
Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of
investment property are included in profit or loss for the
period in which they arise.

If an investment property becomes an item of property,
plant and equipment because its use has changed as
evidenced by commencement of owner-occupation,
the property’s deemed cost for subsequent accounting
is its fair value at the date of change in use.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal
or when the investment property is permanently
withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits
are expected from its disposals. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition of the investment property (calculated
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset) is included
in profit or loss in the period in which the item is
derecognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %z & B 75 38 3% My 5%
For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z£20174 128318 It F &

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

)

LEASING

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised
in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term
of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in
negotiating and arranging an operating lease are
added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and
recognised as an expense on the straight-line basis
over the lease term.

The Group as lessee

The total rentals payable under the operating leases
are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis
over the lease term, except where another systematic
basis is more representative of the time pattern in
which economic benefits from the leased asset are
consumed. Contingent rentals arising under operating
leases are recognised as an expense in the period in
which they are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter
into operating leases, such incentives are recognised
as a liability. The aggregate benefit of incentives is
recognised as a reduction of rental expense on a
straight-line basis, except where another systematic
basis is more representative of the time pattern in
which economic benefits from the leased asset are
consumed.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #{Z£2017F12A31H It F &

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

)

LEASING (CONTINUED)

Leasehold land and buildings

When a lease includes both land and building
elements, the Group assesses the classification of each
element as a finance or an operating lease separately
based on the assessment as to whether substantially all
the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of each
element have been transferred to the Group, unless
it is clear that both elements are operating leases in
which case the entire lease is classified as an operating
lease. Specifically, the minimum lease payments
(including any lump-sum upfront payments) are
allocated between the land and the building elements
in proportion to the relative fair values of the leasehold
interests in the land element and building element of
the lease at the inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments
can be made reliably, interest in leasehold land that
is accounted for as an operating lease is presented
s “prepaid lease payments” in the consolidated
statement of financial position and is amortised over
the lease term on a straight-line basis except for those
that are classified and accounted for as investment

properties under the fair value model.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %z & B 75 3% 3% My 5%
For the year ended 31 December 2017 & £20174 128318 It F &

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

(J) INTANGIBLE ASSETS (OTHER THAN
GOODWILL)
(i)  Acquired intangible assets

(ii)

Intangible assets acquired separately are initially
recognised at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is the fair
value at the date of acquisition. Subsequently,
intangible assets with finite useful lives are
carried at cost less accumulated amortisation
and accumulated impairment losses and
intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are
carried at cost less accumulated impairment
losses.

Trademarks

The trademarks are the intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives that are carried at cost
less any accumulated impairment losses. The
trademarks have been granted for periods
ranging from 7 to 15 years by the relevant
government agency with the option of renewal
when expire. The trademarks may be renewed
indefinitely at little or no cost to the Group.
The Group intends to renew the trademarks
indefinitely and evidence support its ability to do
so. As a result, the trademarks are assessed as
having indefinite useful lives.

Impairments

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are
tested for impairment annually, irrespective of
whether there is any indication that they may
be impaired. Intangible assets are tested for
impairment by comparing their carrying amounts
with their recoverable amounts (see Note 4(s) to
the consolidated financial statements).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %z & 81 ¥ 3R R i 5
For the year ended 31 December 2017 (£ 20174 12A31H It F &

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

a)

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (OTHER THAN

GOODWILL) (CONTINUED)

(ii) Impairments (Continued)
If the recoverable amount of an asset is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount,
the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its
recoverable amount.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately, unless the relevant asset is
carried at a revalued amount, in which case
the impairment loss is treated as revaluation
decrease to the extent of its revaluation surplus.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the asset is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount;
however, the carrying amount should not be
increased above the lower of its recoverable
amount and the carrying amount that would have
resulted had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset in prior years. All reversals are
recognised in the profit or loss immediately.

(K) FOREIGN CURRENCIES

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entities, transactions entered into by these
group entities in currencies other than the currency
of the primary economic environment in which they
operate (the “functional currency”) are recorded at
the prevailing exchange rates when the transactions
occur. At the end of reporting period, monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are translated at the rates prevailing at that date.
Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %z & B 75 38 3% My 5%
For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z£20174 128318 It F &

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

4. FEERTHR (&)

(K) FOREIGN CURRENCIES (CONTINUED) (K) bk (48)

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they arise, except for exchange differences
arising on a monetary item that forms part of the
Company’s net investment in a foreign operation, in
which case, such exchange differences are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity as translation reserve and will be reclassified
from equity to profit or loss on disposal of the foreign
operation. Exchange differences arising on the
retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair value
are included in profit or loss for the period except for
exchange differences arising on the retranslation of
non-monetary items in respect of which gains and
losses are recognised directly in other comprehensive
income, in which cases, the exchange differences
are also recognised directly in other comprehensive
income.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated
financial statements, all assets and liabilities of
foreign operations are translated into the presentation
currency of the Group (i.e. HKD) at the rate of
exchange prevailing at the end of the reporting period,
and income and expenses of foreign operations are
translated at the average exchange rates for the
year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly
during the period, in which case, the exchange
rates approximating to those prevailing when the
transactions tool place are used. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity as translation
reserve (attributed to minority interests as appropriate).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %z & 81 ¥ 3R R i 5
For the year ended 31 December 2017 #{Z£2017F12A31H It F &

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(K) FOREIGN CURRENCIES (CONTINUED)

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal
of the Group'’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or
a disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary
that includes a foreign operation, or a partial disposal
of an interest in a joint arrangement or an associate
that includes a foreign operation, of which the
retained interest becomes a financial asset), all of
the exchange differences accumulated in equity in
respect of that operation attributable to the owners of
the Company are reclassified to profit or loss as part
of the profit or loss on disposal. In addition, in relation
to a partial disposal of a subsidiary that does not
result in the Group losing control over the subsidiary,
the proportionate share of accumulated exchange
differences are re-attributed to non-controlling interests
and are not recognised in profit or loss. For all other
partial disposals (i.e. partial disposals of associates
or joint arrangements that do not result in the Group
losing significant influence or joint control), the
proportionate share of the accumulated exchange
differences is reclassified to profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable
assets acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign
operation on or after 1 January 2005 are treated as
assets and liabilities of that foreign operation and
translated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end
of reporting period. Exchange differences arising are
recognised in the translation reserve.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %z & B 75 3% 3% My 5%
For the year ended 31 December 2017 & £20174 128318 It F &

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(L)

(M)

CAPITALISATION OF BORROWING COSTS
Borrowing costs attributable directly to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets which
require a substantial period of time to be ready for
their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the
cost of those assets until such assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Income earned on
temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on those assets is deducted from
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs
are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which
they are incurred.

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

(i)  Short term employee benefits
Short term employee benefits are employee
benefits (other than termination benefits) that
are expected to be settled wholly before twelve
months after the end of the annual reporting
period in which the employees render the
related service. Short term employee benefits
are recognised in the year when the employees
render the related service.

(ii)  Defined contribution retirement plans
Contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans are recognised as an expense in profit
or loss when the services are rendered by the
employees.

(iii)  Termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognised on the earlier
of when the Group can no longer withdraw the
offer of those benefits and when the Group
recognises restructuring costs involving the
payment of termination benefits.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %z & 81 ¥ 3R R i 5
For the year ended 31 December 2017 (£ 20174 12A31H It F &

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(N)

INCOME TAX
Income tax expenses for the year comprise of the sum
of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit
for the year. Taxable profit differs from “profit before
income tax expenses” as reported in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income because it
excludes items of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and it further excludes
items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted at the end
of reporting period.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the
corresponding amounts used for tax purposes. Except
for goodwill and recognised assets and liabilities that
affect neither accounting nor taxable profits, deferred
tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will
be available against which deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of
other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affect
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %z & B 75 38 3% My 5%
For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z£20174 128318 It F &

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(N)

INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)

Deferred tax (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled entities,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal
of the temporary difference and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments are only recognised to the extent that it
is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits
against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary
differences and they are expected to reverse in the
foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of the reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at
the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period
in which the liability is settled or the asset is realised,
based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from
the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of
the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities. Deferred tax is
recognised in profit or loss, except when it relates to
items that are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case the deferred
tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %z & 81 ¥ 3R R i 5
For the year ended 31 December 2017 #{Z£2017F12A31H It F &

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(N)

(0)

(P)

INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)

Deferred tax (Continued)

An exception to the general requirement on
determining the appropriate tax rate used in measuring
deferred tax amount is when an investment property
is carried at fair value under HKAS 40 “Investment
Property”. Unless the presumption is rebutted, the
deferred tax amounts on these investment properties
are measured using the tax rates that would apply on
sale of these investment properties at their carrying
amounts at the reporting date. The presumption is
rebutted when the investment property is depreciable
and is held within a business model whose objective
is to consume substantially all the economic benefits
embodied in the property over time, rather than
through sale.

CLUB DEBENTURE
Club debenture is carried at cost less any subsequent
accumulated impairment loss.

INVENTORIES

Inventories are initially recognised at cost, and
subsequently at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost comprises all costs of purchase, costs of
conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition. Cost
is calculated using the weighted average method. Net
realisable value represents the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business less the estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary
to make the sale.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %z & B 75 38 3% My 5%
For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z£20174 128318 It F &

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

4. FEERTHR (&)

(Q) FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Q &mTAH

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition
of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

(i)  Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets at
initial recognition, depending on the purpose
for which the asset was acquired. The Group's
financial assets are classified into the categories
of financial assets as fair value through profit
or loss and loans and receivables. Regular
way purchases or sales of financial assets are
recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. A regular way purchases or sales is a
purchase or sale of a financial asset under a
contract whose terms require delivery of the
asset within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace
concerned.

/9 8//mphony Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017

TREEMEGBABIN-—RAEEE
B A% LASOGRXAFTATRR
RABBIRRR TR

TREEREBABBRNLIURFER
AAE-MBRETEREENERE
B (R FEEFARGENEREE
Re@aBRIRIMNNEEERRS
PRATIR ) HEREE AR B & &l
EEXTHAR (HER)NATE
B WERAFEEIABRZSH
BESERARNEREBER KA
SNBSS IR e R AR

(i) ELHEE
AEERFYBEBEE 2 BHM
RNFERE G SR EENE
AEEZEREENBRER
FEEINABGDZEMEEN
KREF R EWESR - —RERBE
EEEHNXZ B TARRL
RILFER - —REBIIE—HE
MATZERMEERSE  HIFR
MEARBAERTSRPINE
IR 2 B RER AR E
o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %z & 81 ¥ 3R R i 5
For the year ended 31 December 2017 #{Z£2017F12A31H It F &

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(Q) FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(i)

Financial assets (Continued)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

These assets include financial assets held for
trading as trading securities. Financial assets are
classified as held for trading if they are acquired
for the purpose of sale in the near term.

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss are
measured at fair value, with changes in fair value
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which
they arise.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial
asset and of allocating interest income over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts (including all fees paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums
or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period to the net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective
interest basis for debt instruments, of which
interest income is excluded in net gains or
losses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %z & B 75 38 3% My 5%
For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z£20174 128318 It F &

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(Q) FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(i)

Financial assets (Continued)

Loans and receivables

These assets are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. They arise
principally through the provision of goods and
services to customers (trade debtors), and also
incorporate other types of contractual monetary
asset. Subsequent to initial recognition, they
are (including trade and other receivables,
amounts due from joint ventures, amount due
from an associate, advances to customers in
margin financing, loans receivable, loan to non-
controlling interests, restricted bank deposits
and bank balances and cash) are carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any identified impairment losses
(see accounting policy on “impairment loss on
financial assets” as defined below).

Impairment loss on financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at fair value
through profit or loss, is assessed whether there
is any objective evidence that financial assets
is impaired at the end of each reporting period.
Financial assets is impaired if there is objective
evidence of impairment as a result of one or
more events that has occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset and that event has an
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial assets that can be reliably estimated.
Evidence of impairment may include:

/1 O%mphony Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017

4. FEERTHR (&)

(Q £mMTIH(HE)
(i) EHEE(F)

ZEEER/LIFNERT SR
B BERBEEXHAEENRZ
FITECRHEE-HRETBREB
A& F IR 4 & o N AR 75 1 & £
(BZRWER)  TEEEM
BLNAHNEBEE NI HE
RE BE(RRESHREMLE
WAk B A & D ERIR B
Yokt & (bR - R TRES
BMEEFZBR BUEER E
KT IEER s - ZIRBIRITF
FARSRITHESHR IR ) W H
AR E BB ERE (&
XA [ REERER
B 28R AERF=X
58k

EHEEREEIR

EMEE (TEERATFERD
AB#RZEREE)NESHRED
REWRFRRTEEATEE

SPHABEERABLE-—HALS
HEAMEREEREIER
HRSEHHemEEMRENR
SHFTEFARKRASRER

FE AXRASHMEELTR
B REERA R :



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 43 &
For the year ended 31 December 2017 #{Z£2017F12A31H It F &

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(Q) FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(i)

Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)
° significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

° breach of contract, such as a default
or delinquency in interest or principal
payments;

o granting concession to a debtor because of
debtors’ financial difficulty; and

o it becoming probable that the debtor
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation.

For certain categories of financial assets, such
as trade receivables and loans receivable, assets
that are assessed not to be impaired individually
are subsequently assessed for impairment
on a collective basis. Objective evidence of
impairment for a portfolio of receivables could
include the Group’s past experience of collecting
payments, an increase in the number of delayed
payments in the portfolio past the average credit
period of 60 to 90 days, observable changes
in national or local economic conditions that
correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost,
impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
when there is objective evidence that the asset
is impaired, and is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the original effective interest rate.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(Q) FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(i)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)
The carrying amount of the financial asset is
reduced by the impairment loss directly for
all financial assets with the exception of trade
receivables, loans receivable, other receivables
and advances to customers in margin financing,
where the carrying amount is reduced through
the use of an allowance account. Changes in the
carrying amount of the allowance account are
recognised in profit or loss. When a trade, loan
or other receivable is considered uncollectible,
it is written off against the allowance account.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off are credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised
cost, if, in a subsequent period, the amount of
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment losses was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is
reversed through profit or loss to the extent that
the carrying amount of the asset at the date the
impairment is reversed does not exceed what
the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %z & 81 ¥ 3R R i 5
For the year ended 31 December 2017 #{Z£2017F12A31H It F &

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(Q) FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
(ii)  Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued
by a group entity are classified according to
the substance of the contractual arrangements
entered into and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that
evidences a residual interest in the assets of the
Group after deducting all of its liabilities.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial
liability and of allocating interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash payments through the expected life of the
financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period.

Interest expense is recognised in profit or loss on
an effective interest basis.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

The Group classifies its financial liabilities,
depending on the purpose for which the
liabilities were incurred. Financial liabilities
at amortised cost (including trade and other
payables, amounts due to joint ventures, bank
borrowings, dividend payable and loan from non-
controlling interests) are subsequently measured
at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss
when the liabilities are derecognised as well as
through the amortisation process.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(Q) FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(ii)

(iii)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(Continued)

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct
issue costs.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract
that requires the Group to make specified
payments to reimburse the vendor for a loss
it incurs because of the subsidiaries recently
acquired fails to generate sufficient level of
profit. A financial guarantee contract issued by
the Group and not designated as at fair value
through profit or loss is recognised initially at its
fair value less transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the issue of the financial guarantee
contract. Subsequent to initial recognition, the
Group measures the financial guarantee contract
at the higher of: (i) the amount determined
in accordance with HKAS 37 Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets; and
(i) the amount initially recognised less, when
appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised
in accordance with HKAS 18 Revenue.

/1 O%mphony Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017

4. FEERTHR (&)

(Q £mMTIH(HE)
(i) =HERRBRFEIR (&)

RATA
RRAB BT ZBAT BIRATIK
B2 FTiS SRIEH R BB 1T
AR

(iii)) FAFEIERE AT
MBEREDOTDIREAKER
B XNEESRE UHER
B A T B U B 2 BT BB 8 Rl R B
EEFRRENKFMRZNE
Ko MARE B HNAIFEES
BT EEIABGDTENT
BRERAQNTRAFEER
BHMBRERANERELN
R PR T ATER ] 2 HE R
® AEEZNTEERSE
EMBRERAHN: VRERES
FHERIEI7HA G  AARRER
AAREEBENESE: (DY)
FHERATER (WEE) REE
B ERE18REMA R
RETHH-



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 43 &
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(Q) FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
(iv) Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when
the contractual rights to the future cash flows
in relation to the financial assets expire or when
the financial assets has been transferred and
the transfer meets the criteria for derecognition
in accordance with HKAS 39. On derecognition
of a financial asset, the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of
the consideration received and receivable
and the cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or
loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial
liabilities derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

When the Group issues its own equity
instruments to a creditor to settle a financial
liability in whole or in part as a result of
renegotiating the terms of that liability, the equity
instruments issued are the consideration paid
and are recognised initially and measured at
their fair value on the date the financial liability
or part thereof is extinguished. If the fair value
of the equity instruments issued cannot be
reliably measured, the equity instruments are
measured to reflect the fair value of the financial
liability extinguished. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability or part
thereof extinguished and the consideration paid
is recognised in profit or loss for the year.

4, TET

0t 3% AR P R

st BUR (48)

(iv)

FEREFRAS 2017F EHE

AR TERR
ETREENRKRRSAREN
BRENER XEMEEDT
E%ﬁﬁ%%%ﬁﬁé%mﬁ
ZEREINRT A K ILERIRE
B AEEERLERASRE
E-REIHRAEREER &
ERREERED WL ERKE
KB R E s 2 W e A R
Rz A 250 Rt E 8
IBAMMZRE N8 R

= 1HRE A& W5 E R BRI ARER -
i ERE  ERAERER
LR - R L ER S R B ERRE
BEREMREMRENEZE K
1Ras MR -

MAEBEEAEHEHEREE
R A EEABRITERSH
RATEIAZEK A 2B EZ
BE AIFMBETRATAREN
RE NPReBABLELD
RERE BN A FEERRARL

FTE o WATEITIRAT AN AT
BETERSZTE  BIFF2RA

TRNRBRATIERR & B A ER
NFEE-FOERERAGEKE
MoMEEERDNREZE
MEBERFRBENER -

105
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

4. FEERTHR (&)

(R) SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (R) LABE{n 3T i+

Where share options are awarded to employees and
others providing similar services, the fair value of the
services received is measured by reference to the fair
value of the options at the date of grant. Such fair value
is recognised in profit or loss over the vesting period
with a corresponding increase in the share options
reserve within equity. Non-market vesting conditions
are taken into account by adjusting the number of
equity instruments expected to vest at the end of each
reporting period so that, ultimately, the cumulative
amount recognised over the vesting period is based
on the number of options that eventually vest. Market
vesting conditions are factored into the fair value of
the options granted. As long as all non-market vesting
conditions are satisfied, a charge is made irrespective
of whether the market vesting conditions are satisfied.
The cumulative expense is not adjusted for failure to
achieve a market vesting condition.

Where the terms and conditions of options are modified
before they vest, the increase in the fair value of the
options, measured immediately before and after the
modification, is also recognised in profit or loss over the
remaining vesting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %z & 81 ¥ 3R R i 5
For the year ended 31 December 2017 #{Z£2017F12A31H It F &

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(R) SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (CONTINUED)

(S)

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions with
parties other than employees are measured at the fair
value of the goods or services received, except where
the fair value cannot be estimated reliably, in which
case they are measured at the fair value of the equity
instruments granted, measured at the date the Group
obtains the goods or the counterparty renders the
services. The fair value of goods or services received is
recognised in profit or loss unless the goods or services
qualify for recognition as assets. A corresponding
increase in equity is recognised. For cash-settled share
based payments, a liability is recognised for the goods
or services acquired, measured initially at the fair value
of the liability. At the end of each reporting period until
the liability is settled, and at the date of settlement,
the fair value of the liability is re-measured, with any
changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS (OTHER THAN
FINANCIAL ASSETS)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of the following assets
to determine whether there is any indication that
those assets have suffered an impairment loss or an
impairment loss previously recognised no longer exists
or may have decreased:

o property, plant and equipment under cost model;

° prepaid lease payments;

° investments/interests in subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures; and

o club debenture
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %z & B 75 38 3% My 5%
For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z£20174 128318 It F &

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(S)

IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS (OTHER THAN
FINANCIAL ASSETS) (CONTINUED)

If the recoverable amount (i.e. the greater of the fair
value less costs of disposal and value in use) of an
asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount,
the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised
as an expense immediately, unless the relevant asset
is carried at a revalued amount under another HKFRS,
in which case the impairment loss is treated as a
revaluation decrease under that HKFRS.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, to the extent that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised as income immediately, unless the relevant
asset is carried at a revalued amount under another
HKFRS, in which case the reversal of the impairment
loss is treated as a revaluation increase under that
HKFRS.

Value in use is based on the estimated future cash
flows expected to be derived from the asset or cash
generating unit (see Note 4(e) to the consolidated
financial statements), discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset or cash generating unit.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(T

(V)

PROVISIONS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, which it is probable will result in an outflow of
economic benefits that can be reasonably estimated.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
the existence of which will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.

GOVERNMENT GRANTS

Government grants are recognised when there is
reasonable assurance that they will be received
and that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to them. Grants that compensate the Group
for expenses incurred are recognised as revenue in
profit or loss on a systematic basis in the same periods
in which the expenses are incurred. Grants whose
primary condition is that the Group should purchase,
construct or otherwise acquire non-current assets are
recognised as deferred revenue in the consolidated
statement of financial position and transferred to profit
or loss on a systematic and rational basis over the
useful lives of the related assets. Government grants
that are receivable as compensation for expenses or
losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving
immediate financial support to the Group with no future
related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they become receivable.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(V) RELATED PARTIES
(@) A person or a close member of that person’s
family is related to the Group if that person:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of key management personnel
of the Group or the Company’s parent.

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the

following conditions apply:

0)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

The entity and the Group are members of
the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which
the other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.
One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of the employees of the
Group or an entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (a).
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

V)

(W)

RELATED PARTIES (CONTINUED)
(b)  (Continued)

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
key management personnel of the entity (or
of a parent of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the
Group or to the Group's parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence, or
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the
entity and include:

(i)  that person’s children and spouse or domestic
partner;

(ii)  children of that person’s spouse or domestic
partner; and

(iii) dependents of that person or that person’s
spouse or domestic partner.

ASSET AND LIABILITIES CLASSIFIED AS
HELD FOR SALE

Assets and liabilities are classified as held for sale
when:

° they are available for immediate sale;

° management is committed to a plan to sell;

o it is unlikely that significant changes to the plan
will be made or that the plan will be withdrawn;

° an active programme to locate a buyer has been
initiated;
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

(W) ASSET AND LIABILITIES CLASSIFIED AS
HELD FOR SALE (CONTINUED)

° the asset is being marketed at a reasonable price
in relation to its fair value; and

° a sale is expected to complete within 12 months
from the date of classification.

Non-current assets classified as held for sale is
measured at the lower of:

° its carrying amount immediately prior to being
classified as held for sale in accordance with the
Group’s accounting policy; and

° fair value less costs to sell.

Following the classification as held for sale, non-current
asset is not depreciated.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, the
directors are required to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and other factors that are considered to
be relevant. Actual results differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

(A) CRITICAL JUDGMENTS IN APPLYING
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(i)

Classification between investment properties
and owner-occupied properties

The Group has developed criteria which require
judgements to determine whether a property
qualifies as an investment property. Investment
property is a property held to earn rentals or
for capital appreciation or both. Therefore,
the Group considers whether a property
generates cash flows largely independently of
the other assets held by the Group. Owner-
occupied properties generate cash flows that are
attributable not only to property but also to other
assets used and service provided. If an entity
provides ancillary services to the occupants of a
property it holds, an entity treats such a property
as investments property only if the services are
insignificant to the arrangement as a whole.

Included in carrying amounts of the Group’s
prepaid lease payments and buildings as at 31
December 2017 were amounts of approximately
HKD252,519,000 and HKD339,806,000 (2016:
HKD240,830,000 and HKD304,253,000) related
to the land and building portions, respectively, of
an outlet mall in the PRC. Based on the mode
of operation of the outlet mall, in particular,
that income earned is largely dependent on
the performance of the retail business of the
occupants and the Group has the power to
make significant operating and financing
decisions regarding the operation of the property,
management is of the opinion that the property is
in the nature of owner-occupied properties under
existing use for accounting purposes.

(i)
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

(A) CRITICAL JUDGMENTS IN APPLYING
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Income and other taxes

The Group is subject to income and other
taxes in a number of jurisdictions. Significant
judgement is required in determining the
provision for income taxes. Transactions and
calculations may exist for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the ordinary
course of business. The Group recognises
liabilities for anticipated tax issues based on
estimates of whether additional taxes will be due.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters
is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the tax
and deferred tax provisions in the period in which
such determination is made.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused
tax losses to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the
losses can be utilised. Significant management
judgement is required to determine the amount
of deferred tax assets that can be recognised,
based upon the likely timing and level of future
taxable profits together with future tax planning
strategies.

Trademarks

The trademarks have been registered for periods
ranging from 7 to 15 years by the relevant
government agency with the option of renewal
when expire. The trademarks may be renewed
indefinitely at little or no cost to the Group.
The Group intends to renew the trademarks
indefinitely and evidence support its ability to do
so. As a result, the trademarks are assessed as
having indefinite useful lives.
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(ii)

(iii)

(iv)
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

(A) CRITICAL JUDGMENTS IN APPLYING
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

)

Determination of control of subsidiaries, joint
control of joint arrangements and power to
exercise significant influence

Judgement is required to determine when the
Group has control of subsidiaries, joint control
of joint arrangements and power to exercise
significant influence. This require an assessment
of the relevant activities and when the decision in
relation to these activities are under the control
of the Group, require unanimous consent under
the joint arrangements or exercise significant
influence in an investment.

In determining the classification of a joint
arrangement between a joint venture or a joint
operation, evaluation of the rights and obligations
arising from such arrangement is required.

Where the Group holds less than 20% of voting
rights in an investment but the Group has the
power to exercise significant influence, such
an investment is treated as an associate. In the
opposite situation where the Group holds over
20% of voting rights (but not over 50%) and the
Group does not exercise significant influence,
the investment is treated as an available-for-sale
investment.

Differing conclusions around these judgements
and evaluation, may materially impact how
these businesses are presented in the
consolidated financial statements — under the
full consolidation method, equity method or
proportionate consolidation method.

w)
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

5. EEEHERETTHANRER
BIEZRIE (48)

(A) CRITICAL JUDGMENTS IN APPLYING
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(vi) Determination of functional currency i) EZTHEE
The Group measures foreign currency REBUARRRRENE AR
transactions in the respective functional BEEZNEEBHEINER F o
FETEEERBINREERE
BIELHE  EEEEFEE
mRE R 2 HEBR 2B -
HEBRFNOREREIBERTES
KE#2HEEELBARZE
o REER 2L EK IR
EEEHREREEZLCER
BREBATHEEBEZEF

(A) FERETBRZEEZHE (&)

currencies of the Company and its subsidiaries.
In determining the functional currencies of

hil

the group entities, judgement is required to

0 X

determine the currency that mainly influences

f O

sales prices for goods and services and of the
country whose competitive forces and regulations
mainly determines the sales prices of its goods
and services. The functional currencies of

the group entities are determined based on LA RETE °
management’s assessment of the economic
environment in which the entities operate and
the entities’ process of determining sales prices.
(vii) Acquisition of subsidiaries vii) HEERTE 2\ 5]

The Group determines whether an acquisition
of subsidiaries qualifies as acquisition of
business in accordance with HKFRS 3 Business
Combination or as an acquisition of assets,
a process which would require exercise of
professional judgement. The directors consider
the substance of the acquisition of subsidiaries
that constitute a business will be accounted
for in accordance with HKFRS 3 Business
Combination, and in case the acquisition of
subsidiaries does not constitute a business, it is
classified as an acquisition of assets.
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

(B) KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION

UNCERTAINTY

The following are the key assumptions concerning
the future, and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the
next financial year:

(i)  Impairment of interests in joint ventures

The determination of whether interests in joint
ventures are impaired requires an estimation
of the share of the Group’s present value of
the estimated future cash flows expected to
be generated by the joint ventures and the
proceeds on ultimate disposal of the interests,
and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate
the present value. Where the actual future
cash flows are less than expected, a material
impairment loss may arise. Adequate impairment
loss had been recognised to the extent that the
recoverable amounts exceed the carrying amount
of the interests in joint ventures.

(i)  Impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired
requires an estimation of the value in use of the
cash-generating units to which goodwill has been
allocated. The value in use calculation requires
the directors to estimate the future cash flows
expected to arise from the cash-generating unit
and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate
the present value.
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

5. EEEHERETTHANRER
BIEZRIE (48)

(B) KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION (B) Lt FAEABEZENEERIR
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED) (48)
(iii)  Fair value measurement (iii) 2\ F(BEFE

A number of assets and liabilities included in the
Group’s consolidated financial statements require
measurement at, and/or disclosure of, fair value.

The fair value measurement of the Group’s
consolidated financial and non-financial
assets and liabilities utilises market observable
inputs and data as far as possible. Inputs
used in determining fair value measurements
are categorised into different levels based
on how observable the inputs used in the
valuation technique utilised are (the “fair value
hierarchy”):

o Level 1: Quoted prices in active markets for
identical items (unadjusted);

o Level 2: Observable direct or indirect
inputs other than Level 1 inputs;

° Level 3: Unobservable inputs (i.e. not
derived from market data).

The classification of an item into the above levels
is based on the lowest level of the inputs used
that has a significant effect on the fair value
measurement of the item. Transfers of items
between levels are recognised in the period they
occur.
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

(B) KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)
(iii)  Fair value measurement (Continued)

(iv)

The Group measures a number of items at fair
value:

o Land and buildings within property, plant
and equipment (Note 14);

o Investment properties (Note 15);

° Trading securities (Note 25); and

o Financial instruments (Note 36)

For more detailed information in relation to the
fair value measurement of the items above,
please refer to the applicable notes to the
consolidated financial statements.

Provision for inventories

The Group reviews the carrying amounts of
inventories at each reporting date to determine
whether the inventories are carried at lower of
cost and net realisable value in accordance with
the accounting policy set out in Note 4(p) to the
consolidated financial statements. Management
estimates the net realisable value based on
the current market situation and historical
experience on similar inventories. Any change in
the assumptions would increase or decrease the
amount of inventories write-down or the related
reversals of write-down and affect the Group's
profit and net asset value.

(iii)

(iv)
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

5. EEEHERETTHANRER
BIEZRIE (48)

(B) KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION (B) Lt FAEABEZENEERIR
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED) (48)

v)

Trademarks

Trademarks that are acquired through
business combination are capitalised on the
consolidated statement of financial position.
These trademarks are valued on acquisition
using a discounted cash flow methodology and
the Company’s directors make assumptions
and estimates regarding future revenue growth,
prices, marketing costs and economic factors
in valuing them. These assumptions reflect the
directors’ best estimates but these estimates
involve inherent uncertainties, which may not be
controlled by the directors.

Upon acquisition the directors assessed the
useful economic life of the trademarks. In
arriving at the conclusion that a trademark has
an indefinite life, the directors considered the
fact that the Group was expected to hold and
support the trademarks for an indefinite period,
through spending on consumer marketing and
promotional support, which are deducted in
arriving at profit or loss. The trademarks are
established over many years and continue
to provide considerable economic benefits.
The directors also considered factors such as
the Group’s ability to continue to protect the
legal rights that arise from these trademarks
indefinitely or the absence of any regulatory,
economic or competitive factors that could
truncate their lives.
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

(B) KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

)

(vi)

Trademarks (Continued)

A strategic decision to withdraw marketing
support from trademarks or the weakening
trademarks’ appeal through changes in
customer preferences might result in the
directors concluding that the trademarks’ lives
had become finite. Were intangible assets to
be assigned a definite life, a charge would be
recorded that would reduce reported profit
from operations and reduce the value of the
assets reported in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

Impairment of trade and other receivables and
loans receivable

The Group estimates the impairment allowances
for trade and other receivables and loans
receivable by assessing the recoverability based
on credit history, prevailing market conditions
and market value of collaterals. This requires the
use of estimates and judgements. Allowances
are applied to trade and other receivables
and loans receivable where events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the balances
may not be collectible. Where the expectation
is different from the original estimate, such
difference will affect the carrying amounts of
trade and other receivables and loans receivable
and thus the impairment loss in the period in
which such estimate is changed. The Group
reassesses the impairment allowances at the end
of each reporting period.

w)

(vi)

5. EEEHERMETTHABRER
BIEZRIE ()

(B) st FHABERMERRE
(#8)

R (&)
REERTEHIEHHRE TS
EEXHHNBEENBEHEER
HmEISSER RSN ATES
HEEGLBERFHEAEE
2 e o M B E RS E T
FH - RIS 2 X h AR E iR
B EEE 25 M A BE AR
BHMBARERNEZHRCEER
o

ESRRMEKRKREKE
st 1

AEERBEERE  RITHR
K AR G (E R A E 1 - 1
A&t B 5 K H At FE U AR 3R &
e E SRE BB R - BRI
it R AV - B EHRIF R
BEBRRTORBEWDE - BlEH
B 5 REMEYIRTR K EKRE
FREHRRR - (e TR R S fh 5t
TR -EREZERETEEI N
Ho A 1 U5 AR R K% B W R R
HE KAFEREGZES
B HORERE - NEER & &
HIR R AP R (B B

FEREFRAS 2017F EHE 121



/122

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the chief operating decision-maker,
being the directors of the Company, for the purpose of
resources allocation and performance assessment focuses
specifically on the assessment of operating performance
in each operating unit, which is the basis upon which the
Group is organised. Each operating unit is distinguished
based on types of goods or services delivered or provided.
No operating segments identified by the chief operating
decision-maker have been aggregated in arriving at the
reportable segments of the Group. Financial information on
segment results and segment assets are regularly provided
to the chief operating decision-maker while no information of
segment liabilities is provided.

The Group’s reportable and operating segments under
HKFRS 8 are as follows:

- Retailing and sourcing — retailing and provision of
sourcing services for branded apparel, swimwear and
accessories to derive revenue from sale of goods;

- Branding — development and management of “PONY”
brand to derive revenue from sale of goods and royalty
income;

- Property investment and holding — rental income;

- QOutlet malls — commission income from concessionaire
sales;

- Financial services — securities brokerage commission,
interest income from margin financing and money
lending, underwriting and placing income and financial

consultancy income; and

- Duty free — sale of goods.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 6. NEPEHE (F)

(A) SEGMENT REVENUE AND RESULTS (A) PEPBHEBERELS

The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and

AR mE D 2N AEE S

results by reportable segment: FEREEDN:
For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE2017#12A3101L§E
Property
Retailing investment Financial
and sourcing Branding  and holding  Outlet malls services Duty free  Consolidated
MERER
TEARE m R REmE BHRE SRR RBER &a
(Note)
(BaE)
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
FET FiET TET FET TiET TET FET
REVENUE -3
External sales HIMNEE 169,601 23,120 51,349 33,775 56,265 14,809 348,919
Inter-segment sales NP E 1,321 - 3,284 48 - = 4,653
170,922 23,120 54,633 33,823 56,265 14,809 353,572
Segment profit/(loss) AEEF/ (R 2,425 5558 153,106 (20,075) 17,746 (10,756) 148,004
Unallocated income RABEKA
~ Interest income —FEHA 3,550
— Gain on disposal of —HEHE AR K
subsidiaries 1,204
- Management fee income - ERENA 247
Central administrative costs R RTEAA (55,712)
Share of results of joint FEELEXE
ventures 19,407
Profit before income tax BRETSH S AT R A
expenses 116,700
Note: st
The revenue from outlet malls BL45 387 486 89
segment is analysed as AR
follows:
Gross revenue from RRTEHEAIRA
concessionaire sales 300,606
Commission income from FRTEHEMGREKA
concessionaire sales 33,775

123
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(A)

/124

SEGMENT REVENUE AND RESULTS
(CONTINUED)

6. SEREAF (&)

(A) SHMEXFRES (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZE2016F12A31H L FE
Property
Retailing investment Financial
and sourcing Branding  and holding  Outlet malls services Duty free  Consolidated
MERER
TERFE il S BENE R SEMRS RRES e
(Note)
(KzE)
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
T T THT T THT T T
REVENUE B
External sales HhHE 131,114 39,561 36,245 29,719 119,592 7,625 363,856
Inter-segment sales AEEHE - - 2912 = = - 2912
131,114 39,561 39,157 29,719 119,592 7,625 366,768
Segment profit/(loss) AT/ (BE) 2,554 8,969 35,138 (37,021) 51,39 (11,507) 49,529
Unallocated income RABBKA
— Interest income —FI8HA 3814
— Gain on disposal of —HENBAR KR
subsidiaries 38
— Management fee income - UON 498
Central administrative costs RRITHAAAR (24,653)
Share of results of joint FaBtEEE
ventures 964
Profit before income tax BRETS B AR
expenses 30,190
Note: Kzt
The revenue from outlet malls B4 357 4 849
segment is analysed as WA BHTIT :
follows:
Gross revenue from R EHEERA
concessionaire sales 252,446
Commission income from R EHEMSRE KA
concessionaire sales 29,719

Segment profit/(loss) represents the profit earned or

the loss incurred by each segment without allocation

of interest income, gain on disposal of subsidiaries,

management fee income, central administrative costs,

and share of results of joint ventures. Such segment

result is reported to the chief operating decision-

maker for the purpose of resources allocation and

performance assessment.
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 6.

(B) SEGMENT ASSETS
The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets by

TEEE (1)
(B) HEPEE

AN RRAmE D22 AEEHE

reportable segment: EDiT:

Segment assets HEBEEE
2017 2016
HKD’000 HKD’000
FHET FETT
Retailing and sourcing TE MR 95,905 47,335
Branding on hE HE B 148,582 151,002
Property investment and holding MERERFEYE 1,673,694 1,480,837
Outlet malls B ZE AR 996,105 583,560
Financial services /AR 425,091 547,123
Duty free R 11,999 15,443
Total segment assets DEEERLE 3,351,376 2,825,300
Unallocated R 883,065 569,876
Consolidated assets HRAEEE 4,234,441 3,395,176

For the purposes of monitoring segment performance
and allocating resources between segments, all assets
are allocated to reportable segments other than
interests in joint ventures, interest in an associate, loan
to an associate, deferred tax assets, club debenture,
amounts due from joint ventures, amount due from an
associate, loan to non-controlling interests, restricted
bank deposits, bank balances and cash and assets of
disposal group classified as held for sale.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %z & B 75 38 3% My 5%
For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z£20174 128318 It F &

6. SEREAF (&)

(C) OTHER SEGMENT INFORMATION (C) Hfpsmrip&EH
For the year ended 31 December 2017 HF2017€12A31H 1L EE
Property
Retailing investment Financial
and sourcing Branding  and holding  Outlet malls services Duty free  Consolidated
MERER
TEARE m R RaEME BHRE SRR RBER &a
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
FET FiET TET FET FiET TET FET
Amounts included in the A ER BT
measure of segment profit/ (518 N EMEEM
(loss) or segment assets: HIE:
Capital expenditure (Note) BARY (f1:F) 4,611 122 382 4,037 24 49 9,225
Depreciation of property, mE- BEREETE
plant and equipment 3,515 380 9,012 16,768 487 3,030 33,192
Amortisation of prepaid BAHEFBEH
lease payments - - - 13,002 - - 13,002
Increase in fair value of REMEATEEEM
investment properties - - 197,663 - - - 197,663
Provision of allowance for bad ~ FEEREEEE
and doubtful debts - - 3,897 - 8,000 - 11,897
(Reversal)/provision of BFEEE (BE) /BE
allowance for FE
inventories, net (13,561) 137 - - - (184) (13,608)
Reversal of provision for EBHERERR
redundancy costs 2,000 - - - - - 2,000
Interest income N ON - - - - 37,331 - 37,331
Interest expense FSAX = - 41,965 = = = 41,965
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %z & 81 ¥ 3R R i 5
For the year ended 31 December 2017 #{Z£2017F12A31H It F &

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 6. NEPEHE (F)

(C) OTHER SEGMENT INFORMATION (C) HioEEE ()

(CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZE2016F12A318 L FE
Property
Retailing investment Financial
and sourcing Branding  and holding  Outlet malls services Duty free  Consolidated
MERER
TERRE MR HEE REME BT SRR RBER Fa
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
FET THEL THET FET THEL T T
Amounts included in the A ERBEF,
measure of segment profit/ (518 A BEEM
(loss) or segment assets: HE:
Capital expenditure (Note) BARX (A12) 2,628 8 619 7,723 12 202 11,212
Depreciation of property, ME BEREETE
plant and equipment 3,508 378 8,896 17978 528 3,491 34,779
Amortisation of prepaid BAREFEEH
lease payments - - - 6,958 - - 6,958
Increase in fair value of REMEATEBELEM
investment properties - - 20,370 - - - 20,370
Provision of allowance for bad ~ RZEREEEE
and doubtful debts - 3,874 - - 8,000 - 11,874
Reversal of allowance for FEEERE T8
inventories, net 1,517 1,408 - - - 383 3,308
Interest income FIEMA = - = = 89,924 = 89,924
Interest expense FIERX - = 18,429 = = = 18,429

Hiet: BRRXBERENE BERZER
RITERMEH (ERNEADER
W BE KRB B E PR HT
FERTE) -

Note: Capital expenditure includes additions to property, plant and
equipment and interest expense of bank borrowing being
capitalised to construction in progress of outlet mall in Xiamen,

the PRC classified as property, plant and equipment.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z£20174 128318 It F &

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(D) GEOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION
The Group’s revenue from external customers by
geographical location of the delivery destinations
and information about its non-current assets by
geographical location of the assets is detailed below:

6. SEREAF (&)

(D) BEEF

AEEBINBEFPHIRAREXE D
i@ A B REFERBEEEIRE
EMER D ENFHBOT

Revenue from Non-current assets

external customers located (Note (ii))
BiMVBEERBA EREEERER (F1720))
2017 2016 2017 2016
HKD’000 HKD'000 HKD’000 HKD'000
TERT THT TERT THT
The People’s Republic of China i AR AFE 247,576 190,118 2,023,747 1,512,315
Taiwan =) 14,367 7,625 2,563 5,146
Hong Kong (Place of domicile) &5 (REH) 63,856 126,553 577,539 506,181
United States of America E35 2,886 7,029 - -
Other Asia countries (Note (7)) Hib TMBIR (Hz#3)) 18,832 26,781 = =
Others (Note (7)) i (H5E0)) 1,402 5,750 146,300 146,676
348,919 363,856 2,750,149 2,170,318
Notes: Hiat -
(i) The geographical information for the revenue attributed to each 0} EREREBEERNKAS D WES

country is not available as the cost to capture such information
would be excessive.

(ii) Non-current assets exclude interests in joint ventures, interest
in an associate, loan to an associate, deferred tax assets and
restricted bank deposits.

(E) INFORMATION ABOUT MAJOR CUSTOMERS
Revenue from one customer of the Group’s retailing
and sourcing segment amounted to approximately
HKD40,305,000 (2016: Nil), which represent 10% or
more of the Group’s revenue.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %z & 81 ¥ 3R R i 5
For the year ended 31 December 2017 #{Z£2017F12A31H It F &

REVENUE

Revenue includes the net invoiced value of goods sold,

commission income from concessionaire sales, royalty
income, rental income, interest income, brokerage
commission, underwriting and placing income, financial

consultancy income and other services income. The amounts
of each significant category of revenue recognised during the

year are as follows:

EXFERCEAMmMNBERFE KT
HEMBAESWA  EREA -FBEEA -
MBWA BLERE BEREERA B
T aE A B B AR AS UL A I F R RE R

R ERBENSEABEFIRKIALT :

2017 2016
HKD’000 HKD’000
FHET FETT
Sale of goods 7 an 35 & 195,365 161,154
Commission income from concessionaire sales 4 FF#EHE TS A S IA 33,775 29,719
Royalty income ES I ON 11,560 17,146
Rental income HEE WA 51,349 36,245
Interest income ) B U A 37,331 89,924
Brokerage commission L fe 5,276 4,773
Underwriting and placing income B8E R B E WA 9,923 23,185
Financial consultancy income B 15 7 SR 3,735 1,710
Other services income H 4 RS UL A 605 =
348,919 363,856

FINANCE COSTS 8. BIERE
2017 2016
HKD’000 HKD’000
FHET FETT
Interest expense on bank borrowings SRITE R B 41,965 18,429

During the year ended 31 December 2017, interest on
bank borrowing amounted to HKD44,652,000 (2016:
HKD18,429,000), of which a total amount of HKD2,687,000
(2016: HKD nil) of interest expense was capitalised into

construction in progress classified as property, plant and

equipment.

HE2017F12A31B8 ILFE - RITE XA
B B44,652,0007% 7T (20164F : 18,429,000
L) - Hh & 2 687,000/ 7T (20164

TET) ZMBRAERNMEA

BEREBzERTIE
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z£20174 128318 It F &

9. INCOME TAX EXPENSES 9. FrEWiZil
The amount of income tax expenses in the consolidated FREEHEBERARFTER S B2 58E:

statement of comprehensive income represents:

2017 2016
HKD’000 HKD'000
TFHT T
Current tax ARHARR IE
Hong Kong &HE
— Profits tax —MIEH
— current year —KREE (2,299) (6,084)
— over provision in prior years —AEFEBREEE - 49
The PRC and other jurisdictions hE R Hith S EH#E
— PRC enterprise income tax — R Bl {h 2R
— current year —ARFEE (7,405) (2,852)
— under provision in prior years —AREFERETRE - (47)
— Foreign tax — BN IR
— current year —ARFEE (641) (1,015)
— under provision in prior years —AREFERETRE (54) -
(10,399) (9,949)
Deferred tax (Note 29) FEERIE (MIFE29)
Hong Kong and the PRC EERPH
— Profits tax and PRC enterprise income tax —FEEE AP
FE
— current year —RFE (48,552) (6,196)
Income tax expenses PSR (58,951) (16,145)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %z & 81 ¥ 3R R i 5
For the year ended 31 December 2017 #{Z£2017F12A31H It F &

INCOME TAX EXPENSES (CONTINUED)

HONG KONG TAX
Hong Kong profits tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated
assessable profits for both years.

PRC TAX

All group companies operating in the PRC are subject to
the applicable tax rate of 25% during the years ended 31
December 2017 and 2016, except for an acquired subsidiary
incorporated in Hong Kong and engaged in property
investment in the PRC, which is subject to the applicable tax
rate of 10% on its gross rental income earned in the PRC,
based on the existing legislation, interpretation and practices
in respect thereof.

Up to the date of approval for issuance of these consolidated
financial statements, the above acquired subsidiary engaged
in property investment in the PRC has not filed the tax
returns for the PRC Enterprise Income Tax in respect of its
income derived from the PRC. The PRC tax authority has the
right to levy penalty for late filing of tax returns. The amount
of such potential penalty cannot be reliably estimated as
the range of which is wide, and therefore no provision was
made in these consolidated financial statements. However,
for all new tenancy agreements signed between the Group
and tenants since early 2016, a new term has been added
such that the tenants are required to pay the PRC Enterprise
Income Tax based on 10% of its gross rental income earned
in the PRC on behalf of the Group, based on the existing
legislation, interpretation and practices in respect thereof.
Based on the experience of the Group’s management and
the above measures adopted, the amount of such penalty, if
any, will not be material to the Group’s consolidated financial
statements. In addition, pursuant to the agreement in respect
of acquisition of that subsidiary, the vendor and its guarantor
have undertaken to indemnify the Group for any tax liability
arising from the above late filing of tax returns prior to the
completion date of the acquisition.

9.

Fra#zt (8)

FEBIE
FREMBH T IRM EFE ARG ERTTE
ML E16.5%5 &

PEHIE

H E£20174F Kk20165F 12431 R L F & -
RPBEENMASE AR ARERRE
25% S A T T - 1fE Y RE B I BB RE M A AL
WP B E M B R RN
REBEBRITES 2BREH ZAFEA
AERFERNNES WA BRIZBERNR
F10% A8 °

BEENEFAPBRERIETIERS it
WEERR P B E MR E M B AR
ARERFEESHRARIPBEREM
BEMABERERE - At REBRGREEE
FLERBR IR AT FR SR B R A B 5K - B BB
FEE R & B8 R B )z &K A] S fhat
F itk 3 88 A 1 S 4R A B TS HR AR o VR
1o AT - B20165F it - A B A P 5
FIEF A FHE OB I — B IR
Wit REEBRITEE RERES
FARRASEZEETRESHESK
ABERE10% SR BIRRATEH - ARIEA
SEEEENLRRARAN CAEE
BRAZEIH (A @B HARENGEA R
BwmERME WAEK - BEAN RIZA RS
ZHB ARG B REERAB K
ABEAREREEERTHK A BAEAE L
A B B S AN ER R B 1 5| BV (R AR IR
Bff-
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INCOME TAX EXPENSES (CONTINUED)

FOREIGN TAX
Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates
prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.

Income tax expenses for the year can be reconciled to the
profit before income tax expenses per the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income as follows:

Fra#zt (8)

BIMBLIR
¥ A 7% 4 B B 2 2 PO BAIE - T KA A
HEEERTRR S -

FEMBHRX A RS 2EEERTER
PS8 S H A& VBT RR AT

2017 2016
HKD’000 HKD’000
THET FHETT
Profit before income tax expenses B PT S FR S H AT S ) 116,700 30,190
Tax expenses calculated at Hong Kong KEBF SR EL6.5%
Profits Tax rate of 16.5% (2016: 16.5%) (2016%F : 16.5% )
FTE BB (19,256) (4,981)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax PEHRTIER S 2
purposes MB 2 (14,741) (3,772)
Tax effect of revenue not taxable AR A 2 T 5 2
for tax purposes 10,913 7,868
Tax effect of share of results of joint ventures HEEREHEB BB E 3,202 =
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RIERMISER MG E (35,030) (15,432)
Tax effect of deductible temporary RERAIREREREZ
difference not recognised MB 2 2,903 (29)
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses PHRBERBERTEEEZ
previously not recognised MG 2 3,565 124
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries ROHE fth BARE R L& 7Y
operating in other jurisdictions B AR TRIF R 2 & (10,453) 75
(Under)/over provision in respect of prior years BEEE (BETR),/
TRFE R (54) 2
Income tax expenses TS (58,951) (16,145)

In addition to the amount charged to profit or loss, deferred
tax relating to the revaluation of the Group’s properties has
been charged or credited directly to other comprehensive
income as disclosed in Note 29 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %z & 81 ¥ 3R R i 5
For the year ended 31 December 2017 #{Z£2017F12A31H It F &

10. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

(A) OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

10. FEi 7l

(A) HW AR

2017 2016
HKD’000 HKD’000
THET T
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries ank= Y= PNC I s 1,204 38
Bad debts recovery AR E K - 30
Dividend income from trading securities 22 EH B &= B 5K 2 WA 4,371 29
Interest income from bank deposits R ERITF KA B WA 380 1,839
Interest income from joint ventures REEEEHEFNBUA 2,954 1,975
Interest income received from an associate B, 48 & 1 5 5 S U A 216 -
Government grant BT 48 B 901 1,801
Reversal of provision for redundancy costs i& B & & & 5ol 2,000 =
Others =uii} 4,826 5,670
16,852 11,382
(B) OTHER EXPENSES (B) HMFEX
2017 2016
HKD’000 HKD'000
THT T
Bad debts written off B M sH AR = 3,362
Loss on disposal of property, HEWE WMERREESIE -
plant and equipment, net FE 945 10
Write off of property, plant and equipment #12 « B&E & % 5l BR - 8
Provision of allowance for bad and RERBEEE FE
doubtful debts, net
— Trade and other receivables and loans ~ —& 5 & £ b & g BR 7 %
receivable U E K 11,897 11,874
Net loss on trading securities BB B FEEE 3,325 822
Fair value loss on trading securities BEERAF AT EEERE 3,640 1,630
Others Hb 2,098 2,268
21,905 19,974
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10. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR (CONTINUED)

(C) PROFIT FOR THE YEAR HAS BEEN ARRIVED

134

10. F i Fl

C) FEmMEH:

AT:
2017 2016
HKD’000 HKD’000
TFH#IT FHET
After charging: bR :
Directors’ emoluments (Note 11(a)) F50% (MEll@) 6,810 5,425
Other employee costs: HibEERAE:
— Salaries —%% 57,344 51,981
— Welfare and other expenses — &7 R E AR 2 4,443 2,834
— Retirement benefits schemes —IRRBFIFT B
contributions, excluding directors TBREES 8,021 6,381
Share-based payments, excluding directors LARX D 2 - - "B IEE S 702 1,481
77,320 68,602
Auditor’s remuneration Z R BN & 1,950 1,860
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments T8+ 10 & 2 E #E 8 13,002 6,958
Cost of inventories recognised as expense &2 45 5 B 17 & A AN 119,822 91,998
Depreciation of property, Y B R ETE
plant and equipment 33,192 34,779
Exchange losses, net 0E 5 518 - R 5 8,199 2,061
Minimum lease payments under A EUEHEENSEHEE
non-cancellable lease A 19,087 12,371
Write off of property, plant and equipment #12 « & = M &% & il BR - 8
Loss on disposal of property, HEWE WBERREEE -
plant and equipment, net FE 945 10
After crediting: KEEA:
Reversal of allowance for inventories, FEEIKEL 25 (M)
net (Note) 13,608 3,308
Gross rental income from REMERSWALLZE
investment properties 51,349 36,245
Less: direct operating expenses incurred by ¥ : FTE A HZE &2
— investment properties that —EXHES WA
generate rental income AWM (9,930) (4,771)
— investment properties that did — I E A AR
not generate rental income AWM (49) (124)
41,370 31,350

Note: The reversal of allowance for inventories arising from an

increase in net realisable value was caused by the increase in

estimated scrap value.
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EMOLUMENTS

11. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

(A) DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S

11. ESHRERESHM

(A) EERFETBASEHN

Directors’ emoluments is disclosed as follows: EEMFINEF AT :
2017 20174
Cheng
Tun Nei
(Chief Chan Hong Kim Wah Chow
Executive Kar Lee, Cheong Shum Wang Kei Yu Chun
Officer) Gary (Note a) Pui Kay Jackie Alexander Total
BER
(B8R F
BiTE) REH (Bata) R ERH BF &
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
FET TiET TET FET TiET TER FET
Fees 43 - - 45 160 170 170 545
Other emoluments: Hitig:
Salaries and other benefits FeREMRBH 2,382 1,962 1,473 = = = 5,817
Contributions to retirement RINERFT B
benefits schemes 18 18 12 - - - 48
Share-based payments AR5 2 1+ - 200 200 - - = 400
Total emoluments HwemE 2,400 2,180 1,730 160 170 170 6,810
2016 2016%F
Cheng
Tun Nei
(Chigf Chan Wah Chow
Executive Kar Lee, Hong Kim Shum Wang Kei Yu Chun
Officer) Gary Cheong Pui Kay Jackie Alexander Total
HER
(B
HAE) S okl MIEE ERE BFk S
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
Fees - - - 180 160 170 170 680
Other emoluments: Hitig:
Salaries and other benefits HeREMBH 2,382 1,962 - - = = 4,344
Bonus (Note b) TEAL (Hiztb) 200 165 - - - - 365
Contributions to retirement RINEFIFH B
benefits schemes 18 18 - - - - 36
Share-based payments PARR AR 32 £+ - - - - - - -
Total emoluments wemE 2,600 2,145 180 160 170 170 5,425
Note: Bt

(a) Mr. Hong is changed from non-executive director to executive

director effective on 1 April 2017; and

(b) The bonus is based on the performance of individuals and the

entity.

(@) JEEB2017F4R1BEHIERTES
HAMTES R

(b)  TEALRMERIALRARRIAMER-

FEREFRAS 2017F E & 135




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %z & B 75 38 3% My 5%
For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z£20174 128318 It F &

11. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND 11. EERERESHN (E)
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(A) DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S A) EERFETHAEHMN(E)

EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)

There are no payments for the loss of office paid to
directors in connection with the management of affairs
of the Group during the years ended 31 December
2017 and 2016.

No retirement benefit was paid to or receivable by
directors for management of affairs of the Group during
31 December 2017 and 2016.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, certain
directors were granted share options, in respect of their
services to the Group, under the share option scheme
of the Company, further details of which are set out
in Note 32 to the consolidated financial statements.
The fair value of such options, which was recognised
in profit or loss in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income over the vesting period, was
determined as at the date of grant and the amounts
included in the financial statements for both years are
included in the above directors’ and chief executive’s
emoluments disclosures.

Salaries and other benefits paid to or for the executive
directors are generally emoluments in respect of
those persons’ other service in connection with the
management of the affairs of the Company and its
subsidiaries.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #{Z£2017F12A31H It F &

11. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND 11. EERERESHMN (F)
EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS
(CONTINUED)
(B) EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (B) {E & %M
During the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016, #H 220174 2016512 A31H I &
the five highest paid individuals of the Group included B AEEESHHOSEALT B
the Chief Executive and two directors (2016: the Chief BETBA B R2ZESE (20165 : &
Executive and one director) whose emoluments are BITBRAENIZESE)  HENFH
disclosed in Note 11(a) to the consolidated financial B EXERE BRI ELL(Q)E
statements above. The emoluments of the remaining £ o H 6424 (2016%F : 3% ) AL HYF:
two (2016: three) individuals are as follows: [ NE
2017 2016
HKD’000 HKD’000
FHET FETT
Salaries and other benefits Fre M EMER 2,844 3,695
Retirement benefits schemes contributions iR 4@ F| 5t 214 7% 36 45
2,880 3,740
Their emoluments were within the following bands: ®RERZ NI Y EE A -
2017 2016
No. of No. of
employees employees
EEAE BB AZK
HKD1,000,001 to HKD1,500,000 1,000,001/8 . &
1,500,000 JT 2 3
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11. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND 11. EEWRESHFN (8)
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS
(CONTINUED)
(B) EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED) (B) EEHHMM (&)
The emoluments paid or payable to members of senior ENSENESREEAR (E5HRIN)
management (excluding directors) were within the B 37 B 75 78 TS %1 6 B A -
following bands:
2017 2016
No. of No. of
employees employees
EE A BB A
Nil to HKD1,000,000 = 21,000,000 7T 3 2
HKD1,000,001 to HKD1,500,000 1,000,001/& T2
1,500,000 7T 4 3
12. DIVIDENDS 12. g2
2017 2016
HKD’000 HKD’000
THEIT FH& 7T
2016 final dividend of HKD0.0038 per ordinary £ A2 IR 20164 Hi 2R A% &
share declared and paid during the year &% A%0.003878 7T
(2016: 2015 final dividend of HKD0.02 per (20164 : 2015F HAR IR B
ordinary share) &M EA%0.02/8 7T ) 11,232 53,974
No interim dividend was declared or paid during the years B E20174F R2016%F12A31R L FEH
ended 31 December 2017 and 2016. For the year ended BB R SOR P HIBR - Bl E20174 127
31 December 2017, the board of directors recommends the BIALEGE EFERARA R AIBRIK
payment of final dividend of HKD0.005 per ordinary share < B R AR S & % & 38 %0.0057%8 T (2016
to the shareholders of the Company (2016: HKDO0.0038 per F:EREBMKO003BET)  NEaHRB
ordinary share), amounting to approximately HKD14,782,000 14,782,0007% 7t (20164 : 11,232,000/&
(2016: HKD11,232,000) in aggregate. T
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13. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share
attributable to owners of the Company is based on the
following data:

13. Bix&EF

ARAHEEAREERERNNEERF TS
WRIIBIEAE

EARNINGS |
2017 2016
HKD’000 HKD’000
FHET TE T
Profit for the year attributable to owners of RRARHEAE ANEEEE&F
the Company 41,018 27,746
2017 2016
Number Number
of shares of shares
=] R 1n 8k B
'000 ‘000
el TR
Number of shares RREE
Weighted average number of ordinary shares AT E &G REREFH
for the purpose of basic earnings per share 57 A% I A S 15 2K 2,910,571 2,700,487
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares BESELERRE
(Note): (HieE) -
— Options — M A 4 364 1,126
— Warrants — R EE - -
Weighted average number of ordinary shares RUGTESR#ESRTF 2
for the purpose of diluted earnings per share 37 A% hn A 15 2K 2,910,935 2,701,613
Earnings per share SEREF
Basic earnings per share (HK cents) SRREAREF) BN 1.41 1.03
Diluted earnings per share (HK cents) SRESER R B 1.41 1.03

Note: The Company's warrants as at 31 December 2017 and 2016 did not
give rise to any dilution effect on the earnings per share because the
exercise price of the Company’s outstanding warrants issued during
the year ended 31 December 2017 and 2016, respectively, was higher
than the average market price of the Company’s shares for the year.

Hat . ARRQAER20174 2016512 A31 B KRR 1E &
REHEEREF  BEHZE20174 20165612
A318 IEFEAR R AT B EHITRRE
BRZIIFEEDNBRAFEEARRRRMD FHEHEH

BEe
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %z & B 75 38 3% My 5%
For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z£20174 128318 It F &

14. Y% - B E R R E

Leasehold land  Leasehold land Furniture,
and buildings  and buildings Leasehold  Construction in Plant and fixtures and Motor
in Hong Kong in the PRC Buildings  improvements progress machinery equipment vehicles Vessel Total
REER REER
HELHRR  HEIHER HENE R
| & [ 3 [ &3 34 HEIE  RERME  REREMH RE e B
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
FEL TET FEL FhL TEL TET FhEL FhL TR FET
Cost or revaluation RAGHE
At 1 January 2016 M201651A1R 210,000 26914 319,634 90,497 - 802 20,633 4129 2922 675,531
Additions E - - 4138 6,269 - - 340 457 8 11212
Surplus arising on revaluation ~ EffE£HRH 15,000 - - - - - - - - 15,000
Write off & - - - - - - (29) - - (29)
Disposals e = = = (562) = = (82) (35) = (679)
Exchange realignment EXET - (1,535) (18,132) (4,694) = (323) (490) (401) - (25,575)
At 31 December 2016 M2016%512A318 225,000 25,379 305,640 91,510 = 479 20372 4,150 2930 675,460
Comprising: a8
At cost A - - - 91,510 - 479 20,372 4,150 2930 119,441
At revaluation - 2016 fHE-2016F 225,000 25379 305,640 - - - - - - 556,019
225,000 253719 305,640 91,510 - 479 20,372 4,150 2,930 675,460
Cost o revaluation BASEE
At 1 January 2017 R2017F1A1R 225,000 25379 305,640 91,510 - 479 20372 4150 2,930 675,460
Additions AE - - - 2,822 2893 - 2,982 528 - 9,225
Acquisition of a subsidiary WEKBAR
(Note 47) (Hrita7) = = = = = = 290 22 - 312
Surplus arising on revaluation  EfREEMEH 32,000 38 11,616 - - - - - - 43,654
Disposals e = = - (2,702) = = (269) (119) = (3,090)
Exchange realignment ERES = 1,983 22,550 6957 = 6 652 188 = 32,33
At 31 December 2017 M2017412A318 257,000 27,400 339,806 98,587 2893 485 24,027 4769 2930 757,897
Comprising: a8
At cost % - - - 98,587 2893 485 24,027 4769 2930 133,691
At revaluation - 2017 fHE-2017F 257,000 27,400 339,806 - - - - - - 624,206
257,000 27,400 339,806 98,587 2893 48 24,027 4,769 2,930 757,897
Accumulated deprecation B3t E
At 1 January 2016 1201651 A1R - - - 46,09 - 460 14924 1,984 170 63,633
Provided for the year FEEE 6,882 414 8909 14905 - 133 2,506 737 293 34,779
Write back on revaluation EHERE (6,882) (403) (6,937) - - - - - - (14,222)
Wiite off i - - - - - - (21) - - (21)
Eliminated on disposal HE R - - - (560) - - (75) (0) - (642)
Exchange realignment [ 5 5 - (1) (585) (3,100) = (321) (444) (360) - (4,821)
At 31 December 2016 M2016512A318 - - 1,387 57,340 - 272 16,890 2,354 463 78,706
Provided for the year FEEE 6,947 414 8935 13,533 - 131 2,209 731 292 33192
Acquisition of a subsidiary KEHEAR
(Note 47) (#ii47) - - - - - - 140 2 - 161
Write back on revaluation & (6947) (414) (10,804) = = = = = - (18,165)
Eliminated on disposal HEREH - - - (1,709) - - (115) (117) - (1,941)
Exchange realignment L - - 482 4,808 - 4 620 118 - 6,032
At 31 December 2017 R2017512A318 - - - 73972 - 407 19,744 3,107 755 97,985
Carrying amount REE
At 31 December 2017 R2017412A318 257,000 27,400 339,806 24,615 2893 8 4283 1,662 2175 659,912
At 31 December 2016 R2016512A318 225,000 253719 304,253 34,170 - 207 3482 1,79 2467 596,754
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %z & 81 ¥ 3R R i 5
For the year ended 31 December 2017 #{Z£2017F12A31H It F &

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(CONTINUED)

The net book value of construction in progress consist of an
amount of HKD2,893,000 (2016: HKD nil) relating to the
Group’s new outlet mall in Xiamen, which is currently under
construction in progress which will be depreciated once
the property is completed and available for use. Additions
during the year of HKD2,893,000 (2016: HKD nil) relating
to interest and direct attributable costs capitalised during the
year.

The Group’s buildings located in Shenyang and Shanghai,
the PRC and the leasehold land and buildings located
in Hong Kong were valued on 31 December 2017 and
2016 by Prudential Surveyors (Hong Kong) Limited and
Greater China Appraisal Limited respectively, independent
firms of professional property valuers not connected to the
Group. During the year, the fair value of the leasehold land
and buildings in Hong Kong and Shanghai, the PRC of
approximately HKD284,400,000 as at 31 December 2017
was transferred from level 2 to level 3 recurring fair value
measurement and of the buildings in Shenyang, the PRC,
of approximately HKD339,806,000 as at 31 December
2017 (2016: HKD304,253,000) is a level 3 recurring fair
value measurement. The transfer out of level 2 into level 3
recurring fair value measurement during the year was due to
the significance of adjustments to discounts or premiums on
differences in characteristics of the properties being valued
and the properties for which the observed market transaction
prices were based on.

The valuations of leasehold land and buildings in Hong Kong
and Shanghai adopted a direct comparison approach with
reference to market comparable sales evidence available
in the market. The valuations of buildings in Shenyang, the
PRC adopted the depreciated replacement cost approach
by considering the building costs and fees incurred for the
erection of building in the absence of comparable sales
evidence.

14. Y% - B ERRE (8)

ERTREFESRAAEENEMMHTR
SR (BRI EAE®EZG —BZMWERTR
AR A B S T 3T B ) B B B0 & %R2,893,000/8
7t (2016%F : B 7T) ° F MR E2,893,0008 7T
(20165 : BT ) BERENMEHOF S MELE
BARARREE-

R2017F K20165F12 A31 8 » AL E A BIER
FEBNEFRERESNHEE L MIEFE D5
PR R ER END M I 2 B B Y (S B R TR
BT (BB)ARARKEETEERARET
HE-FR REBRTE EEHHEE L+ RE
F 12017412 31 H #7284,400,0007% JT B A F
BEDEBEF _-_REREF=RKBHEATEER
AT MRHBEEGREFR2017F1283184
339,806,000/ 7T (20164F : 304,253,000/ 7T ) £
AFEBEAAE=FRLEFHATEEFE -FNR
BE BB EE =B AT EBTEH
RIEEYMZEREBERMER SESFTKENYE
FHEEREARSRERAENEE -

HREE R DENEE T MET M ETIERS
BEERLEE H2REMS LTS LBRIHEE
BEMETE MNP BERGOEFTOME E
RZ AT EGHE BB 2 BN MR E RERET
EENEERARERR KAFTEFTEXLL
M EE °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4= & Bf 7 R &= M 5%

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z£20174 128318 It F &

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. W% W E R (48)
(CONTINUED)
A reconciliation of the opening and closing level 3 recurring FHRFRE—MEEU AT EELEHRY
fair value balances is provided below. BRAOR ©
2017 2016
HKD’000 HKD’'000
TFHIT T
Opening balance (level 3 recurring fair value) #1458k
(B=RRFEMERATER) 304,253 319,634
Additions NE - 4,138
Transfer from level 2 recurring fair value EREAE LT
~F¥EE 284,400 -
Gain on revaluation of properties held for own 5t A E fth 2 U A 8945 1E
use included in other comprehensive income BERNENEG KRS 22,420 6,937
Depreciation e (8,935) (8,909)
Exchange realignment P& 5 &= 5] 22,068 (17,547)
Closing balance (level 3 recurring fair value) FRERR
(E=BREERFEE) 624,206 304,253
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %z & 81 ¥ 3R R i 5
For the year ended 31 December 2017 #{Z£2017F12A31H It F &

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(CONTINUED)

INFORMATION ABOUT FAIR VALUE

14. Y% - B ERRE (8)

AHAERAEXTIREREARENA

MEASUREMENT USING SIGNIFICANT TEETENEH:
UNOBSERVABLE INPUT:
Properties Valuation approach Notes Significant unobservable input Range
/ES fEER* Mzt EXFUHZHABE §E
2017 2016
HKD HKD
Hong Kong Direct comparison (i)  (Discount)/premium on -15% to 11% N/A
approach characteristics of the properties
BB BELRE MERIER (37:8) 5B TNEH
Shanghai, Direct comparison (i)  (Discount)/premium on -2% to -1% N/A
the PRC approach characteristics of the properties
HE £ BEEEA MERIER (37:8) 5B TER
Shenyang, Depreciated replacement (i)  Construction costs (HKD/sq. meter) 7,315 -9,233 6,785 - 8,564
the PRC cost approach
T EER WESEERARE BERA (B FHK)
Notes: Htat -

()

(ii)

The valuations take into account the characteristics of the properties
which included the time, floor, age, quality, size and view of
comparable transactions.

A significant increase/(decrease) in the discount on characteristics of
the properties, or a significant (decrease)/increase in the premium on
characteristic of the properties would result in a significant (decrease)/
increase in fair value of leasehold land and buildings.

A significant increase/(decrease) in construction costs would result in a
significant increase/(decrease) in fair value of the buildings.

0] HEZEBYERLE BEALBRR S ZRHHE &
Bk HE RERSBE-

YIRS R BREIE N, OR D) S ER %
HENEE ORd) ENSEBFRE L1 RiE
FRFEERNEAE ORd) -

(i)  EERANREEN (D) BEHRFHA
FEERZEIEN ORD) -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %z & B 75 38 3% My 5%
For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z£20174 128318 It F &

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. W% -BERERE(8)

(CONTINUED)

INFORMATION ABOUT FAIR VALUE
MEASUREMENT USING SIGNIFICANT
UNOBSERVABLE INPUT: (CONTINUED)

There were no changes to the valuation techniques during
the year.

The fair value measurement is based on the above
properties’ highest and best use, which does not differ from
their actual use.

Had the land and buildings not been revalued, they
would have been included in these consolidated financial
statements at historical cost less accumulated depreciation
in the amount of approximately HKD397,484,000 (2016:
HKD385,037,000).

AAERAEXTIREZEAREND
FEEFEHEH: (§)

TR EETALEL RS-

RNPEBEAEDNAEAYME &S REE
Rz (EERASRLEZR) REE-

Wt B FIBEH(GE HEUNESL
P AN #1108k R 54T B8 B - 49397,484,00078 7T
(2016%F : 385,037,000/ 7T ) 5+ A4r & B 75
e

2017 2016

HKD’000 HKD’000

TFHEIT FET

Leasehold land and buildings in Hong Kong REBHHEE L W RIEF 86,169 88,425
Leasehold land and buildings in PRC RABE/ES it MEF 26,280 24,711
Buildings BF 285,035 271,901
397,484 385,037

Leasehold land and buildings in Hong Kong is pledged to
a bank to secure the bank borrowings and general banking
facilities granted to the Group as disclosed in Note 30 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %z & 81 ¥ 3R R i 5
For the year ended 31 December 2017 #{Z£2017F12A31H It F &

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 15. REYXE
Investment
properties Completed
under investment
construction properties Total
By B
BEME BEME BeH
HKD’000 HKD’000 HKD’000
T FHET FHIT
Fair value: AEEE:
At 1 January 2016 R2016F1H1H 437,116 753,307 1,190,423
Increase in fair value recognised RIBRMEZN A EEE I

in profit or loss 2,974 17,396 20,370
Exchange realignment FE 5, & 7| (25,104) (30,421) (55,525)
At 31 December 2016 2016512 H31H 414,986 740,282 1,155,268
Acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 47) U 5 —RIK B A 7 (H73247) = 366,040 366,040
Additions VN=T - 13,316 13,316
Increase in fair value recognised B ERN A EBE I

in profit or loss 25,829 171,834 197,663
Transfer to asset of disposal EBESBEARELES

group classified as held for sale BRNEE (B:227)

(Note 27) (482,179) = (482,179)
Exchange realignment FE H &5 41,364 74,184 115,548
At 31 December 2017 M2017F12A31H = 1,365,656 1,365,656
Notes: Htat -

(a) All of the Group’s leasehold interests in land and buildings held under
operating leases to earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes
are classified and accounted for as investment properties and are
measured using the fair value model.

(b) As at 31 December 2017, the fair value of commercial properties
in Beijing, the PRC of approximately HKD551,604,000 (2016:
HKD504,282,000) was a level 3 recurring fair value measurement.

(@) AEEREEHEFESKRARBEAEERSE
MFTE L B FOEERES DO BRRNERE
WEAR TARNFEBEEXGFTE-

(b)  M2017F12A31H B RO BEEMEL
551,604,000 7t (20164F : 504,282,000/ 7T.)
WAFEBEDRFE=ZREEERFEBETE-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %z & B 75 38 3% My 5%
For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z£20174 128318 It F &

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

Notes: (Continued)

(b)

(Continued)

The commercial and industrial properties in Hong Kong and Shanghai,
the PRC as at 31 December 2016 which was a level 2 recurring
fair value measurement with an aggregate carrying amount of
approximately HKD236,000,000 was transferred from level 2 recurring
fair value measurement to level 3 recurring fair value measurement of
approximately HKD292,810,000 during the year (2016: no transfer).

The transfer out of level 2 into level 3 recurring fair value measurement
during the year was due to the significance of adjustments to discounts
or premiums on differences in characteristics of the properties being
valued and the properties for which the observed market transaction
prices were based on.

Investment properties under construction in Shenyang, the PRC
as at 31 December 2016, which was a level 3 recurring fair
value measurement, with a carrying amount of approximately
HKD414,986,000 was transferred to assets of disposal group
classified as held for sale as at 31 December 2017, at a fair value of
HKD482,179,000.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group acquired a
commercial property in Chongging, the PRC with a carrying amount as
at 31 December 2017 of approximately HKD521,242,000, was a level
3 recurring fair value measurement.

A reconciliation of the opening and closing level 3 recurring fair value
balances is provided below.

15. 2 &M% (&)

Wit - (&)

(b)

(&)

MREBRFEEEBNEERTENENS -

#20164F 12 A31 H BREI{E & $£49236,000,000/%
THE-RRBEATEEFEFARE R
KEUEATEEHEEREE=AEELEAT
B A 5T £ £9292,810,000/% 7T (20164F : I & 3
B o

FRAE_REREZE=REEEATEEFE
TR EEYEREBRTISR 5 ERTIKE
MYERFEZERROEEFAENER M -

B BUERS M EGR R ROIRE MR F - 102016
12 A31H RE{E4)414,986,00078 LY 8 = %
KEUEATEEFEEREN2017412A31H
AN EERA482,179,0008 TH S ERFELE
HRIEE-

B ZE2017F12A31BLtFE AL B K E
URHPEEEN2017F12A318REED
521,242,000/ TR XM IBE=BET
MRAFEEFE

FORFRE=MERUEATFBESHKEERD
To

2017 2016
HKD'000 HKD’000
FHET FHET
Opening balance (level 3 recurring fair value) FEER
(BE=ZHEEULAFEE) 919,268 437,116
Acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 47) g — B A (A7747) 366,040 =
Increase in fair value recognised in profit or loss RIBRFERH AT EEE N 154,723 2,974
Transfer from level 2 recurring fair value KEEATEE 292,810 504,282
Transfer to assets of disposal group classified AEEREHRREE
as held for sale (482,179) -
Exchange realighment JE &5 114,994 (25,104)
Closing balance (level 3 recurring fair value) FRES
(B=BEEMEATEE) 1,365,656 919,268
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %z & 81 ¥ 3R R i 5
For the year ended 31 December 2017 #{Z£2017F12A31H It F &

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

Notes: (Continued)

(b)

(Continued)

The fair values of the Group’s commercial and investment properties
under construction in Hong Kong and Shenyang, the PRC, at 31
December 2017, were arrived at on the basis of valuations carried
out on that date by Greater China Appraisal Limited and Prudential
Surveyors (Hong Kong) Limited respectively, independent firms of
professional property valuers not connected to the Group. For the
commercial property in Hong Kong, the fair value is determined by
applying the capitalisation of rental receivables during the residual
period of the existing tenancies at an appropriate capitalisation rate by
using the discounted cash flow method. The valuation also includes
the estimated terminal value and made provision for reversionary
interests after expiry of tenancy with reference to market rental
of leased properties nearby. For the investment properties under
construction in Shenyang, the PRC, the fair value is determined by
considering numbers of similar government land sales in the area
nearby. Both valuation methodologies take various factors into account,
such as expected rental growth rate, term yield, reversionary yield and
market rent for the commercial property in Hong Kong, and locations,
time and size of comparable transactions for investment properties
under construction in Shengyang, the PRC respectively.

In prior year, the fair value of the commercial property in Hong
Kong was determined by using the market approach. The change
in valuation technique in the current year was a result of renewal of
tenancy agreement, which in the view of the valuer had made the use
of capitalisation of rental receivables approach is more appropriate.

The fair value of the Group’s commercial properties in Beijing, the
PRC, at 31 December 2017 was arrived at on the basis of valuations
carried out on that date by Prudential Surveyors (Hong Kong) Limited,
an independent firm of professional property valuer not connected to
the Group. The valuation methodology was changed from applying the
term and reversionary approach to comparison approach. The change
in valuation technique in the current year was a result of more in the
market executed transactions available.

The fair values of commercial and industrial properties in Chongging,
the PRC and Hong Kong at 31 December 2017 and 2016, were
arrived at on the basis of valuation carried out on those dates by &
Y EERIT L E HETEBR QA E S A 7] and Prudential
Surveyors (Hong Kong) Limited respectively, independent firms of
profession property valuers not connected to the Group. The valuations
of investment properties were arrived by comparison approach with
reference to market comparable sales evidence available in the market.

15. 28 (&)

Hiet - ()

(b)

(%)

M2017F12A31H  AEBREE R BEES
FER MR MR BN EN AT EETAE
AEBIEBE 2B EERYEAEMITES
AMEARARKARTEEER AR D BINZ
BAETHEERELEFE IR BENEEDE
M RFEEDHRBURRESREE HEHE
HA R R RN ERE S AEE 0 E AR
ERMLETE - AT EEGREEEL2EH
EEEMETSESHBHNIRROERES
EH B NP BEEG B Eh R EYEM
5 ATFEETEE BT RSB CET it
$HE R B R i E - MRl (E 7 A A R TEH
HeEiR HHkaR BERKERRT5HE
& (RBEEHENEMS ) ARABELBRRZH
HoEh - B R ARAE (B BB SAERICE Y
F)EZERAK-

PNBEFE  RNEENEENENRFEETIR
RTISAESE - AFEMERMNES R EE
TR E 3 FTER T fik (L6 58 A3 0 % 55 16 71 P B
WHSERNOEBERRE -

M2017F12A31H  ARE BN A B L R %
MR A BB T A BN 4R B 3 % B i 2 8 57
EXRYEHEMTIRZITEEERAANZA
ETRMEARREE - EEARERFHR
ERREE BILEE - AFE M ERMNEE T
A EGEZEETNM SR IAH -

MN20174F Kk2016F12A31H - RHABREE KRB
BHBERTENENRAFEETDARREER
I BR3E 2 B B R YR ERMITARYITER
RITLEHER AR A RKED A 7 RA
BUEAEERARANZE PN AETHME
REEAE - REVMEZBENZETHABLZ
AL BT 5 HERE  BRALLEOAEE
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15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

Notes: (Continued)

(c)
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15. 2 &M% (&)

Wit - (&)

Information about fair value measurements using significant (c) EAFEREA TSR GABEN A FEBER
unobservable inputs: EHER:
Range
siE
Properties Valuation approach Notes  Significant unobservable inputs
fH{E % % Biit BXRACTHRE AR 2017 2016
Shenyang, the  Direct comparison approach (i) (Discount)/premium on -30% to 5% -3% to 10%
PRC characteristics of the properties
FEES HELEE PERER (TR) S Rm(E
Beijing, the Direct comparison approach (i) Discount on characteristics of -0.5% N/A
PRC HELEBA the properties
AL R Y ERF IR AT R NEA
Term and reversionary (ii) Term yield N/A 5.9%
approach
FHRERE FH A EH
Reversionary Yield N/A 5.5%
BB EH
Market unit rent per month N/A 232
(HKD/sq. meter) ER
mIBEMAM (BT, FHK)
Shanghai, the Direct comparison approach (i) Discount on characteristics of 2% to -1% N/A
PRC the properties
FE e HELEE MER IR IR NEA
Chongging, Direct comparison approach (i) Market price (HKD/sq. meter) 13,180 N/A
the PRC
FREE HELEE MIBER (BT, FHK) iE A
Hong Kong Direct comparison approach (i) (Discount)/premium on -20% to 13% N/A
B HELEE characteristics of the properties
YRR (F758) 5B NEA
Capitalisation of rental (iii) Term yield 2.1% N/A
receivables approach
FEW AR & & ANMb )X FH A NEA
Reversionary yield 2.6% N/A
BB NEA
Market unit rent per month 501 N/A
(HKD/sq. meter)
mIBEMAME (BT, FHK) iE A
(i) The valuations take into account the characteristics of the 0) HEZEYESE  BETLERS 2B -8

properties which included the location, size, time, floor, age
and quality of comparable transactions.

A significant increase/(decrease) in the discount on
characteristics of the properties, or a significant (decrease)/
increase in the premium on characteristics of the properties

BRE2E BRRES-

WEFUITROBERE N, ORd) s A1
HENREE (Rd) SEMBBEREMERT
BENEZE CRD) L.

would result in a significant (decrease)/increase in fair value of
the investment properties.



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %z & 81 ¥ 3R R i 5
For the year ended 31 December 2017 #{Z£2017F12A31H It F &

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

Notes: (Continued)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(Continued)

(i) Term and reversionary approach measures the fair value of the
properties by taking into account the rental income derived
from the existing leases with due allowance for the reversionary
income potential of the leases, which are then capitalised into
the value at appropriate rates.

A significant increase/(decrease) in term yield and reversionary
yield of the properties, or a significant (decrease)/increase in
market unit rent of the properties would result in a significant
(decrease)/increase in fair value of the investment properties.

(iii) Capitalisation of rental receivables approach measures the
fair value of the properties by taking into account the rental
receivables during the residue period of the existing leases with
due allowance for the reversionary interests after expiry of the
leases, which are then capitalised into the value at appropriate
rates.

A significant increase/(decrease) in term yield and reversionary
yield of the properties, or a significant (decrease)/increase in
market unit rent of the properties would result in a significant
(decrease)/increase in fair value of the investment properties.

The fair value measurement is based on the above properties’ highest
and best use, which does not differ from their actual use.

As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, a large portion of the completed
investment properties was rented out under operating leases.
Details of operating lease arrangements are set out in Note 38 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Certain investment properties are pledged to banks to secure the bank
borrowings and general banking facilities granted to the Group as
disclosed in Note 30 to the consolidated financial statements.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group has obtained
the formal title in respect of its interest in a parcel of land classified
as investment properties under construction with a carrying amount
of approximately HKD226,725,000 (2016: HKD210,291,000). As at
31 December 2017, the land is classified as held for sale subject to
the disposal plan as disclosed in Note 27 to the consolidated financial
statements.

15. I8 ME (&)

Wit - ()

(c)

(ii)

(d)

(e)

FHRERETRRAAEMFOHESIKRA I
HRERBEEERBAELEE R BRIDE
BHOBENMeAEER FEMEHAFEE

WM F B KRB RSN EEE N O
D) RyETSEMESOEE ORd) SEneg
BYEREMEDNTEENEE ORD) M-

(i)  ERESEAMCOET RAA BN &R
HRMERES WEEZBEER
BEOESERMBYENRFER"
A B A S RER A B E LR E AL

)5 B B R g T 1R R W s O B HE N
SO METSBENESNERE
ORd) /e BRREMERFER
HERE ORd) /e

RFBEFEDALRME &S RERERE
(RERMGLEER) RELE-

R20174 K20165E12A318 Ko B &K K
BYECRCEREHM - KL BELHFIEH
AR A BT 3R R M1 3E38 -

ETHREAMECEATRITUERETAER
RIRITERR —RBTEERR (REEME
HERHFE0HE) ©

HE2017F12A31B L FE  AKEEER T
— IR (DB AFETREYE) EEMIER
X4 HAREER 226,725,000/ 7T (20164 :
210,291,000 7t ) - 2017412318 * &%
BABABFKIELE XRVEE U BRRME
7B ESTE

2770 3 B A BR 44 5] 20174 [ 40 4 14y
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16. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

16. EFHERIE

2017 2016

HKD’000 HKD’000

FHET FHTT

At 1 January R1A1H 240,830 261,407

Addition (Note) NE (M) 310,332 =

Amortisation % (13,002) (6,958)

Exchange realignment P& 5 &= 5] 18,303 (13,619)

At 31 December MR12A31H 556,463 240,830
Analysed for reporting purposes as: BREBENMONA:

Current asset MENEE 14,171 6,617

Non-current asset ERBEE 542,292 234,213

556,463 240,830

Note:

During the year, the Group successfully bid a vacant land located

Wit

in Xiamen, the PRC for the purpose of constructing an outlet mall.
This land was subsequently pledged to a bank to secure the bank
borrowings and general banking facilities granted to the Group as
disclosed in Note 30 to the consolidated financial statements.
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17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

17. B EE

Trading rights Trademarks Total
XHHE ik FEE]
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD’'000
FET FHT T T
Cost: R :
At 31 December 2017 and 2016 20174 & 20164F
12A31H 599 145,818 146,417
Accumulated impairment: KEtisE:
At 31 December 2017 and 2016~ 720174 K 20164
12H31H - - -
Net book value: BRTEFE :
At 31 December 2017 M2017412H31H 599 145,818 146,417
At 31 December 2016 R2016F12A31H 599 145,818 146,417

As at 31 December 2017, the intangible assets comprise

of trademark in respect of “PONY” brand, and trading
rights of Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited (the
“Exchange”), which allow the Group to trade securities

on or through the Exchange. They are considered by the

Group’s management as having indefinite useful lives since

they are expected to generate net cash inflows indefinitely;

and therefore, they are required to be tested for impairment
annually and considered not impaired at the end of reporting

period.

M2017412H31H B EEBEHE
[PONY ] i BB Z1R - R AKEE
BEEXSNMEEMERAR ([BRAHM])
BEERBSFZERMRE AEEEEE
RE BREAERASERERRESR

FE WRERAERERFY AMKRSE
ATFETRENR  ERREHRKSR

FEREFRAS 2017F EHE 151



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %z & B 75 38 3% My 5%
For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z£20174 128318 It F &

17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED) 17. B EE (48)

For the impairment testing of the “PONY” brand, the
recoverable amount was determined based on fair value less
cost of disposal. During the year, the Group changed the
valuer from Greater China Appraisal Limited to Prudential
Surveyors (Hong Kong) Limited, which are independent
profession firm not connected to the Group. Both valuers
adopt a discounted cash flow method, covering a detailed
10-year budget plan (2016: 10-year budget plan), plus an
extrapolated cash flow projections by applying a long term
growth rate subsequent to the 10-year budget plan (2016:
10-year budget plan), with a post-tax discount rate of 13.0%
(2016: 20.0%).

The key assumptions used in the budget plan during the
years ended 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016
are:

Cash flows beyond the 10-year period (2016: 10-year
period) are extrapolated using an estimated 3% (2016:
3%) growth rate.

ii. That gross margins will be maintained at its current
level throughout the 10-year (2016: 10-year) budget
plan.

The Group management’s key assumptions have been
determined based on past performance and its expectations
for the market's development. The discount rate used is post-
tax and reflect specific risks relating to the relevant business.

The directors concluded that the fair value less cost of
disposal is sufficient to justify the carrying value of the
“PONY” brand and hence no impairment of the “PONY”
brand is necessary as at 31 December 2017 and 2016.
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#t [PONY | Mg 2 BERFME - @S
BIR A FEEREERANEE -FA - &
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B 2 B ERMGEMIT A MGEMY
RMMRRERELR REFANI0FTE
Hit8 (20165 : 10FREFE) - M ER
10FFEE T &) (2016%F : 10F FEE 7T &) 1%
RRERMBRERESZRSRBAERE
T2 AR & 7513.0% (20164 - 20.0% ) °

#HZE201712H31H k2016512 A31H 1k
FEZREFEFERANEEZHEROT

i.  HBB10F HIfE (20164 : 104F H3fH )
ZIRERETMEAHET3% (201645 :
3% ) 2R RIS -

i.  REEL0F (20165 : 105 ) B E &
SR MR ERRAKFE -

AEEEEBZEEZRIADREBEERR
REHM SRR BHET - B R BERD
‘A= KR EMERRES AR AEER
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At 31 December 2017 and 2016, the Group had interests in
the following joint ventures:

18. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES/ 18. EELEMES TE () WeE
AMOUNTS DUE (TO)/FROM JOINT ZhE¥ERIF
VENTURES

2017 2016

HKD’000 HKD’000

T Ti8T

Share of net assets other than goodwill HEE (FEHIN FE 99,889 89,085

Goodwill e 67,169 67,169

167,058 156,254

AT A 0 Sl

20174 Kk20165F12H31R0 - AL EHFH

Place of Class Proportion of ownership Principal place
Joint venture incorporation of share interest held by the Group Principal activities of business
AEEREN
EELE oMb 2 & 153 E 51 mEEERES TEE EEEEE,
2017 2016
REZGHEXEZRERBRAR The PRC Ordinary 25% 25% Investment holding The PRC
(Note i) ( #t7%i) A &R KA A B
%25 7 18 1) A0 R A P S B R The PRC Ordinary 50% 50% Operation and management The PRC
AR AR (Note i) (Hiati) A TR of outlet malls G
T kB E R
RS ER M AR B EHBRAE  The PRC Ordinary 50% 50% Property investment The PRC
(Note i) ( #t7%i) )= Tk MERE Bl
Aggressive Resources Limited The British Ordinary 60% 60% Investment holding N/A
(Note i, if and i) Virgin Islands 3@ % BEER A
(K ati - i %iii) REBRLHE

FEREFRAS 2017F E &

153



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %z & B 75 38 3% My 5%
For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z£20174 128318 It F &

18. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES/
AMOUNTS DUE (TO)/FROM JOINT
VENTURES (CONTINUED)

Notes:

()

(if)

(iii)

The contractual arrangements only provide the Group the rights to
the net assets of the joint arrangements. The rights to the assets and
obligations for the liabilities of the joint arrangements rest primarily with
the above joint ventures. Under HKFRS 11, these joint arrangements
are classified as joint ventures and have been included in the
consolidated financial statements using the equity method. The Group
directly holds a 50% equity interest in each of ZZF5 7 it it fH B 5P 3
BEEBRAA and ZIEEIKHIARIEEZEFRAF], and a wholly-
owned subsidiary of EEE 4 E 2R B R A A, holds the remaining
50% equity interest in each of ZF5 & M MR K EERE AR QA
and 5 BERHHEKE XHRAF.

This entity is not consolidated although the Group holds more
than 50% of its voting rights. This is because the Group only has
joint control of the entity by virtue of the terms of the shareholders
agreement amongst the joint venture partners.

According to the Sales and Purchase Agreement of Aggressive
Resources Limited, the vendor guaranteed the Group that the net profit
after tax shall be at least HKD10,000,000 and HKD11,000,000 for the
financial year ended 31 December 2017 and 2018 respectively. In the
opinion of the directors, the fair value of the contingent consideration
receivable under the guarantee is minimal.

18. EELEER TR () WE

ERERIE (&)

Byt

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

BHNEHSAEREZERELHEEREL
BN ZHAERHEEZRMNRARZEBE
ERUAR LA B - IRIBEB USRS ER
F1H ZEEERHROBABELE YE
RAERER R A MR - NEBEEF
BZBBHRARRAEERERARALRRS
Bk AR E X B R R RB0%EE - MEES
HEXERARATNZ -—R2ENBRRFE
ZEEREAREREREEER AR LZGE
IR H R E R AR A B2 # T 0%

BEAEEIFELER OS2 RER  ZEBL
BHRAAR REARAEEREAZEHZMH
R 2 BRER h s G R MR 2 B B8 2 AL RE
o

15 ¥ Aggressive Resources Limited 2 B & 1#53% »
B A BEEREE20179F %20184F12 /31
B I B E 2 Big 457 = 25 51 410,000,000
7570 % 11,000,000/ 0 LEF R A FTiERIE
THABRKREZ A EEBHTEM-

AGGREGATE FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE BERMELIERZEELENSTT
JOINT VENTURES THAT ARE NOT INDIVIDUALLY M EE
MATERIAL
2017 2016
HKD’000 HKD’'000
FH&T FABT
The Group’s share of profits for the year REESHFEEE 19,407 964
The Group’s share of other REB DG EMEEmBA
comprehensive income 5,010 (2,349)
The Group’s share of total AEB DG E2EBRALLE
comprehensive income 24,417 (1,385)
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19.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %z & 81 ¥ 3R R i 5
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INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES/ 18. EELEMES TE () WeE
AMOUNTS DUE (TO)/FROM JOINT BLERIE(E)

VENTURES (CONTINUED)

AGGREGATE FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE

BARMSEFEEXRZEELENHSH

JOINT VENTURES THAT ARE NOT INDIVIDUALLY MBEHE (8)
MATERIAL (CONTINUED)
2017 2016
HKD’000 HKD’000
FHET FETT
Amounts due from joint ventures (Note i) JEU & & FRIE (A7 i2) - 53,069
Amounts due to joint ventures (Note ii) BN & &I (B ati) (4,825) =

Note i:  The balances were unsecured, interest-bearing at 5% per annum Hteti :
and repayable on demand.
Note ii:  The balances were unsecured, interest-free and repayable on K aFii

demand.

ZAEAR R IR FE %A B RRREK

ZEEHARER B B RARERERE -

INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE/LOAN TO 19. BELEZHER SRFHEL

AN ASSOCIATE/AMOUNT DUE FROM AN ¥ TR E S ¥ERIE
ASSOCIATE

2017 2016

HKD’000 HKD’000

FET FTABT

Interest in an associate ST = =

Loan to an associate (Note) BERTH & (KT 5,996 5,587

5,996 5,587

Note: The loan is unsecured and repayable upon mutual agreement by Bt ZERREERRARINO A EERHE %R

both parties. Loan amount of HKD4,197,000 (2016: HKD3,911,000)
bears interest at 5.4% per annum and the remaining balance of
HKD1,799,000 (2016: HKD1,676,000) is non-interest bearing.

FEREFRAS 2017F E &

838 - B X £ %4,197,000/% 7T (20164 :
3,911,000/ 7T ) 2 & F5.4% B R A
1,799,000/ T (20164 : 1,676,000/ 7T ) &%

Titge
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19. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE/LOAN TO 19. BELEZHER SRFHEL
AN ASSOCIATE/AMOUNT DUE FROM AN ¥ TEWEE S ERIE (F)
ASSOCIATE (CONTINUED)

Detail of the Group’s interest in an associate is as follows: REBREEDE ZERABAT
Place of Proportion of ownership Principle place
Associate incorporation Class of share interest held by the Group Principal activities  of business
FEEHEN
BEp® EaupE B 15 $E Rl BERESTE A FEEH FEEEMI
2017 2016
Just Dawn Limited  The British Virgin Islands ~ Ordinary 30% 30%  Investment holding ~ N/A
EBRUHE LB AR PiER
AGGREGATE FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE ERMELIEXRZHEELEMNETT
ASSOCIATE THAT IS NOT INDIVIDUALLY MATERIAL MBEs
2017 2016
HKD’000 HKD’'000
FH&T FABT
Amount due from an associate (Note) JEAST B > S FRIE (BT aE) 27,912 -
Note: The balance was unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. Hiat - ZERAERR BB RERERKER
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20. GOODWILL

During the year, the Group disposed of one of its subsidiaries,
which was principally engaged in the provision of
insurance brokerage business as detailed in Note 46 to the
consolidated financial statements. Accordingly, the Group
has derecognised goodwill of approximately HKD1,794,000
on disposal of this subsidiary (2016: HKD nil). Goodwill of
approximately HKD33,796,000 (2016: HKD35,590,000) was
allocated to the cash-generating unit of financial services
segment for impairment testing.

For the purposes of goodwill impairment test, the recoverable
amount was determined based on a value-in-use calculation,
covering a detailed 5-year budget plan, plus an extrapolated
cash flow projection by applying a long-term growth rate
subsequent to this 5-year plan, with a pre-tax discount rate
of 19.5% (2016: 19.5%).

The key assumptions used in the budget plan during the year
ended 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016 are:

Cash flows beyond the five-year period are extrapolated
using an estimated zero (2016: zero) growth rate; and

i. The gross margins will be maintained at its current
level throughout the 5-year (2016: 5-year) budget plan.

The Group management’s key assumptions have been
determined based on past performance and expectations of
future market development. The discount rate used is pre-tax
and reflect specific risks relating to the relevant business.

The directors concluded that the cash-generating unit
demonstrates sufficient cash flows that justify the carrying
amount of the goodwill and hence no impairment of goodwill
is necessary as at 31 December 2017 and 2016.

20. |

FR AEELEELE—HHBAR ZA
AEERERERBCLER (REREH
5 3R = M sFA65F il ) o AN 5 B A 1t UK
R E %M E A RZ BB 491,794,000 7T
(20164 : THTT) © P2 4933,796,000/8 70
(20164 : 35,590,000/ 7T ) # 7 Fd = & &b
BRI 5 & 2 38 S EEE B LUETTRE A
Eito

HEBREARNS  ARESEYIRE
FEREENE CREFANSFRETE
MERZOSFHEREARBERERESE
IR RIER)EE  MATAIIR X 519.5%
(2016%F : 19.5% ) °

HZE2017F12 31 H %20165 124311 Ik
FEBEFIERANEIERRAT

. BAREHMZRLRDERLHT
HEEHY (20165 :F) i &

i.  MNEBESFEEBIHRE EFEGH
FIA KT (20165 : 55 ) °

AEBERBZETEBRRIBREBERR
REHARMSER CTAMETE RHRE
RERAME RRERBETEEB A
R

EERA ROELEURATELRIN

RenEERABEREE BILR20174F
K2016512 A31 B BAR B E LR E

MR E AR A S] 20174 E RS 157
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21.

22,

153

INVENTORIES 21 BE
2017 2016
HKD’000 HKD’000
FHET FHTT
Finished goods A o 61,122 20,874
TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 22. B 5 & H i FEUS BR 7R
2017 2016
HKD’000 HKD’000
F#ET TET
Trade receivables 5 R
— other than financial services segment — & B R % 75 ZBER S 52,645 48,971
— financial services segment — & R ARTE D 6,514 20,483
Total trade receivables B SRR B 59,159 69,454
Less: allowance for doubtful debts i REREE G
— other than financial services segment — B AR TS 2 BPBR AN (23,664) (23,664)
35,495 45,790
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments — Efb FEIREEF - 514 &
B FRIA 119,173 100,795
Less: allowance for doubtful debts B REREAE
— other receivables —H At U BR TR (7,974) (4,077)
111,199 96,718
Total trade and other receivables B 5 R H M e AR R B R 146,694 142,508
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22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(CONTINUED)

TRADE RECEIVABLES FROM SEGMENTS OTHER
THAN FINANCIAL SERVICES SEGMENT

The Group allows an average credit period ranging from 60
to 90 days to its trade customers. Allowance for doubtful
debts of HKD23,664,000 at 31 December 2017 (2016:
HKD23,664,000) was solely in respect of trade receivables
other than financial services segment. Before accepting a
new customer, the Group assesses the potential customer’s
credit quality and grants a credit limit to the customer.
Credit limits and score attributed to customers are reviewed
twice a year. Approximately 61% (2016: 86%) of the trade
receivables that are neither past due nor impaired have
no default payment history. The Group does not hold any
collateral over these balances.

TRADE RECEIVABLES FROM FINANCIAL SERVICES
SEGMENT

22. B REMEWARTR (&)

K E BRI EHE S FE
W AR R

AEBAHRESEFIREABE60H 0
BTEMTEHEER -R2017412A31
H 2 R B 23,664,000/ 7T (20164 :
23,664,000 7T ) £ A< B AR 5 ZBBR INAY
BIRBER - RENTEPA AEEE
HERERFEEER  WETZEFLNE
BRE -BENEERERDEESTFET
MR AR ET  K#I61% (20164 : 86% ) 3E i
HASUR B B 5 B YR AR SR 0 48 HE X 3K
8 REBW B A S ERITEEMEIF

K E SRR 5 BEIE 5 B AR

2017 2016
HKD’000 HKD’'000
TFH#IT FHET
Trade receivables arising from ordinary EBHEE—MEBBAEELEN
course of business of dealing in securities: B S EKARR
— Cash clients —BexP 428 158
— Clearing house —EE AT 1,371 =
— Others —HAth 76 -
Trade receivables arising from ordinary RETISE—RERBEE
course of business of provision of: B SRR
— Money lending -mE 4,639 20,313
— Insurance brokerage - REp&4 - 12
6,514 20,483
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22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 22. B RHMEWRRK (&)

(CONTINUED)

TRADE RECEIVABLES FROM FINANCIAL SERVICES
SEGMENT (CONTINUED)

Save for the credit period allowed by the Group, the trade
receivables from dealing in securities shall be due on
the settlement date of the respective securities contract
transaction. In view of the fact that such receivables relate
to a number of diversified customers, there is no significant
concentration of credit risk. The trade receivables from
money lending are due on the agreed settlement dates.
All of the trade receivables from money lending were not
impaired at the end of the reporting period and are expected
to be settled within one year. Further details of the Group’s
credit risk management are set out in Note 36(b)(iii) to the
consolidated financial statements.

The following is an aged analysis of the Group’s trade
receivables, net of allowance for doubtful debts, presented

R B &R AR 53 3 89 E 5 FE U AR

(&)

RARBAFNEENIN EXFEBEEL
ZEGRUBETEREEFENR NG
HERIHE -ENEREBWET S ME
TTREF A EBEAEFEERR K
EEAZESRUERTINHBESE BB
M- RNBERR MEREELZE SR
WERRY R E RPN —FAEE -
FRASEGERRERZE-—THEBESH
KR & B 15 R K M RE36(b)(iii) ©

RBEPR AEEUBRAHHRXFHH
B (W@ER) AEEZFINE 5 BRI

based on the invoice date or transaction date (where BrRERBENRE ST
applicable) at the end of the reporting period:

2017 2016
HKD’000 HKD’000
FET FTABT
0 to 30 days 0&30K 13,335 37,251
31 to 60 days 31E60K 5,149 2,603
61 to 90 days 61290k 2,101 1,209
Over 90 days #90K 14,910 4727
35,495 45,790

Trade receivables disclosed above include amounts (see
below for aged analysis) which are past due at the end of
reporting period for which the Group has not recognised an
allowance for doubtful debts because there has not been a
significant change in credit quality and the amounts are still
considered recoverable.
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22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(CONTINUED)

AGEING OF TRADE RECEIVABLES WHICH ARE
PAST DUE BUT NOT IMPAIRED

22. B REMEWARTR (&)

ERMELEREEZE S EBKARRE
AR

2017 2016
HKD’000 HKD'000

FHET THET

Over 90 days #I90K 14,910 4,727

Included in the above, a total balance of trade receivables
which are past due but not impaired was receivable from
sale of Speedo products amounted to approximately
HKD8,200,000 as at 31 December 2017 (2016: HKD nil).
Based on the repayment schedules entered between the
Group and these customers, the balance is expected to be
fully settled before 31 December 2018.

MOVEMENT IN THE ALLOWANCE FOR DOUBTFUL
DEBTS - TRADE RECEIVABLES

EXFEB AR ERENE S EKE
TR AE AR AERE ATA2017412A31B H#HE
SpeedofE mn K & Ui AR 7K £98,200,0007% 7T
(2016%F : THTT) - BBEAEHEZER P
RN HYE RIS FE 3R+ 45 AR TR HA AT 720184
128318 AIBEESE -

AR HEE —E S EBKARR

2017 2016

HKD’000 HKD'000

T T

Balance at beginning of the year FYHERR 23,664 19,790
Provision for impairment loss VEREY Rty = 3,874
Balance at end of the year FRER 23,664 23,664

The above provision for impairment of trade receivables
represents a provision for an impaired trade receivable
with a carrying amount before provision of approximately
HKD23,664,000 (2016: HKD23,664,000). This individually
impaired receivable relates to a customer that is slow in
settlement and management assessed that only a portion or
none of the balance is expected to be recovered.

A EE 5 RURFURERBEREER
AR T {8 49 /23,664,000/% 7T (20164 :
23,664,000/8 7T ) #) 2 BB & 5 FE WUk 51
o ERERERKERY REERE
MEE MERBHGES MO IBE
REERTEHA] T 4R -
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22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(CONTINUED)

HiIEFE

MOVEMENT IN THE ALLOWANCE FOR DOUBTFUL

DEBTS - OTHER RECEIVABLES

REREEEEE — HbEKARR

22. B REMEWARTR (&)

2017 2016

HKD’000 HKD’000

F#ET THET

Balance at beginning of the year FUEER 4,077 4,077
Provision for impairment loss B B 18 B A 3,897 =
Balance at end of the year FRER 7,974 4,077

A b E it i Uit PR SRR (B B 4 5 B0 H  A
& HEREE 4 A7,974,000% 7T (20164 :
4,077,000/ 7T ) &) B, 5 (B H fth 8 Ui BR S
B ZSERERBER S REERIEN
FEWEBRR ME B E A R 25 EK
AR SR R e o

The above provision for impairment of other receivables
represents provision for impaired other receivables with an
aggregate carrying amount before provision of approximately
HKD7,974,000 (2016: HKD4,077,000). These impaired
receivables relate to debtors that are slow in settlement and
management assessed that none of the balance is expected
to be recovered.
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23. ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS IN MARGIN
FINANCING

23. RUTFREESHMETR 2B

2017 2016

HKD’000 HKD’000

FHET THET

Directors and their associates BEENMEBE AL 3,677 133
Other margin clients HEMRESRP 107,181 119,523
Balance at end of the year FREER 110,858 119,656

Advances to customers in margin financing are repayable
on demand and carry interests ranging from Prime Rate to
Prime Rate plus 3% per annum in average. Margin clients
are required to pledge listed securities collateral to the Group
in order to obtain credit facilities for listed securities trading.
The Group is allowed to dispose of the collateral in settlement
of the customers’ obligations to maintain the agreed level of
margin and any other liabilities of the customers due to the
Group.

No ageing analysis is disclosed for advances to customers in
margin financing as, in the opinion of the directors, an ageing
analysis is not meaningful in view of the business nature of
margin financing.

RHUTRBSHMETP 2BFARERE
B NERTPHEFNREENRERE
B EMI%TE -REEFPARNAEE
EREmESERBUARGEETESFEER
EERE - AKETHEEMRRUEBETE
FPHFHERESKFZEENBERTP
RAEBEZEAEMAE

ERNRECHEZLEBEE EFAR/E
oMY EE R FLAEHRIEHRTRE
EREXPZBRWBERE DT -

FWEE AR S 2017 E e 1%
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24. LOANS RECEIVABLE 24. FEWERR

2017 2016
HKD’000 HKD'000
THET T
Secured BER 253,132 341,810
Less: allowance for doubtful debts B RER B (16,000) (8,000)
237,132 333,810

MOVEMENT IN THE ALLOWANCE FOR DOUBTFUL RIRBIHEEE - BIER:

DEBTS - LOANS RECEIVABLE:

2017 2016
HKD’000 HKD’000
THET T
Balance at beginning of the year FHEER 8,000 =
Provision for impairment loss LB B 18 B A 8,000 8,000
Balance at end of the year FRE 16,000 8,000
The loans receivable are secured by charges over the BRERTIBHERANDER,RERE
borrowers’ properties and/or financial assets (mainly secured ENEREER (EZ2HBFELMERE
by Hong Kong listed securities), interest bearing at 5%-18% ER) - IRFFIRE5%ZE18% (20164 : F 7|
per annum (2016: 5%-24% per annum) and repayable KE5%E24% ) 5t B RANBRBAHE—F

within one year from the date of the advances. AFENE
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24. LOANS RECEIVABLE (CONTINUED)

25.

Customers giving rise to loans receivable are obliged
to settle the amounts according to the terms set out in
relevant contracts. Interest rates are offered based on the
assessment of a number of factors including the borrowers’
creditworthiness and repayment ability, collateral as well as
the general economic trend. As at 31 December 2017, the
allowance for doubtful debts amounting to approximately
HKD16,000,000 (2016: HKD8,000,000) is related to a
borrower of which the expected realisable value of the
collateral is not sufficient to cover the respective outstanding
balance.

The directors consider the fair values of loans receivable,
which are expected to be recovered within one year are not
materially different from their carrying amounts because the
balances have short maturity periods at inception.

TRADING SECURITIES

24. BWER (&)

R E Rz BRFEBRBHEBE L IRR
BR-MEDREHZERRZFEME
T RZESRARBEERAZEAREREE
7 AR R A R BB S - )A20174F
12A31H R ER # # #9 /16,000,000/% 7T
(2016%F : 8,000,000 7T) * # & — & ERK
AN ZERARFLOERTEEEET
RUHERBHRI &6 -

E=ZR/ BRERZAFEEBRA—F
migE - BEEMETYEEREZR  REA
AE BRI ) 26 B 11 B HA R PR 4G

25. X 5%

2017 2016
HKD’000 HKD'000
TFHT T
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong, RER LT ZRAES
at fair value AT EE 9,118 10,714

The above equity securities are classified as held for trading,
and upon initial recognition, designated as financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss for the purpose of sale in the
near term.

PRBRAESDBRFEEE  RREKX
FERE DUOIMEHE B NETERIEAYF
BEIABRGZZEREE-

FWEE AR S 2017 E e 16y
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26. ZFRHFVERITHERURRITEIERR
Bt

26. RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS AND BANK
BALANCES AND CASH

(A) RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS (A) ZRHEIRITHER

The balance of approximately HKD3,597,000 (2016:
HKD3,337,000) classified as a non-current asset is
denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”) and carried a fixed
interest at 4.75% (2016: 4.75%) per annum. The use
of the bank deposit requires the consent from one of
the tenants of the Group's outlet mall in Shenyang, the
PRC.

The balance of approximately HKD1,632,000 (2016:
HKD1,533,000) classified as a current asset is
denominated in New Taiwan Dollar (“NTD”) and
carried a fixed interest at 3.08% (2016: 2.14%) per
annum. The use of the bank deposit requires the
consent from the landlord and suppliers and required
annual renewal to the bank.

The balance of HKD20,000,000 (2016: HKD nil)
classified as a non-current asset is denominated in
HKD and carried a fixed interest at 0.25% (2016:
nil) per annum. The use of the bank deposit is to
secure a medium-term banking facility amounted to
HKD170,000,000 issued during the year.
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DTRRBERBDEEZHBH
3,597,000/ 7T (20164 : 3,337,000
AT AARKEHE LEIEFH X
4.75% (20164F : 4.75% ) st B - B A
RITIF B SR E T BES RAr3HT
WPz —RETAEE-

PEAMEE E 2 &8 41,632,000
7 7T (20164F : 1,533,000 7T ) LA
et E UEEFHMEK3.08%
(20164F : 2.14% ) 5T B - By A R 1717
FAFEERHEERERARRITE
TEEE-

DI AIER B E E 2 #£4220,000,000
PSIT (2016%F « T IT) LA TTETE -
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¢ H 2 170,000,000 7T H) & & B4R
TR E -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %z & 81 ¥ 3R R i 5
For the year ended 31 December 2017 (£ 20174 12A31H It F &

26. RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS AND BANK
BALANCES AND CASH (CONTINUED)

(B) BANK BALANCES AND CASH - HELD ON

BEHALF OF CUSTOMERS

The Group maintained segregated trust accounts
with authorised institutions to hold clients’ monies
arising from its normal course of business. The Group
classified the clients’ monies as bank and cash balance
held on behalf of customers under the current asset
and recognised the balances of the trust accounts as
amounts due to respective clients on the grounds that
the Group is liable for any loss or misappropriation
of clients’” monies disclosed in Note 28 to the
consolidated financial statements. The cash held on
behalf of customers is restricted and governed by the
“Securities and Futures (Client Money) Rules” under
the Securities and Futures Ordinance. The Group is
allowed to retain some or all of the interest on the
clients’” monies, but is not allowed to use the clients’
monies to settle its own obligations.

26. ZPRHFVERITHER AR RITEAER R
He (&)

(B) IRITEHRREE-KEFHH

AEERBAEBEFRRBLEER
B UEER—REBBEFELLZ
BEPHE - AEER I ERPRIAD
BRRBEER MREPRHAZRT
RBEH YREASEARES
RBEZEERABRE LEEZE
i REERS ZHRERENIEREE
B PR INERE MR M 28T
B-REPRAZREXBFHFLHPE
GRPIAET [FExkBE (RPFKIE) R
AUl P RR ) SR AR E o AN 5 B U R AR
BREPRBE M2 ER B
THEFFEREPRREELRE-

FMRE AR AT 20174 E RS 167
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26. RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS AND BANK  26. SIRHIRITHES I RIRITEM R

BALANCES AND CASH (CONTINUED)

(C) BANK BALANCES AND CASH

As at 31 December 2016, the balance comprised of
time deposits of approximately HKD94,167,000, which
carried fixed interest rates ranging from 0.02% to
4.80% per annum and was withdrawn upon maturity
during the year. As at 31 December 2017, the balance
comprised of bank balances, which carried interest at
prevailing market rates ranged from 0.01% to 0.35%
(2016: 0.01% to 0.35%) per annum.

As at 31 December 2017, cash and bank balances
(including a restricted bank deposit) denominated
in RMB and held in the PRC's banks amounted
to approximately HKD60,358,000 (2016:
HKD65,203,000). RMB is not freely convertible into
foreign currencies in the PRC. Under the “Foreign
Exchange Control Regulations” and “Administration of
Settlement and Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations” governed by the State Administration of
Foreign Exchange in the PRC, the Group is permitted
to exchange RMB for foreign currencies through banks
authorisation to conduct foreign exchange businesses.

27. ASSETS/LIABILITIES OF DISPOSAL

GROUP CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE

In December 2017, the board of directors resolved to
dispose two groups of subsidiaries whose principal assets
were investment properties under construction as disclosed
in Note 15 to the consolidated financial statements. As of
the end of the reporting period, the board of directors has
identified a potential buyer and anticipates that the sales
of subsidiaries will complete within one year. The following
assets and liabilities relating to this disposal group under the
outlet mall segment have been classified as assets held for
sale in the consolidated statement of financial position and
does not constitute a discontinued operation as it does not
represent a major line of business or geographical area of
operation.
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He (&)

(C) RITHEGBRRIERE
2016128318 © B IENAETE
FEFR0.02%24.80%5F B RN ER
FI| BB £ R ) TE BATF 544994, 167,000
B IL o M2017F 128310 &% 8
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(20164 : 0.01%£0.35% ) & B KY iR
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2017128318 UAREHERE
FERITIHENES RIRTEL (B
& PR %1 $R 1713 3X) i 960,358,000
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BEHPR EFCERFRBEESY
BHEEZSEMBRRRR —FATK-
AEBERFHRE DB TABALEAR
ML TEERBEERNGEEMHIRAERA
DEAFIFLEEE BYBENX—HED
RIEREXRT RRARHETIFE—BEER



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %z & B ¥ 3R R i 5%
For the year ended 31 December 2017 #{Z2017F12A31H It F &

27. ASSETS/LIABILITIES OF DISPOSAL

27. YEEFEHERRNEE Aff

GROUP CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE (%)
(CONTINUED)
HKD'000
T
Assets =3
Interests in joint venture BEDE LR 17,506
Investment properties AWM 482,179
Amounts due from joint ventures JEW G & HEFIE 60
Other receivables H 1t i U BR X 3,597
Bank balances and cash SRITESR AR S 3,977
507,319
Liabilities BfE
Other payables L FE S BRFK 119,654
Tax payables FE 1 18 903
Deferred tax liabilities EIEFRIBEAE 11,745
132,302

No impairment loss was recognised on reclassification of
the above subsidiaries as held for sale as at 31 December
2017 as the directors expect that the fair values (estimated
based on the expected proceeds from the disposal of these
subsidiaries) less costs to sell is higher than the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities.

R20174F12A31 8 X EpL s LAt i 8 R R E
DE/FELEMRRARERR RESESE
HIATPEE (REBHEZSWEQREMAER
BAFH)RHERASREER BB ZREE-

3270 2 PR 48 ] 201747 & 9 16y
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28. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 28. B 5 & H 1t FE BRI

2017 2016
HKD’000 HKD’000
FHET FHTT
Trade payables E P EMNRER

— Other than financial services segment — & B AR TS 7 BB S 54,476 36,422
— Financial services segment — &R RE D F 22,884 32,218

Other payables, temporary receipts, H (b fEFBR IR - BR A UK -
accruals and receipts in advance FEETBR TR A K #A TR 97,001 190,196
Total trade and other payables B 5 RHMEMNRRERE 174,361 258,836

As at 31 December 2016, included in other payables are the 72016512 431 H + E i fE 7 BR 5K B2 15 A1
PRC government grant of approximately HKD116,000,000, B I8 448 B) £9116,000,0007%8 7T 7020174F
which was reclassified as liabilities of disposal group 12A31B - BB EN D ERFIELHE

classified as held for sale as at 31 December 2017. HREE-

RBER - UBRAHRRH A H (W@
) REEZDIRKE & BARTE 2 &R SN
BHRMERRARE DT -

The following is an ageing analysis of trade payables from
other than financial services segment presented based on
the invoice date or transaction date (where applicable) at the
end of the reporting period:

2017 2016

HKD’000 HKD’000

FHET FABT

0 to 30 days 0Z30K 33,402 17,490
31 to 60 days 31260k 12,582 15,088
61 to 90 days 61 %90k 2,413 2,358
Over 90 days 90K 6,079 1,486
54,476 36,422

BENTHEEHRROR AEEEHIE
B R EIEBUR AR A B 2 N AR
TR EEHRAEHE

The average credit period on purchases of goods is 90 days.
The Group has financial risk management policies in place
to ensure that all trade payables are settled within the credit
timeframe.
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28. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
(CONTINUED)

28. B R EMFEMIRR (48)

TRADE PAYABLES FROM FINANCIAL SERVICES RE SRR BIE S EFIRMR
SEGMENT
2017 2016
HKD’000 HKD’000
THET T
Trade payables arising from ordinary course HEEEHEEBBREESE
of business of dealing in securities (Note): BB SRR (fa2)
— Cash clients -ReRP 17,912 11,560
— Margin clients —REEEF 4,972 16,491
— Clearing house —KEE AT = 4,155
22,884 32,206
Trade payables arising from ordinary course  RELTFTRIEEEX£/BE
of business of provision of: EENE S REMFRR:
— Insurance brokerage — R AE - 12
22,884 32,218
Note: The balances represent trade payables due to cash and margin clients Hiat : ZSHEBERNRSRRES TP REERZ
and clearing house in respect of the balances of segregated trust B HRNER B RRNETIRE D BERR
accounts temporarily received and held on behalf of these clients ZERPREERBEEEME R RFEE 2
and clearing house in authorised institutions arise from the course B EFEERE &R (AR E B ISR KM :26(b)
of conducting regulated activities as detailed in Note 26(b) to the ) o
consolidated financial statements.
The settlement terms of trade payables for these clients and clearing ZERFPREEMESENER 2 EERAHR
house are two days after their trade date. No ageing analysis is RHBEEMA - EREFEERRESHREN
required to be disclosed, as in opinion of the directors, an ageing EBME EERAL RROMTESS At
analysis is not meaningful in view of the businesses nature of securities BEBEIRER DT -

dealing and margin financing.
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29. DEFERRED TAXATION

The following table is the analysis of the deferred tax assets
and liabilities balances for financial reporting purposes:

29. IEEHIR

RUAPBREAENECHREERAR
RERRDITIR TR -

2017 2016

HKD’000 HKD’000

FHET FHTT

Deferred tax assets REFIEE B (10,349) (18,084)
Deferred tax liabilities FIEFRIE A FE 153,219 87,556
142,870 69,472

The following table shows the major deferred tax liabilities/
(assets) recognised by the Group and movements thereon
during the current and prior financial years:

AEEEEANEEREHERE (4
) RESHABHEE BB B
BBIERMTE:

Revaluation of Undistributed Fair value

leasehold Revaluation Accelerated eamings of adjustment

landand  of investment tax PRC on intangible
buildings properties depreciation subsidiaries Tax losses assets Total

HETHR REnz MERE  PEHEAT EVEEZ
BFEf Eff i FRRER HEBR AFEESE ag
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
TAL TAL TAL TAL TAL TAL TAL
At 1 January 2016 R201651A1A 73935 6,412 10,806 73 (35,143) 7,366 63444
Charge/(credit) to profit or loss R/ GtA) B - 3,361 (1,298) - 4133 - 6,19
Exchange realignment L] - (166) @ - = - (168)
At 31 December 2016 R2016512A318 73935 9,607 9,506 73 (31,015) 7,366 69,472
Acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 47) WE-HMELR (Hi247) - 20,664 - - - - 20,664
Transferred to liabilties held for sale (Vote 27) ~ BRZRH{ELEBE (Hi27) - (11,745) - - - - (11,745)
Charge to profit or loss Bil)g -ty - 46728 = - 1,824 = 48552
Charge to other comprehensive income MAEEM2ERA 12316 - - - - - 12316
Exchange realignment ] - 3566 45 - - = 3611
At 31 December 2017 20174128318 86,251 68,820 9,551 73 (29,191) 7,366 142870
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29. DEFERRED TAXATION (CONTINUED)

At 31 December 2017, the Group had unused tax losses of
approximately HKD524,737,000 (2016: HKD579,873,000)
available to offset against its future taxable profits. Tax losses
to the extent of approximately HKD176,915,000 (2016:
HKD187,970,000) in respect of which deferred tax assets
has been recognised. The Group had utilised deferred
tax assets of HKD1,824,000 (2016: HKD4,133,000) and
no written off was incurred during the year (2016: HKD
nil). The Group’s management had prepared a robust
business plan based on achievable business model in prior
financial year, and is confident that the Group will be able
to generate sufficient level of future taxable profits from
those subsidiaries with tax losses recognised. As a result,
the Group’s management believes that these losses will be
utilised in the foreseeable future. No deferred tax assets
has been recognised in respect of the remaining unused
tax losses of approximately HKD347,822,000 (2016:
HKD391,903,000) due to the unpredictability of future
profit streams. All of the tax losses may be carried forward
indefinitely except for those arising from the PRC subsidiaries
of HKD218,971,000 (2016: HKD205,210,000) which may
be carried forward for five years.

During the year, the Group transferred the deferred tax
liabilities of HKD11,745,000 into liabilities of disposal group
classified as held for sale due to the related fair value gain of
investment properties previously recognised is committed to
be disposed of in the forthcoming financial year of 2018.

29. EEHIIE ()

20176 12A8318 - AEBMA KRB
I8 5 18 #9524,737,00058 7T (20164 :
579,873,000/ 7t ) AJ i 3K 45 FL R 2R fE SR AR
Sk Al o A& 81 #9176,915,0005 7T (20164 -
187,970,000/ 7T, ) 2 Tt 1B 5 1 B BHER A
BEBIEEE - FN - ASEBEFARERE
& EE1,824,0005% 7T (20164 : 4,133,000/
7)) R E A MER (20165 : B T) o A
SEEEECRBRATMEBRFERITZE
BEAGER DB 2 EBE RBER
EEBEERRATBEERZZENB AR
EEFRKFEZARRERBGEF - ALt - A
EEEREREZIERBENA RARK
EEA - AR T TR RO B FEE - i
I AR hER T R B) AT TR & B 49347,822,000
7 7T (20164 : 391,903,000 7T ) i R iR
ERTBEE -FIBHEEBIERAL
B ZERETRENBEARLAIAER
£} 7 78 B5#8218,971,000% 7T (20164 :
205,210,000 7z ) BIlBR 5]

FA HREAERLERRENERF
B B W st cma 10 B 7S 211 2R 22 20188 B & J&
HE MAEEREERIARELL 745,000
ATEREDBARBELEANAE-

FMRE AR AT 20174 E RS 17%
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30. BANK BORROWINGS 30. SRITER
2017 2016
HKD’000 HKD'000
TFHT T
Current b4 )
Carrying amounts of variable interest-rate bank R —FRNEF BT ERH
borrowings that are repayable within one year:  #R1T & ERE (& :
— secured —FEH 732,063 173,082
Non-current RS
Carrying amounts of secured variable interest-  ZB{& % &) Fl| & ¢ & K 4
rate bank borrowings that are repayable: RITEFRREREE:
— more than one year, but not exceeding —ZR1IFERBB2F
two years - 236,245
— more than two years, but not exceeding — % A2F B KRB IBSF
five years 424,864 155,082
— after five years —5&F1& = 155,082
424,864 546,409
1,156,927 719,491
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30. BANK BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

The Group has variable interest-rate bank borrowings which
carry interest ranging from 2.69% to 9.20% (2016: 2.00% to
2.97%) per annum. The weighted average effective interest
rate of the Group’s bank borrowings is 4.13% (2016: 2.71%)
per annum.

No undrawn borrowing facilities were available for the
usage of future operating activities and to settle capital
commitments in both financial years.

The Group had pledged certain of its leasehold land and
buildings, completed investment properties and prepaid
lease payments as set out in Notes 14, 15 and 16 to the
consolidated financial statements, with carrying amounts
of approximately HKD257,000,000, HKD1,351,747,000
and HKD303,944,000 (2016: HKD225,000,000,
HKD709,282,000 and HKD nil) respectively, to secure
bank facilities granted to the Group which amounted to
approximately HKD1,156,927,000 (2016: HKD719,491,000)
as at the end of reporting period.

30. SRATER (&)

AEERRITERM B FEEE  FB TN
F 72.69%%9.20% (20164 : T F2.00%
F297%) - AEBBITERZ B RIMEF
HEFEKB4L13% (20165F :2.71% ) °

T 79 18] B B 4 JE A0 - 30 i R S B 8 3K
BMEAHARRREE T MEEE DA

= o

=

BARA R G B R & M 514 - 15 16F7T
HORAREBK AEBCRBESTAE
T REF BERTHREMERBMNAE
B A (BREE S B4 A257,000,0007%
7T~ 1,351,747,000% 7T 303,944,000/ 7T
(20164 : 225,000,000 7T * 709,282,000
BIEIREBET) ) WERRTFTAEEN
SR 17 8L & #91,156,927,0007% 7T (20164 :

719,491,000 7T) °
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31. SHARE CAPITAL

31. &

Number of Nominal
shares value
RiZEE mi{E
(‘000) HKD’000
(FB%) T T
Authorised: JESE -
Ordinary shares of HKDO.10 each 2R EEO. 10E T /Y
(2016: HKDO. 10 each) ZiEA (20169 -
#ZREEO. 105 T)
At 1 January 2016 and 31 December 2016 R2016F1A1H8 &
and 31 December 2017 2016F12H31H &
201712A831H 20,000,000 2,000,000
Issued and fully paid: CETRHRE:
Ordinary shares of HKDO.10 each 2R EEO. 10T A
(2016: HKDO. 10 each) LB (20169 -
R EE0.10;ET)
At 1 January 2016 R2016F1A1H 2,697,744 269,775
Exercise of share options (Note i) ITIEBBRRAE (M ati) 8,010 800
At 31 December 2016 2016512 A31H 2,705,754 270,575
Acquisition of non-controlling interests (Note /i) W& E R #E &= (H7 727 ) 250,000 25,000
Exercise of warrants (Note iii) TR RARRERE (K7 2Fii) 58 6
At 31 December 2017 M2017412 4318 2,955,812 295,581
Notes: Htat -

(i)

(ii)

During the year ended 31 December 2016, share options were
exercised to subscribe for 8,010,000 ordinary shares of the
Company at a cash consideration, before expenses, of approximately
HKD4,465,000, of which HKD800,000 was credited to share capital
and the balance of approximately HKD3,665,000 was credited to the
share premium account. An amount of approximately HKD1,445,000
was transferred from the share option reserve to the share premium
account upon the exercise of the share options.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group acquired the
remaining equity interest of Giant Eagle Enterprises Limited and
was required to settle the consideration at the completion date as to
issue 250,000,000 shares of the Company to the purchaser, Goldsilk
Capital Limited, which the balance of HKD25,000,000 was credited to
share capital and the balance of approximately HKD114,649,000 was
credited to the share premium account.

/1 7 6 Symphony Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017

(i)

(ii)

BE2016F12A318 L F & - TEBERME AR
f#8,010,000M A A& - RE KB (KR
2 Al ) %% #94,465,0007% 7T+ E F1800,0004 7T T
T ABRZR B 82 493,665,000/ 7T Jh 5t AR 7
B AR ° /R BU#91,445,000% 7T Th A 17 2 i AR 4
BREREEEEEERDEER-

HZE2017F12A31ALFE - AEBKE
Giant Eagle Enterprises LimitedZ # T i% # &
AR Rk B BBt A B 77 Goldsilk Capital Limited
% 17250,000,0000 8 A A Al D A H R E - &
"R % #225,000,000/8 7T J5 5T A BL AN B 45 #8249
114,649,000/ 7T T 5t AR 1% (B B% <
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SHARE CAPITAL (CONTINUED)

Note: (Continued)

(iii) During the year ended 31 December 2017, the qualifying shareholders
of the Company exercised their bonus issue of warrants on the basis
of one warrant for every five shares held. As a result, the balances of
HKD6,000 and HKD36,000 were credited to share capital and share
premium account respectively.

(iv) All shares issued by the Company ranked pari passu with then existing
shares was in all respects.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 10 June 2011, shareholders of the Company have
approved and adopted a share option scheme (the
“Scheme”) for the purpose of providing eligible participants
with the opportunity to acquire proprietary interests in the
Company and to encourage participants to work towards
enhancing the value of the Company and its shares for the
benefit of the Company and its shareholders as a whole. All
directors, full-time employees and any other persons who, at
the sole discretion of the board of directors, have contributed
or will contribute to the Group are eligible to participate in the
Scheme.

Pursuant to the Scheme, shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the Scheme or any
other share option scheme adopted by the Company must
not in aggregate exceed 10% of the shares of the Company
in issue on the date of adoption. The Company may renew
this 10% limit with shareholders’” approval provided that each
such renewal may not exceed 10% of shares in the Company
in issue as at the date of the shareholders’ meeting.

The total number of shares of the Company which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and
yet to be exercised under the Scheme or any other share
option scheme adopted by the Company must not exceed
30% of the shares in issue from time to time.

31.

32.

Bz (48)
pisE: ()

(iii) B ZE2017F12A31R IEFE KRR & B KK
REREFHA BRI EE —ORBRER EE
FTRELBATAL A RARMERE © Bt - 45626,000/8 7T
536,000 7L 75 2 il 5t AR BB i B AR -

(iv)  PIEEARRBEITHRMENRSE D YRR
FENRBERNDZARFHA -

RRRRfEST &I

R201166A108 » A2 &) 3% 31 #hf MR
AR ERT 8 ([ 81])  BEEEHKE T
AERSHEENEARARMNERER 1 E
FB2RENRRARIRERROEETZ R
RS BOIREARRARERNDHEBE:FT
FEF 2BEEBREREFENBERAD
e e B AR S BE D EB A E R E A
THHEERLEZTE -

RIEZET 8] FiRaat 8 TE S A E A
REEHRANBREA S MERLORE
BRERAEZRTOHRGD A XA ABE
ARBREA BN HITRMDMI0%
IS ARALAE - AR B AT UL 10% AR
BIESAREF T A BAERNRRRKRE
R HHHEND BITRMA10% °

AT A %A B S EME AR AR
MEVRE AR RT B M X T HE M AT (R A R R
TTEERRRAE M A RER TR AR R B D 482K
RRAIHBB AR BB 2 21T D FI30%
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32. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

Unless approved by shareholders of the Company, the total
number of shares of the Company issued and to be issued
upon the exercise of the options granted to each participant
(including both exercised and unexercised options) under
the Scheme or any other share option schemes adopted by
the Company in any 12-month period must not exceed 1% of
the shares of the Company in issue.

The period within which the options must be exercised will
be specified by the Company at the time of grant. This period
must expire no later than 10 years from the date of grant of
the options. At the time of grant of the options, the Company
may specify a minimum period for which an option must
be held before it can be exercised. The offer of a grant of
share options may be accepted within 14 days from the date
on which the letter containing the offer is delivered to that
participant and the amount payable on acceptance of an
option is HKD1.00.

The subscription price for the shares of the Company to be
issued upon exercise of the options shall be no less than the
higher of (i) the closing price of the shares of the Company
as stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by the
Exchange on the date of grant; (i) the average closing price
of the shares of the Company as stated in the daily quotation
sheets issued by the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
for the five business days immediately preceding the date of
grant; and (iii) the nominal value of a share of the Company
on the date of grant. The subscription price will be approved
by the board of directors at the time the option is offered to
the participants.

No options may be granted under the Scheme after the
date of the tenth anniversary of the adoption of the Scheme.
During the year, the Group granted 21,000,000 share options
to certain eligible individuals under the Scheme, subject to
acceptance by them. The share option shall entitle them to
subscribe for a total of 21,000,000 new shares of HKDO.10
each of the share capital of the Company, at an exercise
price of HKDO0.82, in which 6,000,000 new shares are
exercisable from 18 September 2017 to 17 September 2018
for the directors.
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32. FBIRHERTEI (&)
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32. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

Details of the movements of the share options granted under

32. FEIRHERTEI (&)

RBZE2017F12A3IB EFER - RIEZ

the Scheme during the year ended 31 December 2017 were R M EREZESFBOT
as follows:
Number of share options
FERENE
Outstanding Outstanding
Exercise price as at Granted Exercised Lapsed as at
per share 1 January during during during 31 December
Participants Date of grant Exercise period (HKD) 2017 the year the year the year 2017
20175 20175
BRITER 1A18 12A318
28\t BTEH 8 (#&7) i R AT RERRH RERTTHE RERKHY AR AT
Directors 18/9/2017 18/9/2017 - 17/9/2018 082 - 6,000,000 - - 6,000,000
%
Employees 18/9/2017 18/3/2018 - 17/9/2018 082 - 15,000,000 - - 15,000,000
[E&
- 21,000,000 - - 21,000,000
Weighted average exercise price (HKD) N/A 0.82 N/A N/A 0.82
MEFHTEE (BT TER TER TER

MR E A PR AT 20174 E RS 17y



For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z£20174 128318 It F &

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements = & Bf 78 R &R M 5%

As at 31 December 2017, the number and weighted average
exercise price of share options exercisable at the end of
reporting period were 21,000,000 and HKDO.82 respectively.
As at 31 December 2016, no share options were outstanding
to be exercised.

The weighted average remaining contractual life for share
options outstanding at the end of reporting period is
approximately 10 months (2016: nil). The weighted average
share price at the date of exercise of options exercised during
the year was HKD0.82 (2016: HKDO.84).

/18%mphony Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017
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32. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED) 32. BRRRHESTEI (48)

Details of the movements of the share options granted under REZE2016%F12A318 IEFE RN RBIBZ

the Scheme during the year ended 31 December 2016 were FrEIR LRI E BT

as follows:
Number of share options
ERENE

Outstanding Outstanding
Exercise price as at Granted Exercised Lapsed as at
per share 1 January during during during 31 December
Participants Date of grant Exercise period (HKD) 2016 the year the year the year 2016
120165 120165
BRITER 1A18 12A318
28\t BTEH 8 (#&7) i R AT RERRH RERTTHE RERKH AR T
Directors 9/9/2013 9/9/2013 - 8/9/2016 0.406 - - - - -
% 9/9/2014 - 8/9/2016 0.406 - - - - -
9/9/2015 - 8/9/2016 0.406 - - - - -
9/10/2013 9/10/2013 - 8/10/2016 0.402 - - - - -
9/10/2014 - 8/10/2016 0402 - - - - -
9/10/2015 - 8/10/2016 0.402 - - - - -
17/6/2014 17/6/2014 - 16/6/2017 0.550 6,000,000 - (6,000,000) = =
41212015 471212015 - 3/12/2016 0.760 1,000,000 - = (1,000,000) =
Employees 9/9/2013 9/9/2013 - 8/9/2016 0.406 - - - - -
8 9/9/2014 - 8/9/2016 0.406 - - - - -
9/9/2015 - 8/9/2016 0.406 - - - - -
9/10/2013 9/10/2013 - 8/10/2016 0402 - - - - -
9/10/2014 - 8/10/2016 0.402 350,000 - (140,000) (210,000) =
9/10/2015 - 8/10/2016 0402 960,000 - (870,000) (90,000) =
41212015 1/7/2016 - 31/12/2016 0.760 10,000,000 - (1,000,000) (9,000,000) =
18,310,000 - (8,010,000) (10,300,000) =
Weighted average exercise price (HKD) 0.666 N/A 0.558 0.750 N/A
METHEE (81) T TER

MR20176F12A31 8 R E R AT AR
HEHZE A21,000,0008% 85 + M hitEFH
1T{E{ER0.82/8 7T - 12016512 A31H * I
BN RATIE 2 BB AR

TR 5 HA SR 1) AR 7 (62 B A A 1) D P19 &
B NFHHRI0E A (20165 : #) - X
FRDITEBBETTE R SN FHR
B /30.827% 7T (20164 : 0.84/6 7T ) °
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32. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

The total number of shares available for issue under the
Scheme as at 31 December 2017 was approximately
886,743,000 shares, included a total number of 21,000,000
share options that had been granted but not yet lapsed
or exercised (2016: 811,726,000 shares, without any
outstanding share options that had been granted but not
yet lapsed or exercised), which represented 29.3% (2016:
30.0%) of the issued share capital of the Company at 31
December 2017.

The estimated fair value of the options granted on 18
September 2017 was approximately HKDO.068 per option.
The fair value was calculated using the Black-Scholes model
with Binomial Tree method. The inputs into the model were

as follows:

Share price at grant date HKDO.82
Exercise price HKDO0.82
Expected volatility 21.207%
Expected life 1 year
Risk-free rate 0.4494%
Expected dividend yield 0.4872%

The volatility assumption, measured at the standard deviation
of expected share price returns, is based on a statistical
analysis of daily share prices over the last three years.

The share options granted on 9 September 2013 were
subject to the following vesting schedule:

32. FEIRHERTEI (&)

2017612831 H 1B #& BB A& & 51 &) Ay
B 1T R BR 1D 48 B 4 5886,743,000
fEiRh 2REEREAE KRB KE
77 fi #921,000,00017 & A% #E (20164 :
811,726,0008% J& fn + I & B, 4% {8 &) R 2k
Rk 1T B9 BE AR - (h AN R A1 pA201 74
12A31H B #17 IR A #929.3% (2016 :
30.0%) °

R2017F9 A18AE A B A LK LB
R EET AT EEL AEDERE0.068%5
T o A EBETMER = XEhERE s — &F
RETEAGE - ZEXOEABEET

R B BRI AR (E 0.8278 7T
1T (E 0.827 7T
TEERR 1R 21.207%
T8 B 4F B 14
#2 [ B ) 22 0.4494%
TEHAR B & 0.4872%

T AR B B RO 2 5 B AR B R
RIREBEE=FEEREHRHBES
Wit -

R2013F9 AR R BREBX AT R
BREXRRR

Maximum number
of share options

exercisable
REZTTE
Vesting schedule HEREER RS E
From 9 September 2013 to 8 September 2014 2013F9 H9H £2014F9 H8H 40%
From 9 September 2014 to 8 September 2015 20149 H9H £2015F9 A8H 70%
From 9 September 2015 to 8 September 2016 20159 A9H £2016F9A8H 100%
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32. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED) 32. BRRRHESTEI (48)
The share options granted on 9 October 2013 were subject M2013F 10 AR KX H BB AR /B 2 DA T 55
to the following vesting schedule: B RRR
Maximum number
of share options
exercisable
RSO {T{E
Vesting schedule HEREER RS E
From 9 October 2013 to 8 October 2014 2013%F10H9H £20144F10H8H 40%
From 9 October 2014 to 8 October 2015 201410 A9H £2015F10A8H 70%
From 9 October 2015 to 8 October 2016 20159 10A9H £20165F 10 H8H 100%
The share options granted to employees on 4 December R2015F12 H4ABE T & EMIEIREAS LA
2015 were subject to the following vesting schedule: THBRREKRAR:
Maximum number
of share options
exercisable
RZT{T{#E
Vesting schedule 5 BRFER B ERE
From 1 July 2016 to 31 December 2016 201657 H1H £20165F 12 A31H 100%
The share options granted to employees on 18 September R2017F9H18B & T & EMIEIREAS LA
2017 were subject to the following vesting schedule: THEBRRKRAR:
Maximum number
of share options
exercisable
RZT{T{#E
Vesting schedule 5B ER FERERE
From 18 March 2018 to 17 September 2018 2018F3 H18H £2018F9AH17H 100%
No vesting conditions were set for the share options granted 7R2014F6 8178 201512 A4H K&2017
to directors on 17 June 2014, 4 December 2015 and 18 FORAISAR TEENERELEREFB
September 2017. B i PR 1
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

The fair value of share options granted was recognised as
an employee cost with a corresponding increase in share
options reserve within equity over the relevant vesting
periods.

The Group recognised an expense of approximately
HKD1,102,000 (2016: HKD1,481,000) for the year ended
31 December 2017 in relation to the fair value of share
options, at HKDO.068 per options granted by the Company.

BONUS WARRANTS

On 18 March 2016, the Company announced a proposed
bonus issue of warrants on the basis of one warrant for every
five shares held on the record date (i.e. 17 June 2016). On
6 July 2016, approximately 539,733,000 units of warrants
were issued. Each warrant entitles the holder thereof to
subscribe in cash for one share at the initial subscription
price of HKD1.00 per share (subject to adjustments). The
warrants are exercisable at any time during a period of three
years commencing from the date of issue of the warrants (i.e.
6 July 2016). Details of the bonus warrants are disclosed in
the Company’s circular dated 29 April 2016.

During the year, the qualifying shareholders exercised a
total number of approximately 58,000 units of warrants at
the exercise price of HKD1.00 per warrant, and accordingly,
approximately HKD6,000 and HKD52,000 were credited to
share capital and share premium respectively.

32.

33.

RERRHERTEI (&)

ERIBRENAFEEIERREEX
7R T A AR R S B A ) A R A B P £
f IR AR BB AN

HZE2017F12A318 L FE - AR AR
H BB ER0.068E LB R EN N FEE
7N & B R AR R RE 58 I X A11,102,0009% 7T
(20164F : 1,481,000/ 7T) °

AR ERY 4

R201653A18H * AR R A EREFHFILN T
R (BI20169F6 A17R ) BH A KRR
N EE — )RR 2 EERITAN R
T o 1201657 H6H + #9539,733,00019
RREEERT - BHRBEZE THR
BEARNNRERE—BRRG NLRB
BRERI00ETT (A] THRE) - RAEZ
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34. RESERVES 34. @&
Share
Share Contributed options Retained

Company FAF premium surplus reserve profits Total
i (8 BERS RIRERE BERH @t

HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000

TEL THL FEL TEL THL

At 1 January 2016 R2016F1A1H 936,965 586,774 1,849 244922 1,770,510
Share-based payment PARR S {5 - - 1,481 - 1,481
Exercise of share options (Note 32)  T{EBER%#E (#772£32) 5,110 = (1,445) = 3,665
Lapse of share options BRELRY - - (1,885) 1,885 =
Loss for the year FEBE = = = (4,493) (4,493)
Dividend paid (Note 12) BRE (A7£12) = = - (53,974) (53,974)
At 31 December 2016 2016412 A31H 942,075 586,774 - 188,340 1,717,189
Acquisition of non-controlling interests U8 3E i 4 25 114,633 = = = 114,633
Share-based payment PABRAR 2 45 = = 1,102 = 1,102
Exercise of warrants (Note 33) 1TERRIER (f77233) 52 - - - 52
Loss for the year FEBE - - - (28,717) (28,717)
Dividend paid (Note 12) BARE (A7£12) - - - (11,232) (11,232)
At 31 December 2017 Ro017512A318 1,056,760 586,774 1,102 148391 1,793,027

The following describes the nature and purpose of each
reserves attributable to owners of the Company:

Reserve Description and purpose
Contributed Contributed surplus of approximately
surplus HKD63,561,000 represents the

excess of the fair value of the shares
of the subsidiaries acquired and the
nominal amount of the Company’s
shares issued for the acquisition at the
time of the group reorganisation on 9
February 1995. The remaining balance
of approximately HKD523,213,000
represents the implementation of capital
reduction in 2012 pursuant to which
the par value of each existing share if
HKDO0.50 each in the issued capital of
the Company were reduced by HKDO.40
each.
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34. RESERVES (CONTINUED)

35.

Reserve

Description and purpose

Share premium

Properties
revaluation
reserve

Share options
reserve

Translation
reserve

Statutory reserve

Retained profits

Amount subscribed for share capital in
excess of nominal value, and any excess
of consideration shares issued over the
carrying amount of the acquired non-
controlling interests.

Gain/(losses) arising on the revaluation
of properties (other than investment
properties). The balance of this reserve is
wholly undistributable.

Cumulative expenses recognised on
the granting of share options to the
employee over the vesting period.

Gain/(losses) arising on retranslating
the net assets of foreign operations into
presentation currency.

Appropriation of profits of the Taiwanese
subsidiary to non-distributable reserve
fund account as required by the relevant
Taiwan statue.

Cumulative net gains and losses
recognised in profit or loss.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that all of the
entities of the Group will be able to continue as a going

concern while maximising the return to stakeholders through
the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior financial year.

34.

35.
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35. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

35. EXREMEER (8)

(CONTINUED)

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debts,
which include trade and other payables, amounts due to
joint ventures, bank borrowings, loan from non-controlling
interest after deductions of bank balances and cash and
restricted bank deposits, and equity attributable to owners of
the Company, comprised of issued share capital and various
reserves.

The directors review the capital structure regularly. As part
of this review, the directors consider the cost of capital and
the risks associated with the share capital. The Group will
balance its overall capital structure through issue of new
shares as well as issue of new debts or redemption of existing
debts.

The net debts-to-equity ratios as at 31 December 2017 and
2016 were as follows:

AEBENEAZEREBEERFHR HTE
ERESREMENER BNEELER
A RITER KB IR R EFUNER IR
TRBERSFERIRHRITER K
ARBHEEARIGEED BREETRA
K& IR fE R

EETHRNAREEARE -EREH
M—®ny EFTEERERAEBNER
AR R AEE BB ETHR R E
THEGRBERREER FTEERREE
ZANAS

2017 X%2016F12 A31 H It FEF & F#
HEERBERIMTER:

2017 2016

HKD’000 HKD’000

F#ET THET

Trade and other payables B 5 M E T BR X 174,361 258,836
Amounts due to joint ventures B E S ERIE 4,825 =
Bank borrowings SRITE 1,156,927 719,491
Loan from non-controlling interests KB IR ES 600 153,254
1,336,713 1,131,581

Less: S

Bank balances and cash RITEHR MRS (137,326) (328,468)
Restricted bank deposits SRRAIRITER (25,229) (4,870)
Net debts BEFE 1,174,158 798,243
Equity attributable to owners of the Company RAREA ANE(EEZR 2,543,867 2,177,817
Net debts-to-equity ratio FREERLEE 46% 37%
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(A) CATEGORIES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

36. &RTH

(A) E£RITHER

2017 2016
Carrying amount Fair value | Carrying amount Fair value
FREE AEEE kel ATEE
HKD’000 HKD’000 HKD'000 HKD'000
FET FET BT TET
Financial assets: SREE
Fair value through profit or loss FABRNLTEE
(held for trading) (HEEE)
— Trading securities -BE&H 9,118 9,118 10,714 10,714
Loans and receivables: R FE I R R
— Trade and other receivables -E 5 REEYER 114,556 (Note) 129,060 (Note)
(Psx) (BizE)
— Amounts due from joint ventures ~ —fERA & EFIE - (Note) 53,069 (Note)
(FzE) (BzE)
— Amount due from an assaciate — Rl e ¥R 27,912 (Note) - (Note)
(Fs) (53]
— Advances to customers in margin =~ —REFRELEE 110,858 (Note) 119,656 (Note)
financing BE 287 (BEE) (FzE)
— Loans receivable —ERER 237,132 (Note) 333,810 (Note)
(FzE) (BzE)
— Loan to non-controlling interests ~BER TR R = (Note) 1,668 (Note)
(Fs) (53]
— Restricted bank deposits —ZRHRITER 25,229 (Note) 4870 (Note)
(Fsx) (BizE)
— Bank balances and cash —RITERERE 161,334 (Note) 351,147 (Note)
(FzE) (BzE)
Financial liabilities measured at SHERRBERATE
amortised cost:
— Trade and other payables —E 7 REMENER 169,715 (Note) 252,855 (Note)
(Fz) (KizE)
— Amounts due to joint ventures ~EEEREHRE 4,825 (Note) = (Note)
(Fsx) k3]
— Bank borrowings —BITER 1,156,927 (Note) 719,491 (Note)
(i3] (BzE)
— Loan from non-controlling interests ~ — 7K B IR ER E 600 (Note) 153,254 (Note)
(Fz) (KizE)

Note:

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of these
categories approximate to their fair value on the grounds that
either their maturities are short or their effective interest rates

approximate the discount rates as at the end of the reporting

period.

FEREFRAS 2017F E
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %z & B 75 38 3% My 5%
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36. €T H (&)

(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES (B) £RMEMEEBERBR
AND POLICIES
The Group’s major financial instruments defined in AEENETESMT A (EEREE
Note 4(q) to the consolidated financial statements EmAMTEA)) BERZES &
include trading securities, trade and other receivables, SREAMERIRE - B (FERT) &
amounts due from/(to) joint ventures, amount due BRI S B ERIE R
from an associate, advances to customers in margin HTRBSCHERF 2R BRE
financing, loans receivable, loan to non-controlling FoERTIEERER  ZRHIET
interest, restricted bank deposits, bank balances and FRCFRTESRERS EFNEM
cash, trade and other payables, bank borrowings FERTBR R - SRITE R OR B eI AR 4
and loan from non-controlling interests. Details of mER-HEemT AEMNFIENRIEHE
these financial instruments are disclosed in the MsEH R - Bt E S T AMABENER
respective notes. The risks associated with these B EEEERER  FXER EER
financial instruments include currency risk, interest BonBE SRR RERAERRE-
rate risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and equity price B I B R I BUR SR X o B
risk. The policies on how to mitigate these risks are BEARBERNEEILFRR R
set out below. Management manages and monitors AT K BF 75 28U SR BUGE & R
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.
(i)  Currency risk () BEELE
Several subsidiaries of the Company have foreign RAFHETHE QR INE
currency in sales and purchases activities and HERBERE R R A AIBEER
intercompany balance, which expose the Group LDAREEEZINE R R
to foreign currency risk.
At the end of the reporting period, the carrying REREERR  AEBLAARESE
amounts of the Group’s monetary assets and ERNINEEE (ZBATRB
monetary liabilities of the entities comprising the To) AN EH (B AR -
Group that were denominated in a currency (i.e. TEFEAETTEHEMINE BB )
RMB, but excluding foreign currency exposures HEENAEEEREERAS
in USD) other than the functional currency of the EETERBEYaEMNEREDE
relevant group entities (HKD in this case) were as ONE
follows:
Liabilities Assets
Bf& BE
2017 2016 2017 2016
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
FHT THT FET TAT
RMB AR 30,776 6,801 15,987 18,350
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
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AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(i)

Currency risk (Continued) (i)
Sensitivity analysis

The Group is mainly exposed to the fluctuation

in USD/HKD exchange rate. However, the foreign

currency risk is not significant as HKD is pegged

to USD as at the end of both reporting periods.

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity
to a 5% increase and decrease in HKD against
RMB. 5% is the sensitivity rate used when
reporting foreign currency risk internally to
key management personal and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonable
possible change in foreign exchange rates. The
sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding
foreign currency denominated monetary items
and adjusts their translation at the year end for
a b% change in foreign currency rate. A positive
number below indicates an increase in profit
for the year, net of tax, where RMB strengthens
5% against HKD. For a 5% weakening of RMB
against HKD, there would be an equal and
opposite impact on the profit of the Group, and
the balances below would be negative.

36. £RTH (&)

(B) £REIFEEEHERBUIR (&)

BEEmE (&)
AEEXEARXET BLE
TRE R - AT - AFETTR
SETTHNA - SR PR B S B RS
R TR

TRFLAEREHETHLAR
EAS%THEMBZ B2 HRRE -
5%RNERAEREIE ABER
SN R AT 2 SRR LR - X
REEEBHINEEXRSEER
BE) 2 FHE - BUREDITERRE
UoNEHEZ BRI R &k
I T EF KR M [ KR IBIRIS % 8
BERWHRE - T EBRTFA
AR H BT THES % KR Tt &
BRI BARELAETRE
5%H + Bl 5 AR £ B 71 A = 48
RIBMRRZZE A TEHRER
B

2017 2016
HKD’000 HKD'000
FHET FAET
(Decrease)/increase in profit for the year, R A| GFd) 1 h0
net of tax PR 1% (617) 482
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(i)

(ii)

Currency risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

The sensitivity analysis was determined assuming
that the change in foreign exchange rate had
occurred at the end of reporting period and
had been applied to each of the group entities;
exposure to currency risk for both derivative and
non-derivative financial instruments in existence
at the date, and that all other variables, in
particular the interest rates, remained constant.

The stated changes represent management’s
assessment of reasonably possible change
in foreign exchange rate over the period until
the next annual reporting date. Results of
the analysis as presented in the above table
represent an aggregation of the effects on each
of the group entities’ profit for the year measured
in the respective functional currencies, translated
into HKD at the exchange rate ruling at the end
of reporting period for presentation purpose.
The analysis is performed on the same basis for
2016.

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate
risk in relation to fixed-rate bank deposits and
loans receivable. The directors consider the
Group’s exposure to fair value interest rate risk is
not significant as interest-bearing bank deposits
and loans receivable are within short maturity
periods.

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest
rate risk in relation to variable-rate bank deposits,
advances from customers in margin financing
and bank borrowings. It is the Group’s policy to
keep its deposits at floating rate of interest so as
to minimise the fair value interest rate risk.
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(i)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is mainly
concentrated on the fluctuation of Hong Kong
Interbank Offered Rate (“HIBOR") and London
Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR”) arising from
the Group's HKD and USD denominated bank
borrowings.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on the exposure to interest
rates for non-derivative instruments at the
end of the reporting period. The analysis is
prepared assuming these financial instruments
outstanding at the end of the reporting period
were outstanding for the whole financial year.
A 50 basis point increase or decrease is used
when reporting interest rate risk internally to
key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates on bank deposits and
advances to customers in margin financing
were 50 basis points (2016: 50 basis points)
higher/lower and all other variables were
held constant, the Group’s profit for the
year, net of tax. would increase/decrease by
approximately HKD1,042,000 (2016: profit for
the year increase/decrease by approximately
HKD859,000) attributable to the Group's
exposure to interest rates on variable-rate bank
deposits and advances to customers margin
financing. In addition, if interest rate on bank
borrowings was 50 basis points (2016: 50 basis
points) higher/lower and all other variables
were held constant, the Group’s profit for the
year, net of tax would decrease/increase by
approximately HKD4,830,000 (2016: profit for
the year decrease/increase by approximately
HKD3,004,000) attributable to the Group’s
exposure to interest rates on variable-rate bank
borrowings.

36. £RT R (&)
(B) £REIEEEFERBIR (&)

(i) FIEmEE (&)
AEENRSRENXERE
EETEEBRITAERER
RBRITEREFSHNE)  EE
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ERARTBRAELE W IRKRE
EEHNENAEREEHH
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(iii)  Credit risk

The credit risk of the Group is primarily
attributable to its trade receivables, advances
to customers in margin financing and loans
receivable. In order to minimise the credit risk,
management has delegated a team responsible
for determination of credit limits, credit approvals
and other monitoring procedures to ensure
that follow-up actions are taken to recover
overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews
the recoverable amount of each individual
trade debts at the end of reporting period to
ensure that adequate impairment losses are
made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard,
the directors consider that the credit risk is

significantly reduced.

Segments other than financial services segment

The Group had a concentration of credit risk in
relation to trade receivables of segments other
than financial services segment was 26% (2016:
17%) and 63% (2016: 57%) of total trade
receivables of these segments were due from
their largest customer and top five customers
respectively. These trade receivables were mainly
with counterparties with sounded credit standing
or with whom the Group had no default payment
history. The credit risk was limited because the

counterparties with good repayment history.
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(iii)  Credit risk (Continued)

Financial services segment

Financial services segment had put in place
a well-established credit policy governing the
granting of credit limit to customers. Customers
were generally required to deposit their
securities, properties or other appropriate assets
with the Group as collateral to their borrowings.
The credit risks of customers were regularly
monitored with reference to the realisable values
of the collateral.

The Group had a concentration of credit risk
in relation to advances to customers in margin
financing and loans receivable of this segment
was 20% (2016: 16%) and 61% (2016: 53%)
of total receivables of this segment was due from
their largest customer and top five customers
respectively. These receivables were mainly with
counterparties with sounded credit standing
or with whom the Group had security over the
borrower's securities, properties or other financial
assets. The credit risk was limited because the
counterparties with good repayment history.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial
assets, which comprised of trading securities,
trade and other receivables (except those
described above), amounts due from joint
ventures, amount due from an associate, loan to
non-controlling interest, restricted bank deposits,
bank balances and cash, arises from default
of the counterparties were, with a maximum
exposure equal to the carrying amounts of these
instruments.

36. £RTH (&)
(B) £REIFEEEHERBUIR (&)
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(iv) Liquidity risk

In the management of the Group'’s liquidity risk,
the Group monitors and maintains an optimal
level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the
Group’s operations and mitigate the effects
of fluctuations in cash flows. For the Group’s
financial services segment, there is a constant
need of funding for the settlement of securities
transactions, margin financing and loans to
customers.

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for non-derivative financial
liabilities based on agreed repayment terms.
The table illustrated below is based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities
according to the earliest date on which the
Group can be required to pay. Specifically, bank
borrowings with repayment on demand clause are
included in the earliest time band regardless of
the probability of the banks choosing to exercise
their rights. The maturity dates for other non-
derivative financial liabilities are based on the
agreed repayment dates. The table includes both
interest and principal cash flows.
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(iv) Liquidity risk (Continued)
Liquidity and interest risk tables

36.

SRMTIA(E)

(B) £REIREEEFERBUIR (&)

REEREE ()
REE T RFFE X

On demand Carrying
Weighted or Total amount
average less than 1-3 312 More than  undiscounted at
2017 20175 interest rate 1 month months months 1 year cash flows  31.12.2017
720174
HlEmiE ELIGE REH 123182
THE  DRIER 1-3f@R 3-12f8R SR-%F BeREE fREE
% HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
T#ERL T#R THRL T#R T#RL T#R

Non-derivative financial liabilities FiEEMAR
Trade and other payables 25 REMEMER - 169,715 = = = 169,715 169,715
Amount due to joint ventures ENAELERE - 4,825 - - - 4,825 4,825
Bank borrowings - variable interest-rate  $517 & 3 — 2 & F|= 4.13 160,187 6,847 24663 1053271 1244968 1,156,927
Loan from non-controlling interests REFERERERN - - - - 600 600 600
334,727 6,847 24,663 1,053,871 1,420,108 1,332,067
On demand Carrying
Weighted or Total amount
average less than 13 312 More than  undiscounted at
2016 2016%F interest rate 1 month months months 1 year cashflows  31.12.2016
20165
MEmE  REAN REE  12A31AZ
THE HR1ER 1-3f8A 3128 A SR—F BEREE REE
% HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
FET THAT FET THAT THET TAT

Non-derivative financial liabilities ~ Ff74£2MEE
Trade and other payables B 5 REMER KX - 252,855 - = - 252,855 252,855
Bank borrowings - variable interest-rate  ${TE 7 —F&)F|% 271 156,443 2514 11,524 605,793 776,274 719,491
Loan from non-controlling interests REFEREZER - - - - 153,254 153,254 153,254
409,298 2514 11,524 759,047 1,182,383 1,125,600
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(v)

Equity price risk

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values
of equity securities decrease as a result of
changes in the levels of equity indices and
the market price of individual securities. The
Group was exposed to equity price risk arising
from individual equity investments classified as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
as at 31 December 2017 and 2016.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to
every 5% change in the fair values of the Group’s
equity investments, with all other variables held
constant and before any impact on tax, based

36. €T H (&)
(B) &REIFEEEHERBUIR (&)

) RFEHELE

P AR (B AR L B = 15 AU 5 8K
F R A8 Bl 7 25 (B = 8 T B B
MR AES A FEETH®ROR
% ° FR20174F 2016512 A31
SRS S PEE o) e N
RRB D B/EAFEEIA
Bamz 2 EEMNERIRAE
B o

THRITARE L BAREY
AT BEHEREH 2 B
(Pl o B BRI T8 R At
EARBEYE) EERRED

on their carrying amounts at the end of reporting RERHEBEHE -
period.
Increase/
Increase/ (decrease) Increase/
(decrease) in profit (decrease)
in fair value before tax in equity
AFEEZ KBiBuaz #EEzEn
wm (BY) i (ED) (iED)
% HKD'000 HKD'000
% FHT THT
2017 20174
Equity investment listed in REBLEMZ
Hong Kong A& &
— Trading securities —BE#H 5% 456 =
2016 2016%F
Equity investment listed in REBEMZ
Hong Kong A&
— Trading securities —-BE#S 5% 536 =
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 36. &R TH (&)

(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES (B) £RMEMEEBERBK (&)

AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(vi) Offsetting financial assets and financial i) BHEEHEERSHERE
liabilities
The following tables represent details of the TRENAEE ] FHEZ
Group's financial assets and financial liabilities MEERERAE (ZARHIH
subject to offsetting, restricted by enforceable 172 483 R 45 22 BE o SR A
master netting arrangements or similar HRH) 2 FFEE -
agreements.

Financial assets subject to offsetting

AFHHzEMEE

Related amounts not offset
in the consolidated statement of
financial position

BENGEMBRAR
K2 BNLE
Gross Net
amount of amount of
recognised financial
financial assets
liabilities presented
Gross  offset in the in the Financial
amount of  consolidated  consolidated instruments
recognised statement  statement of other Cash
financial of financial financial than cash collateral
assets position position collateral received  Net amount
REGEHHE

RARES RESUME Rekds
=5 ERR HAREIZ sz EhEg
SHMAELE SMAREE SMAESE  SMTIA HE 8
HKDOOO ~ HKDOOO ~ HKDOOO  HKDOOD  HKDOOO  HKD'00O
TEL THL THL TEL THL THL

At 31 December 2017 #2017512R318
Trade receivable from HKSCC REBBEEZ
B SRNER 96,782 (95,411) 1,371 - - 1,371
At 31 December 2016 W2016512A31A
Trade receivable from HKSCC RERBEE
B 5 RN 31,520 (31,520) - - - -
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 36. &R TH (&)

(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES (B) £RMEMEEBERBK (&)
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(vi) Offsetting financial assets and financial i) BHEEHEERSHERE
liabilities (Continued) (%)

Financial liabilities subject to offsetting

AFRHZ AR

Related amounts not offset in
the consolidated statement of
financial position

BERGEMBRAR
KNS
Gross
amount of
recognised  Net amount
financial of financial
assets liabilities
offsetin  presented in
the the Financial
Gross amount  consolidated  consolidated  instruments
of recognised statement statement other Cash
financial of financial of financial than cash collateral
liabilities position position collateral received  Net amount
REGEHE

RARESE RESME RefN&
EHR E#R HRR2TZ sz EkEs
SHARGE SHAENE 2MAREE  eMIR g Gid
HKDOOO ~ HKDOOO  HKDOOO  HKDOOO  HKDOOO  HKD'00O
ThL THL T TEL THL THL

At 31 December 2017 #2017#12R318
Trade payable from HKSCC REBRREL
EVTET 95,411 (95,411) - - - -
At 31 December 2016 20165128318
Trade payable from HKSCC RERBEE
OIS 35,675 (31,520 4,155 - - 4,155
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(vi) Offsetting financial assets and financial

liabilities (Continued)

The tables below reconcile the amounts of
trade and other receivables, and trade and

36. £RT R (&)

(B) £REIREEEFERBUIR (&)

HHEHEERSHME R

(4)

TRBREAMBRRKRMZ
SRR E 28 5 R E AW

other payables of the Group as presented in the KEE S Rk AMENRRERE
consolidated statement of financial position: ZEER
Trade and other receivables B2 R A MR
2017 2016
HKD’000 HKD’000
FHET THET
Net amount of trade receivable RKEBBEEZ
from HKSCC B S ERERFUF R 1,371 =
Trade and other receivables not TEEERESHE
in the scope of offsetting disclosure B 5 NH M EI R 145,323 142,508
Trade and other receivables A ISR AR
as disclosed in the consolidated FiEsES R
statement of financial position H 1th fE Y BR 3R 146,694 142,508
Trade and other payables B 5 R FE M IETHRA
2017 2016
HKD’000 HKD’000
FHET T T
Net amount of trade payable REBBEE 2
from HKSCC B 5 REMNIRFFEE _ 4,155
Trade and other payables not NERIEHREE 2
in the scope of offsetting disclosure & % R FL b & (4 fR5X 174,361 254,681
Trade and other payables RE MR AR R
as disclosed in the consolidated BB S K
statement of financial position HAL PR AR 174,361 258,836

2770 3 B A BR 44 =] 20174 [ 40 45 19y
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(C) FAIR VALUE
The fair value hierarchies of financial assets and
financial liabilities are determined as follows:

° Level 1 — quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities, the fair
value of financial assets and financial liabilities
with standard terms and conditions and traded
on active liquid markets are determined with
reference to quoted market bid prices.

o Level 2 — inputs other than quoted prices
included with in Level 1 that are observable for
the financial assets and financial liabilities, either
directly (that is, prices) or indirectly (that is,
derived from prices).

o Level 3 — inputs for the financial assets and
financial liabilities that are not based on
observable market data (that is, unobservable
inputs).

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of
financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at
amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements
approximate at their fair values.
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(C) FAIR VALUE (CONTINUED)

Fair value measurements recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position

The following table provides an analysis of financial
assets and financial liabilities that are measured
subsequently to initial recognition at fair value, all
grouped into Level 1, based on the degree to which the
inputs to the fair value measurement are observable
and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement. Level 1 fair value measurement is
derived from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
market for identical financial assets.

36. £RTH (&)

©

AFEE(F)
BRI BRI T g 22 F (B (BT

=
TERATREERERAEEE KA
RHEEERZKMTE (FAAYR

BRERAFEEHEHABEMNS
BRERLOIN - BRIXFEE
AENRBEAHREREENRIRE
BohiEh®mE CREFAR) MG

2017 2016
HKD’000 HKD’000
TFH#IT FHET
Level 1 Bkl
Trading securities EERSH 9,118 10,714

37. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Details of potential tax liabilities in connection with the
potential penalty arising from the late filing of the PRC tax
returns for the PRC Enterprise Income Tax is disclosed in
Note 9 to the consolidated financial statements.

37. HAAER
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38. OPERATING LEASES 38. KEHE
THE GROUP AS A LESSEE AREHZRBEAN
The Group made the following minimum lease payments 7N 2 B 5 R 18 B B AR TS A PE HE A TR AR
during both financial years was as follows: E5NIE:
2017 2016
HKD’000 HKD’'000
TFHIT T
Operating lease rentals in respect of: DTEHMESHEHRS:
Minimum lease payments =IEREEFHKE
— offices o NE 11,969 669
— staff quarters —BIFES 1,194 258
— retail shops —ZT&5 5,091 5,294
Contingent lease payments ok AT B 78 833 6,150
19,087 12,371
At the end of reporting period, the Group had the following R|ERR ANEBAESZ M ATHEE
commitments of future minimum lease payments for offices, RIAABUENEEHENHAZE BT
staff quarters and retail shops under non-cancellable =Rk TENHAAR R KA IH - HE
operating leases, which were fall due as follows: HAMSTT
2017 2016
HKD’000 HKD’000
TFHT T
Within one year —F R 13,810 16,003
In the second to fifth year, inclusive EF_FEERF
(BREEEMTE) 17,895 1,602
31,705 17,605
Future minimum lease payments represent rental expenses ARZFEHREFBNEAEBERNEET
payables by the Group for certain of its offices, staff quarters WAE BIBERTERHNESAS-
and retail shops. Lease agreements are negotiated for lease HEHGREHEZHRALE —E=FTF-

terms from one to three years.
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38. OPERATING LEASES (CONTINUED)

THE GROUP AS LESSEE (CONTINUED)

The above lease commitments represent basic rents only and
do not include contingent rental expenses payable in respect
of certain retail shops leased by the Group. In general, these
contingent rental expenses are calculated with reference to
the relevant retail shops’ turnover generated during the year
by using pre-determined formulae, which is not possible to
estimate in advance the amount of such contingent rental
expenses.

THE GROUP AS A LESSOR

Rental income generated by leasing investment properties
during the year was amounted to approximately
HKD51,349,000 (2016: HKD36,245,000). Investment
properties held for leasing purposes have committed its
tenants for lease terms from one to five years.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted
with tenants for the following future minimum lease income:

38. HEHE (&)

FEEARBEA (&)
PREEAEEEEAEES BARERN
SEHENETTERHNRENRAES
FsZ e —RME  ZFEXAHEEHLI2E
HRTERHFANELNEXAERAERL
BENRAGE SnGrEMEaRxA
HEMXWEMIL AT

FEEALHBEA

TR HEREMEELECHSBANR
51,349,000% 7T (20164 : 36,245,000/
T0) FHFHERENRENEEAGEM
F-HMNF—=8F-

BSR4 B - 7 5 B B S T ST R SRR
BERAAHET :

2017 2016

HKD’000 HKD’000

TFHEIT FETT

Within one year —FR 60,062 24,532
In the second to fifth year, inclusive EFE_FEERF

(BIEEEME) 92,126 18,147

152,188 42,679
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39. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at the end of reporting period, the Group had contracted
with counterparties for the following capital expenditures:

39. BXRiE

RBEHR AEBEH THIE AR H
HFHETLAK:

2017 2016
HKD’000 HKD'000
THT FHETT
Contracted for but not provided BRACTIL & 4ok KRB
— Construction costs on Xiamen and — B RER BT 2
Shenyang outlet malls BRI 7,118 =
— Capital injection in respect of
the establishment of —EHEKIEEREL
a joint venture company A& - 3,893

40. UNDERWRITING AND SUB-
UNDERWRITING COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, the Group did not enter
into any contractual commitment to purchase any securities
in either underwriting or sub-underwriting through the sales
of securities, at an agreed-upon price between the Group
and issuer of securities, regardless of whether or not the
securities could be sold to investors in the future or not.

41. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(the “MPF Scheme”) for all its qualifying employees in Hong
Kong. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately
from those of the Group, under the control of trustees. The
Group contributes 5% or HKD1,500 per month in maximum
of relevant payroll costs to the MPF Scheme, which
contribution is matched by employees.

The subsidiaries of the Company in the PRC are members
of the state-managed retirement benefits scheme operated
by the government of the PRC. The retirement scheme
contributions, which are based on a certain percentage of the
salaries of the relevant subsidiaries’ employees, are charged
to the consolidated statement of comprehensive income in
the period to which they relate and represent the amount of
contributions payable by these subsidiaries to the scheme.
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20174 K20165F12 A31H » AN &= E I &
RIS A # A RN B EE AR
TABENZEEERSRBEESFBET
ABREIDBHENES MTwEFED
RARREE TIREE -

41. BARERISTE

AEBRMBERBEENAEREENT—
HEFIEAEEAE ([BESTE]) -4
BN EERAKRENEENHERE
YHEFXFABEHNESHB - AKEEH
F AR T &K A #95%3K & =1,5008
TERBRESF IR MEB TARM
MEEF R

ARBRHEOMERR AT HEBFLE
i B R B AR IR AR RIS 8 Ak B © LR IRET
SEFDIRERNBAREENTENS
THEOLE & W E RS L FH B
DA M REA R NG B GT AR 6 2 E K
HEo
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RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME
(CONTINUED)

The Group also participates in defined contribution
retirement schemes organised by the relevant local
government authorities in other jurisdictions where the
Group operates. Certain employees of the Group eligible
for participating in the retirement schemes are entitled to
retirement benefits from the schemes. The Group is required
to make contributions to the retirement schemes up to
the time of retirement of the eligible employees, excluding
those employees who resigned before their retirements, at a
percentage that is specified by the local governments.

RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

(A) RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
During both financial years, the Group entered into
the following transactions with Mr. Cheng Tun Nei, the
director and his associates:

41.

42.

0t 3% AR P R

BARENEE (R])

AEET2EAREQEXBHEMBDR
F28 [ ) A8 B 3 77 TR T &R P 0 57 E SR IR
e ARETAEBRSIMENRTEINE
TREARZAXSAENEKRERN K
SEAREHMBRFRENBDLERAZE
BRIRGEFEHER B EREERIK
BlE TEEREARAMBENERESR -

BAEAN TR

(A FAEANLEES
MEAHEEAN AEEEESES
BERITEREMEATETATR
5

2017 2016
HKD’000 HKD’000
Nature e THET T
Commission income e A 48 63
Interest income FEMA 108 241
Entertainment expenses EEHRAFE 45 321
Management fee expenses EREERX 203 50
Rental expenses e 516 324
Motor vehicle expenses RERAX 67 66
Total amount of margin financing facilities RERBETRESHE
granted as at the year-end date (vote i) LHEZ B EE (misi) 10,000 10,000
Maximum amount of margin financing RECHERTHE 3,490 4,556
Minimum purchases for the sale and SHE & oy $H i K AR 3 &%
distribution of swimwear and other HmEBARE - EH R
sportswear, shoes and related accessories HE B8 BC & (i)
(Note i) 117,601 -

205
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42. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES 42. BEANTHE (&)

(CONTINUED)

(A) RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)

(A) BAEANLXRS (&)

Notes: ez -
(i) Advances to the director in margin financing facilities granted (i) PREFEAN RRECHEMESE
are repayable on demand, carried at an interest rate of Prime 2 BRENEREEE RREERT

KRG FIN3%:T S (20165 : HREEF =
003% ) » W PAFEH R IR RAIERIER

Rate plus 3% (2016: Prime Rate plus 3%) per annum, and are
secured by securities collateral for both years.

BIRE GRS ERRA RN
hE AREEARSENFEGE B H
20176 E2021 FF AR F 2 i B AKX B8
B ASERFAEZEABRHEE
R B SHE &2 Sk IREE R E A ES
R 2 - % % AE A B & o

(ii) Pursuant to the Distribution Agreement with Shanghai (ii)
Descente Commercial Co. Ltd, the Group is required to make
minimum purchases in each contract year effective from
the financial year of 2017 to 2021, subject to the Group was
appointed as an exclusive distributor during the year for the
sale and distribution of swimwear and other sportswear, shoes
and related accessories in the PRC.

(i) These transactions disclosed in note (i) and (i) above are (i)  ZHEXRZFERKFEOR()ZER LT
constituted as connected transactions as defined under the AIIETHAREZBERS MBE LT
Listing Rules, and those that are not exempted from disclosures AT EREIELHE 2R FENEE
in accordance with the Listing Rules are set out in the section ERRE [HERERS] —fic
headed “Continuing Connected Transactions” in the Corporate
Governance Report.

(B) COMPENSATION OF KEY MANAGEMENT (B) EEEIMEASHM
PERSONNEL
The remuneration of the directors and other members MEMREEN EEREMEEES
of key management during both financial years were as BAEMFHMAT
follows:
2017 2016
HKD’000 HKD’000
F#ET THET
Short-term benefits 52 HARE 14,129 10,640
Post-employment benefits HLILHERA®BET 165 110
14,294 10,750

The remunerations of the directors and key

management are determined by the board of directors

having regard to the performance of these individuals

and market trends.
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43. HOLDING COMPANY STATEMENT OF

FINANCIAL POSITION

43. ERATMIHFIRER R

2017 2016
Notes HKD’000 HKD'000
st F#T FHET
Non-current assets EMEEE
Investments in subsidiaries HERHE R A 988 983
Amounts due from subsidiaries A NG ] 2,916,464 2,316,199
Restricted bank deposit SRR B SRITE 3K 20,000 -
2,937,452 2,317,187
Current assets mENEE
Other receivables H th & sk IR 632 1,861
Bank balances and cash RITEHRMES 35,723 152,294
36,355 154,155
Current liabilities B A A
Amounts due to subsidiaries FENHT B A B I8 16,723 16,703
Other payables A E < BR SR 2,595 1,629
Bank borrowings RITEE 489,577 155,082
508,895 173,414
Net current liabilities MENBEFE (472,540) (19,259)
Non-current liabilities IEREBAR
Bank borrowings IRITER 376,304 310,164
Net assets BEFE 2,088,608 1,987,764
Equity Em
Share capital A% 31 295,581 270,575
Reserves HE 34 1,793,027 1,717,189
2,088,608 1,987,764

FEREFRAS 2017F E &
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44. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 44. B ASINIE R

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31

7

M20174 k2016512 H31H - R A AIH) £

December 2017 and 2016 are as follows: EMBRRFBNT:
Place of
incorporation/ Paid up/ Effective interest in issued/
registration issued/registered registered capital held
Name of subsidiary and operation share capital by the Company Principal activities
AL, RATREERT/
MEBAT B REEDE EME #1T/ BRE BilRAFRER EEED
2017 2016
Directly Indirectly Directly  Indirectly
B ik B &

Cosmo Group Holdings Limited  The British Virgin Ordinary USD10,000 100% - 100% - Investment holding

Islands T AA%10,0005% 7T REER
EBRAHES

Power Plus Limited The British Virgin Ordinary USD1 - 100% - 100%  Investment holding

Islands Lmk1ET BEER
RBELHS

Premier Ever Group Limited The British Virgin Ordinary USD63,068,127 - 100% - 100%  Investment holding

Islands TR AR63,068,1275 7T REER
EBRAHES
Rivergold International Limited ~ The British Virgin Ordinary USD78,364,080 - 100% - 100%  Investment holding
Islands A% 78,364,0805 7T BEER
RBELHS
ERRERITEERE The PRC (wholly Registered capital - 100% = 100%  Property investment
BRAF owned foreign USD70,766,000 MERE
enterprise) 1 & 770,766,000% T
RE (SNEBEE
©%)

BHEEMBAEEERAR  The PRC (wholly Registered capital - 100% = 58%  Property investment
owned foreign USD42,500,000 REZR
enterprise) 1 & £42,500,000% 7T

HE (SNEBE
%)

EGEEEEERAH The PRC (wholly Registered capital - 100% - 58%  Property investment
owned foreign USD18,300,000 REER
enterprise) 1 & 7518,300,000% 7T

B (O EEE
®%)
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44. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(CONTINUED)

44. M B AT (8)

Place of
incorporation/ Paid up/ Effective interest in issued/
registration issued/registered registered capital held
Name of subsidiary and operation share capital by the Company Principal activities
BRI BADBHERT/
HBAT BRREENYE  CME/ BT/ BERF BRBFA RS EBED
2017 2016
Directly Indirectly Directly  Indirectly
Ef i B i
EGHAEERRAT The PRC (wholly Registered capital - 100% - 100%  Operation and
owned foreign USD9,800,000 management of
enterprise) 14 7%9,800,000% 7T outlet malls
RE (O EEE RERITEERER
&%)
China Rise Finance Group Hong Kong Ordinary HKD10,000 - 100% - 100%  Investment holding
Company Limited Bk 38 A%10,000%5 7T REER
ERCREEARAR
China Rise Securities Asset Hong Kong Ordinary HKD100,000,000 - 100% - 100%  Provision of securities
Management Company Bk 8% 100,000,000 7 brokerage,
Limited margin financing,
EERFAEERERAA underwriting and
placing, financial
consultancy
and assets
management
services
REFHEL RE
2RE BHEK
BE Bis@AR
BEEERB
China Rise Finance Co., Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HKD10,000 - 100% - 100%  Provision of money
EENKERAA e T 3AA%10,0007% 7T lending services
REEERS
Trillion Earning Limited The British Virgin Ordinary USD1 - 100% - 100%  Investment holding
Islands TRmRIET REER
EBELHS
Worldwide Properties Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKD10,000 - 100% - 100%  Property investment
EBEXRRAT B LAz 10,0007% 7T WERE
SERRFERMERAR  Taiwan Ordinary NTD50,000,000 - 100% = 100%  Operation and
=) %1 4 #50,000,000 management of
duty free shops
BEREREH@E

FEREFRAS 2017F EHE
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44. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 44. M BASIMI#ER (48)

(CONTINUED)

Place of
incorporation/ Paid up/ Effective interest in issued/
registration issued/registered registered capital held
Name of subsidiary and operation share capital by the Company Principal activities
AL, KARBHERT/
MEBAST B REEHE EME #1T/ BRE BiRAFRER EEED
2017 2016
Directly Indirectly Directly  Indirectly
B ke B &
Smart Shine Industries Limited ~ The British Virgin Ordinary USD2 - 100% - 100%  Investment holding
Islands TREROETT REER
RBRAHE
SYM Development Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKD2 - 100% - 100%  Property investment
B LmR2ET MERE

Kwan Tai Resources Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKD10 - 100% - 100%  Property investment

EREARERATA ) L@RI0B T WERE

JFT Holdings Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKD316,000,000 - 100% - 100%  Provision of IT,

BRYBZERERAR B 55 A%316,000,0007 7T corporate services

and portfolio
management
REFSEM - 0%
BRBAREES
BB RT
iRy (L8 ERES The PRC (wholly Ordinary USD3,000,000 - 100% - 100%  Property investment
BRAH owned foreign 3/ A%3,000,000% 7T MERE
enterprise)
B (I EBE

©%)

BHERERGARAA The PRC (wholly Ordinary USD14,080,000 - 100% - 100%  Trading, retailing
owned foreign @AY 14,080,000% T and distribution of
enterprise) swimming apparel

RE (SMNEBE and accessories
©%) ZERDHEKAR
RECER
Pony International Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKD2 - 100% - 100%  Sub-licensing of
o LER2ET trademark rights,
trading and
wholesales of
sportswear
EREEE
BHRESH R
B
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44. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

44. M B AT (8)

(CONTINUED)
Place of
incorporation/ Paid up/ Effective interest in issued/
registration issued/registered registered capital held
Name of subsidiary and operation share capital by the Company Principal activities
AL, RATREERT/
MEBAT B REEHY EME BT/ BiRE BiRExFRER TBEH
2017 2016
Directly Indirectly Directly  Indirectly
B ik i il
Super Jumbo Holdings Limited ~ The British Virgin Ordinary USD1 - 100% - 100%  Development and
Islands LTmR1ET management of
KERTHES “PONY" brand
BRRER
[PONY | f k&
Perfect Day Ventures Limited The British Virgin Ordinary USD1 - 100% - 100%  Investment holding
Islaniiﬁ% TRmRIZET REZR
EER
Arena (Shanghai) Industrial Co.  The PRC (wholly Ordinary RMB30,000,000 - 70% - 70%  Trading, retailing
Limited owned foreign L@ A R #30,000,0007T and distribution of
Mimil (L8 BEXEB AT enterprise) swimming apparel
hE (SMNEBERE) and accessories
g9 TERAH
K PR o B BE 6
Giant Eagle Enterprises Limited  The British Virgin Ordinary USD100 - 100% - 58%  Investment holding
|s%nd;g¥% LEIR100E T REZK
oy E
Kingxin International Investment ~ The British Virgin Ordinary USD 50,000 - 80% - - Investment holding
Limited Island I 3FAR50,0003% T S B ZER
SBERRARAT KBEAEE FH000EE SRR
HK Asia Gain International Hong Kong Ordinary HKD28,000,000 - 80% - - Investment holding
Investment Limited 7 &% 28,000,000/ 7T AR
é}%\%sgnégéeﬁﬁﬁaﬁﬂ B & BT REER
EFZREBRELERDA  The PRC (wholly Ordinary RMB260,000,000 = 80% - —  Property investment
owned foreign TR MERE
enterprise) AR #260,000,0007C
RE (I EEERE)
Majestic City Group Limited The British Virgin Ordinary USD1 - 100% - 100%  Investment holding
EREERRAT Ism%ﬁﬁ% LERIET REER
EER
Majestic City (Hong Kong) Hong Kong Ordinary HKD 1 - 100% - 100%  Investment holding
L‘ td > Ay J'Lli — I’L}\ % hs
Zﬁﬁg’rgl%/ﬁ)ﬁ@/&a ?/% aﬁﬂx /%75 }Xﬁ* HX
EFHARFEEERAA  The PRC (wholly Ordinary USD45,000,000 - 100% - - Property investment
owned foreign 37 245,000,0005 7T MERE
enterprise)
RE (I EEERE)

FEREFRAS 2017F EHE
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44. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

45.

(CONTINUED)

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt security at
the end of both financial years or at any time during both
financial years.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results
or assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries
would, in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of
excessive length.

NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had material non-
controlling interests (“NCI”) arising from its 70% (2016:
70%) equity interest in Arena (Shanghai) Industrial Co.
Limited (“Arena Shanghai”) and 58% equity interests in
Giant Eagle Enterprises Limited (“Giant Eagle”). During
the year, the Group completed the acquisition of 80%
equity interest in Kingxin International Investment Limited
(“Kingxin”), which were considered as material NCI as at
31 December 2017 and acquired the remaining 42% equity
interest in Giant Eagle, which became a wholly-owned
subsidiary after the acquisition. Details of this acquisition
is disclosed as follows. The NCI of other subsidiaries that
are not 100% owned by the Group were considered to be
immaterial and their financial information is not disclosed.
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R E M B F R R EEERA - 8
B AR B BITERBERHRG -

EERR LRMINARBMBLRAR
TEFEASEXEREENRA -EF
RAMEHEMHBARTNFAENSE
HMBRAREMBYBRITK:-

FiTRE

M20165F12A31H A& B A £ A [ In
M(EB)BEERRAR ([FMIEHLEE])
70% (20164 : 70% ) i # R Giant Eagle
Enterprises Limited ([Giant Eagle ] ) 58%
AREM AR EAFEERE R ([FEZEARE
#=]) cFN AEETHRKBEEERREE
BRAF ([£8]) 280%#E 2017
FI2A3IAWMAE NI ERER  RIK
fEGiant Eaglefh N42% A% #E - R =18
BRAZEANBAR -ZUWEBZFHBRT
XEB-MUFHASEEERER 2 HAb
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45. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

(CONTINUED)

Summarised financial information in relation to the material
NCls before intra-group eliminations, was presented as
follows:

SUMMARISED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL
POSITION OF ARENA SHANGHAI, KINGXIN AND

45. Tzt (&)

BRAEAGFHEBRES W BERBME CR
EREARREIREEE) 250 T :

R20175%F %20165E12H318 ' [
B« £ HGIANT EAGLEZ B4 7§

GIANT EAGLE AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2017 AND RARBE
2016
Arena Shanghai Kingxin Giant Eagle
B 3 3B L i ook - Giant Eagle
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
F#HT FHT FHT FHT FHET FHT
Current HE
Assets BE N/A N/A
53,535 5,544 4,101 TiEH A iER 63,898
Liabilities afE N/A N/A
(7,615) - | (276,738) i A iER (512,472)
N/A N/A
45,920 5544 | (272,637) i A iER (448 574)
Non-current FEHE
Assets BE N/A N/A
2,965 17 521,394 TiE A FER 425,024
Liabilities A& N/A N/A
- - (54,166) T FER (2,833)
N/A N/A
2,965 17 467,228 TiE A FER 422191
Net assets BEFE N/A N/A
48,885 5,561 194,591 RiEm AiER (26,383)
Accumulated non-controlling REt IR ER N/A N/A
interests 14,666 1,663 38,918 i FER (12,170)
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45. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS 45, FEFERRHESS (48)
(CONTINUED)
SUMMARISED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE BZE2017FE%20165F12A31HILF
INCOME IN RELATION TO ARENA SHANGHAI, - BRI LS - £ RGIANT
KINGXIN AND GIANT EAGLE FOR THE YEARS EAGLEZ ZH IR E

ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 AND 2016

Arena Shanghai Kingxin Giant Eagle
B B B L i &8 Giant Eagle

2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
HKD’000 HKD'000 HKD’000 HKD'000 HKD’000 HKD'000
FiET FHT FiET FHT THET FHT

Revenue Wiz N/A N/A
148,629 NiEA 6,221 i@ A = =

Profit before income tax expense & FT15%: 5 2 Al i £ N/A N/A
16,398 NiEA 96,992 NiEA 341 3,024

Income tax expense FTERiAY N/A N/A
(4,119) i@ A (30,329) NiEA = (790)

Share of results of joint ventures & &M EEE N/A N/A
- i@ A - i@ A (833) (71)

Profit for the year FEHER N/A N/A
12,279 NiEA 66,663 i@ A (492) 2,163

Other comprehensive income  E A2 FEUA N/A N/A
2,636 NiE A 21,934 NiEA 6,452 (24,716)

Total comprehensive income for & 2 FEY A 4258 N/A N/A
the year 14,915 NiE A 88,597 NiEA 5,960 (22,553)

Total comprehensive FEREREGEE

income attributable to PNFE-] N/A N/A

non-controlling interests 4,479 i@ A 17,719 i@ A 2,503 (9,472)
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45. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS
(CONTINUED)

SUMMARISED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
IN RELATION TO ARENA SHANGHAI, KINGXIN
AND GIANT EAGLE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
DECEMBER 2017

45.

iR (&)

HE20175128318 ILEE - HEEMN
Haiih b5 - £ R GIANT EAGLEZ IR
EHEFREE

Arena Shanghai Kingxin Giant Eagle
B 3 4B L i &8 Giant Eagle
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
HKD’000 HKD'000 HKD’000 HKD'000 HKD’000 HKD'000
FiERT THT FiERT TR FiERT TR
OPERATING ACTIVITIES TEEE
Cash used in operations AR ENEE N/A N/A
(29,018) (17) (14,006) i@ A FER (148,880)
Income tax paid BIMEH N/A N/A
- - - T FER -
Net cash used in operating AREEEEN N/A N/A
activities HEFE (29,018) (17) (14,006) i@ A FiEHR (148,800)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEH
Net cash used in investing ARNEEEENELFE N/A N/A
activities (3,643) = (254) TiEA TER (61,959)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES B EE
Net cash from financing activities 2R B Bi & /& B RIR €55 N/A N/A
28,410 5,561 15,206 NiE A FiER 153,254
Net (decrease)fincrease in cash  H 4 kI EEEY N/A N/A
and cash equivalents (RD) /s (4,251) 5,544 946 TiEHA iER (57,585)
Cash and cash equivalents FORERALZEY N/A N/A
at beginning of the year i 5,544 - 328 i TER 66,761
Effect of exchange rate changes BEXEFHEE N/A N/A
on cash and cash equivalents BREZEEYZFE 2,685 - - i@ A AER (1,653)
Cash and cash equivalents FERASRBEEEY N/A N/A
at end of the year 3,978 5,544 1,274 i A iER 7,523
LOAN FROM NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS REFIEREEER

Save as aforesaid, there is a loan from non-controlling
interest which amounted to approximately HKD600,000
(2016: HKD153,254,000) as at the end of the reporting
period. The loan is unsecured, interest-free and with no fixed
terms of repayment. The non-controlling shareholder has
agreed not to demand repayment of the loan from the Group
within the next twelve months from the end of the reporting
period. Accordingly, the directors believe that the Group has
an unconditional right to defer settlement of the loan for at
least twelve months after the end of the reporting period and
therefore classified the loan as a non-current liability.

B bt E SN R mE R KB FER
R 2 B B R4 /3600,0007% 7T (20164 :
153,254,000/ 7T ) ° ;% &R B EIER - TH
B KB EE KR -1 B S HRE
AR+ —EAR FEERRERRETE
KAEEEEZER U EER/ K
SEEREGTBZERNEERIEER
EHRREL T @A XA MK ZER
DERIFRBAE-
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45. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS 45, FEiERR L (48)
(CONTINUED)
ACQUISITION OF NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS WeREFE I AR e 2
On 8 March 2017, the Group completed the acquisition R2017F3A8H AEEEBIZHE R
of the remaining 42% equity interests in Giant Eagle, by 815,300,000/ 7T 7] & 73 Goldsilk Capital
issue of 250,000,000 shares of the Company and cash Limited ( & B 7N HER N A &) R i R E A5
consideration of HKD15,300,000 to the vendor, Goldsilk BHZARRIEFEELEREE 2 F))E%
Capital Limited, a company owned by the Company’s 177872 &]250,000,000% f% 17 52 A% U B Giant
Chairman, Mr. Cheng who also has equity interests and Eagleff T42% % #E

significant influence in the Company.

The following summarises the acquisition date fair value of THge EERRERKER R ATE
consideration transferred: &:

HKD’000

T T

Total consideration satisfied by: HEREUTHIAFRNZfF:
Cash consideration BeERE 15,300
Fair value of consideration shares RERND 2 AFEE 195,000
Total consideration transferred BEEARKE 210,300
The fair value of 250,000,000 consideration shares issued as 250,000,000 R E 1D 2 A FEE (1EA
part of the consideration paid for the vendor was determined ERBEAZNZREZ —EBHMEIT) Hik
on the basis of the closing market price of the Group's AEFELBERNKER R WMEEE -

ordinary shares on the acquisition date.
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46. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 46. HEMIBA T

On 15 May 2017, the Group agreed to dispose of two
subsidiaries, China Rise Capital Co., Ltd and &#JII{=EZ @&
BB AF], to an independent third party for aggregate cash
considerations of approximately HKD 6,852,000. The net
assets of these subsidiaries at the date of disposal were as

R2017F58150 AEBERER —ZBL
B HAHEMBENBAREZEABRA
ARAINEERERRAR BEENKE
#]/6,852,000/8 L - Z S M B A AR L&
HEAZEEFEMNT :

follows:

HKD’000
FETT

Net assets disposed of: HEEEFHE:
Goodwill EES 1,794
Other receivables H b Uk BR X 5
Bank balances and cash SRITHEBR NI S 3,859
Other payables L E T BR SR (10)
5,648
HKD’000
THT
Considerations AB 6,852
Net assets disposed of HEBEFE (5,648)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HERB QR ke 1,204

An analysis of net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in
respect of the disposal both subsidiaries was as follows:

FHRLERBHNBARZRE RSB
MIRAZRESITT

HKD’000
FHET

Total consideration satisfied by: BREUTHAERNZT:
Cash considerations ReRE 6,852
Bank balances and cash disposed of HERTESRNIRES (3,859)
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents BeMBEEBMRAFRE 2,993

MR E AR A S] 20174 E RS ZW



47. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY

On 12 January 2017, the Group completed the acquisition
of 80% equity interest in Kingxin, for a total amount of
consideration satisfied as to RMB76,000,000 (equivalent
to approximately HKD84,795,000) by cash to exchange a
commercial property in Chongging, the PRC of approximately
HKD366,040,000, with a deferred tax liabilities of
HKD20,664,000 on the date of acquisition as disclosed in
Notes 15 and 29 to the consolidated financial statements
respectively. The directors considered this acquisition as an
acquisition of assets and liabilities because Kingxin did not
constitute a business at the acquisition date.

An analysis of the net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in
respect of this acquisition was as follows:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %z & B 75 38 3% My 5%
For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z£20174 128318 It F &

47. WEE— R B A S

R2017F1A 128 - ASERKKRES S
80% A% - 48 B < %8 A R #76,000,0007T
(FBZ 1 #984,795,0005% 7T ) KA UK BE B HA A
BT WBEER—BURTEEEZH
2 1) ¥ #9366,040,00078 7T » Bt A iR 1T F 18
B 1&20,664,0007% 7T (9 BIRNER & B IS 3R &
MizE15R20W ) - EERBZKEBR UK
BEERAGE AeERKRERANEAET
fa] 2765 o

BRZWBZRE MRS EFEBMRLFER
DT :

HKD’000

T T

Cash consideration BeERE 84,795
Bank balances and cash acquired Fri s RIS R ® (328)
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents ReERBESFEBYIR L FE 84,467
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #{Z£2017F12A31H It F &

48. NOTES SUPPORTING CASH FLOW
STATEMENT

(A) CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT COMPRISE:

48. IR & A B R MBI 1M

(A RERBEEFEVBHE:

2017 2016
HKD’000 HKD'000
TFHT T
Cash available on demand BRENRREH RS 76,968 169,098
Cash available in the PRC BERSEFRBIERN 60,358 65,203
Time deposits EHIFR = 94,167
Restricted bank deposits SR HIERITER 25,229 4,870
Balances included in disposal group FSTADEABELE
classified as held for sale (Note 27) 4R 2 &gk (H1it27) 3,977 -
Cash held on behalf of customers REFEHEAEZE® 24,008 22679
190,540 356,017
Significant non-cash transactions are BEXERE&XSMT:
as follows:
Investment activities KEEZE)
Equity consideration for acquisition of W IEE R = 2
non-controlling interests (Note 45) IRIERAB (H15F45) 195,000 =

FEREFRAS 2017F E &
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48. NOTES SUPPORTING CASH FLOW
STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

(B) RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
The table below details changes in the Group’s
liabilities arising from financing activities, including
both cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising
from financing activities are those for which cash flows
were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the

48. IR & B R MBI 1M

(B) MEAGHMELZBRYHER

TERAAKEREETBMELZAR
HEHE BERRE MRS EY-
RERPFELZEBIRRAERE
IRKRERERANEEGEREIR
EXDERBETHREREZAE

Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows as cash Ao
flows from financing activities.
Loan from
Bank non-controlling
borrowings interests Total
KEFERE
RITER HEER &gt
(Note 30) (Note 45)
(H17230) (H17245)
HKD’000 HKD’000 HKD'000
FHET FiET FET
At 1 January 2017 201741 A1H 719,491 153,254 872,745
Changes from cash flows: Re&mEes:
New bank borrowings obtained EEMRITER 455,706 = 455,706
Repayment of bank borrowings RITEFER (245,412) - (245,412)
Advance from non-controlling interests 58 B JEIEfRAERS 2 B X = 600 600
Total changes from financing cash flows ~ BEIR & RE 2 281258 210,294 600 210,894
Exchange realignments R 4,697 = 4,697
Other changes: Hibgg):
Acquisition of a subsidiary WiE— kB A R 222 445 = 222,445
Acquisition of loan from WBE PR B IR R B
non-controlling interests (Note 45) (Hi3#45) - (153,254) (153,254)
Total other changes Hib & eh@m 222,445 (153,254) 69,191
At 31 December 2017 20176128318 1,156,927 600 1,157,527
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #{Z£2017F12A31H It F &

49. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 2 February 2018, the Group announced that one of
its subsidiaries, B REHRTFEHERZEGR QA
(Shenyang Outlet Mall Property Development Company
Limited*) (“Lessee”) entered into a lease agreement with X
BB ITEMERZEAR AR (Tanjin Binhai Kaiyuan
Property Development Company Limited*) (“Lessor”), an
independent third party, for a lease term of twenty years
commencing from 1 January 2018 to 31 December 2037,
with a 6 month rent-free period starting from 1 January to 30
June 2018 for a commercial property located at the Tianjin
Development Zone, Tianjin, the PRC. The aggregate rental
payment to be made to the Lessor for the twenty years term
of the lease agreement amounted to RMB346,694,000. The
Lessee was further required to pay an additional amount
of RMB17,050,000 being the cost of fixtures, leasehold
improvement and newly-installed facilities of the property.
The Lessor was entitled to receive an additional rent of 2%
on any excess amount above the commercial building yearly
turnover of RMB300,000,000. Further details are set out in
the announcement of the Company on 2 February 2018.

* For identification only {£ {245/

49. HEMEEIR

M2018F2 A2 - AEBEEMET KB
AR BRGRERNIEHERZEBR QR
(TERBADB—BYE=HXBEEMT
EHERZEARAR ([HABA]) R
RABXZEREREEOEAYE LA
E i B2018F1 A1 R £ £20374 128
318 1k (HA 7@ A BIH20185F1 A1 #£
201856 H30R 1L REHEE) - REI =+
(20)F A A -~ TROEREHZER
AR A 2 8 & 308 A R #346,694,000
TL B A EESNE 58 A R #17,050,0007T
ERBMERE REMMERERENE
et ARmARARERED T LB
i F B YA A R #300,000,0007T HI &8 5 U
B2%EEINES o i — S BHIINARAA]
201852 A28 2 A& »
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Financial Summary

Year ended 31 December

HZE12A31HILEE
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
HKD'000 HKD’'000 HKD’'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
FET FET FET FAET FHET
(Restated)
(BE&E5)
OPERATING RESULTS E$
Revenue S 348,919 363,856 351,067 263,831 219,165
Profit/(loss) before income B FiiS#: (BiX)
tax (expenses)/credit Beprssl,/ (B8) 116,700 30,190 195,053 (30,531) (187,533)
Income tax FisH (%) /iK%
(expenses)/credit (58,951) (16,145) (38,975) 2,133 2,079
Profit/(loss) for the year REBBECEERZ
from continuing FEwH,/ (BR)
operations 57,749 14,045 156,078 (28,398) (185,454)
Profit/(loss) for the year ~ REEARILEEEB 2
from discontinued FERM/ (BE)
operations, after tax BrFiE - = = 28,604 176,870
Profit/(loss) for the year ~ F @ FI,/ (E1E) 57,749 14,045 156,078 206 (8,584)
Profit/(loss) attributable to: FE{G#8F], (#518)
— Owners of the —AREHEEA
Company 41,018 27,746 180,822 19,095 15,454
— Non-controlling —IEERR
interests 16,731 (13,701) (24,744) (18,889) (24,038)
57,749 14,045 156,078 206 (8,584)
As at 31 December
"12A31H
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
HKD’000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
FHETT FETT FETT FETT FAT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEREE
Total assets BEHAE 4,234,441 3,395,176 3,724,613 3,488,416 2,965,602
Total liabilities BEBE (1,637,078) | (1,227,866)  (1,254,899)  (1,076,673) (904,060)
EQUITY i 2,597,363 2,167,310 2,469,714 2,411,743 2,061,542
Equity attributable to RRE)EE ANEHER
owners of the Company 2,543,867 2,177,817 2,319,135 2,188,227 1,788,849
Non-controlling interests FEPERR M 2 53,496 (10,507) 150,579 223,516 272,693
Total equity EER 2,597,363 2,167,310 2,469,714 2,411,743 2,061,542
2 2 2 Symphony Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017



AND EQUIPMENT

(A) PROPERTIES HELD AS PROPERTY, PLANT

Particulars of Major Properties

FEYEEM

(A) FEBME MERRIEHME

Effective
% held
Location Lease term Area Sitearea  Use BA
HE AEH miE ERE  RAR EHR L
(sq.ft.) (sq.m.)
Unit Nos. 1 to 10 on the B Medium 13,812 N/A  Commercial 100
10/F of Island Place Tower, it A i (saleable) TEA B
No. 510 King's Road, W2 E510%% (AJEHE)
North Point, BERNEIOE
Hong Kong 12 105% 8 hL
Lot No. Shenbei 2008-050 REEARAEAME Medium N/A 100,146  Commercial 100
North Puheda Road FEBAEET i TEA RS
Hushi Tai Development Zone,  [RAAZERER
Shenyang, Liaoning Province, S A B
PRC }%112008-0505%
Lots No. Shenbei (G) 2008-017 FZEE A R &£ FIE Medium N/A 45,166  Industrial 100
North Puheda Road, FEBRAEGT i TEA Ix
Hushi Tai Development Zone,  [RAAZERER
Shenyang, Liaoning Province, S A B
PRC &1t (G) 2008-0175%
Units 1 and 2 mEEARAEME Long 8,053 N/A  Commercial 100
6/F Jiuge Business Centre EETmEILE £ (gross floor) TEA B
No. 2301 Yi Shan Lu, 23015% (GEE®E)
Shanghai, TR L
PRC GIE1 255 B AL
North crossroad of R AR LA Medium N/A 60,273  Wholesale 100
Haixiang Avenue and BEEEMT Fh Hj i@ A and Retail
Tianshui Road, Jimei District, EXREANE (commercial)
Xiamen, Fujian Province, B R 7K & 32 DAL Rl (FEI#ER
PRC &

7 R E A PR 2 S 2017@&*?&7 2 2%



Particulars of Major Properties == E ¥ % & ¥}

(B) PROPERTIES HELD AS INVESTMENT (B) HIEAREMENME

PROPERTIES
Effective
% held
Location Lease term Area  Sitearea  Use B
o B HEH miE REE AR BRI *
(sq.ft.) (sq.m.)
Unit Nos. 1 to 10 on the BB Medium 13,812 N/A Commercial 100
3/F of Island Place Tower, it A i Hf (saleable) NER EE
No. 510 King's Road, REBES105% (RAISHE)
North Point, BEANEIE
Hong Kong 121058 AL
Portion B on 5/F, BB Medium 4,358 N/A  Industrial 100
No. 32 Hung To Road, EEEE Fh Hj (saleable) TEA I
Kwun Tong, % B 18 325% (RAISHE)
Kowloon SEBH Y EfiL
Unit C, 2/F, &5 Long 4,281 N/A  Industrial 100
Hop Ming Factory Building, - R (saleable) TER IT%
No. 8 On Yip Street, 2 18R (ATSHE)
Chai Wan, ARIMAE
Hong Kong 2ECEfL
Site No. 88, hEE AR Medium N/A 44,237 Commercial/ 100
North Puheda Road, FEELEGT 5 TEA Residential
Daoyi Development Zone, B R mE/FE
Shenbei New District, BEREER
Shenyang, Liaoning Province, &/l AL
PRC 885
Site No. 89 R AR Medium N/A 55,101  Commercial 100
North Puheda Road, EEREGT  Hf NiE [SES
Daoyi Development Zone, BT R
Shenbei New District, BRERERE
Shenyang, Liaoning Province, S AEL
PRC 895 1L 1}
Site No. 124 hEARLME Long N/A 94,450  Commercial/ 100
North Puheda Road, BELEGT & H TiE A Residential
Daoyi Development Zone, ZtHE mE/EE
Shenbei New District BRERRE
Shenyang, Liaoning Province, & Az&Edt
PRC 124533 18
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Particulars of Major Properties = Z¥) ¥ & ¥

(B) PROPERTIES HELD AS INVESTMENT (B) nEBREMENYE (18)
PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)
Effective
% held
Location Lease term Area Sitearea  Use 8
o B HEH miE HmEE AR EH L x
(sq.ft.) (sq.m.)
12th, 14th, 16th and I AR AAE Medium N/A 10,471  Commercial 100
18th Floors, Beijing Junefield b RERE Fh Hj TEHA [HES
Plaza, 10th Building, SR IINRHE6
Nos. 6, 8, 10, 12, 16, 18 810412 16 185%
Xuan Wu Men Outer Street 105%#2 0 1241416
Xuan Wu District, Beijing, K 18/E
PRC
A site on West of Zhonghau R AR LA Medium N/A 100,098  Commercial 63
Road, North of Anbao Main MEALZE YR S @A (SES
Road, South of Wenyi Street, EEFEPEK
at Baoliansi Zhen, Wenfeng AT REAE
District, Anyang, Henan AL R B
Province, PRC LARS 2 i
Unit 2, 7/F R AR Long 4,027 N/A  Commercial 100
Jiuge Business Centre EBmELE K (gross floor) NEB  EmE
N0.2301 Yi Shan Lu, 2301%% (EEMEE)
Shanghai, PRC NIE B L
7HED5R B AL
A commercial complex at R AR Medium 425,716 11905  Commercial 80
No. 70 Shancha Road, BEMALE 57 e
Yubei District, L ZEBE7057 2
Chongging City, PRC —RERGEY

7 R E A PR 2 S 2017@&%&7 ZZy



Information to Stakeholders
FzmHEE & & 51

SHAREHOLDERS’ MEETING

Details of the Annual General Meeting are set out in the Notice of
Annual General Meeting to be despatched to Shareholders together
with a proxy form.

Date: Friday, 8 June 2018
Time: 10:00 a.m.
Venue: 10th Floor, Island Place Tower, 510 King's Road,

North Point, Hong Kong

ANNUAL REPORT

The Annual Report containing financial statements and notes to
the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2017
has been published on both the websites of the Company (www.
symphonyholdings.com) and the Stock Exchange (www.hkex.com.
hk).

REGISTERED OFFICE

Address: Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11

Bermuda

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF
BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Address: 10th Floor, Island Place Tower, 510 King's Road,
North Point, Hong Kong
Email: info@symphonyholdings.com

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Name: Conyers Corporate Services (Bermuda) Limited

Address: Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11

Bermuda

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR
AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Name: Tricor Tengis Limited

Address: Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Hong Kong

Telephone:  (852) 2980 1333

Facsimile: (852) 2810 8185
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Hamilton HM11 Bermuda
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“Annual General Meeting”

[BERBFERE ]

“Board”
=

“CG Code”
[ EEA<FAI]

“Company”

BN

”

“Director(s)

[E%]

“Group”
[REE |

“Hong Kong”
(&%

“HKD"
[Tl

“Listing Rules”
[Ema 81

uPRCH

[ B

“RMB”
AR

Glossary
an)

the annual general meeting of the Company to be held on Friday 8th June
2018 at 10:00 a.m. or any adjournment thereof

RAR)ERTR2018F6 A8H 2B A T+ IEBRAMRERAF Ak HE
E=

the board of Directors of the Company

ARRAESEE

Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules

ErR RIS 14T E M B EER TR

Symphony Holdings Limited, a company incorporated in Bermuda with limited
liability, the shares and warrants of which are listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange (Stock code: 1223 and Warrant code: 1537)
ERERRAR —HARBREFMKZZBRAR  HRG RKRKE
BB A AT ER LT (ARDAREE : 1223 RABREE RS © 1537)

the director(s) of the Company
RARIES

the Company and its subsidiaries

RRABREKEBAF]

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
BB B R RITT R R

Hong Kong dollar, the lawful currency of Hong Kong
B BROEEEY

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange

Bt 2 P78 7 AR Al
The People’s Republic of China excluding Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region, Macau Special Administrative Region and Taiwan

REARANE TEEEEFITRE BFIFHITERERREE

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC
AR HFRNEEE

HMRE AR AT 2017@&*?&% 227



Glossary 3%

“Share(s)”
[H% 15 |

“Shareholder(s)”
[R% 3R]

“Stock Exchange”
[ B 22 P |

“Warrant(s)”
[ R RE

ordinary share(s) of HKDO.10 each in the share capital of the Company
RA B AR Z IR EEC. 1073 7T 2 & # Ak

holder(s) of the issued share(s) of the Company
RARZBEETROFAEA

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
BERBERZMERRAA

the warrant(s) issued by the Company which carries(carry) the right to
subscribe for Share(s) at the subscription price of HKD1.00 per Share, subject
to adjustments

KRB BT RIRAET - M SRR AT R AR5 1.008 T2 REE (7]
THE)RERD
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